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CERTIFIED PLBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville
Fayetteviile, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which
coliectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2005, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows where appropriate, and the respective
budgetary position of the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
10, 2005 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests

of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered
in assessing the results of our audit.



The management's discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of
employer contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance and the
Public Works Commission are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of
Federal and State awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act, for the year ended June 30, 2005, and the combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules for the year ended June 30, 2004, are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2005, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

WG VIV U NEW RS

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 10, 2005
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Fayetteville {"the City"), we offer readers of the City's financ:al statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. We
encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the City's financial statements, which foilow this narrative.

Financial Hightights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $829.0 million (et assets).
Of this amount, $1386.2 million (unrestricted net assels) may be used to meet the government's ongoing
abligations to citizens and creditors.

The government's tctal net assets increased by $34.4 million. Net assets increased $23.7 million to
$471.1 million in fiscal year 2005 up from $447.4 milfion in fiscal year 2004 in the Electric. Water and
Wastewater activities. By far, the largest portion of these net assets, $400.6 million or 85.0 percent,
reflects the investment in capital assets less any related debt still outstanding that was issued 1o acquire
those assets. The use of the proceeds of bonds issued in fiscai year 2004, capital contributions, and
operating funds, taken together, provided a $17.5 million increase in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt.

Other liabilities increased due to the recognition of $6.3 million due to the NC Department of
Transportation (DOT) for various water and wastewater relocation proiects completed this year.

Net assets increased $9.9 million to $328.5 million in fiscal year 2005 up from $318.6 million in fiscal year
2004 in the Governmental activities, primarly due to increases in local sales tax and current year property
taxes, Federal and State revenues, County recreation and fire district taxes, functional revenues, Linear
Park contributions, donated fire protection and parks and recreation assets, and revenues resulting from
the service territory agreement with Lumbee River Electric Membership Corporation.

These revenues were offset with increases in expenditures primarily due to the merger of City and County
parks and recreation programs, fire protection services in the LaFayetite and Lake Rim Fire Districts and
for personnel costs incurred to maintain the City’s ability {o provide policing services once the annexation
legal cases were resolved, Community Development Block Grant and HOME program activities and a
decrease in Environmental Protection for roll-out carts purchased and other operating costs incurred in
fiscal year 2004 in preparation to serve the Phase V annexation area.

As of the close of fiscal year 2005, the City's governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of
$69.8 million an increase of $14.8 million in compariscn to prior year. Approximately 88 percent of total
fund balance, or $46.4 million is available for spending at the government's discretion {unreserved fund
balance).

At the end of fiscal year 2005, unreserved fund baiance for the general fund was $31.4 million or 34.0
percent of totai general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. Of this amount, $11.3 million has been
designated for subsequent year expenditures, special purposes, or debt service, bringing the
undesignated general fund balance to $20.1 million cr 20.5 percent of general fund expenditures and
transfers out.

The City's total debt increased by §7.5 million during fiscal year 2005.

The City's most recent bond issue {governmental activities) was rated Aa3 {Moody's Investor Services)
and AA- (Standard & Poor’s). In fiscal year 1998, the Pubilic Works Commission received an underlying
rating of A1 and A+ by Moody's and Standard and Poor's, respectively. The City's most recent bond
issue in the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds (business-type activities} are rated Aaa/VMIG1
{(Moody's) and AAAJA-1+ (Standard & Poor’s) based on municipal bond insurance policies. These ratings
were affirmed during a bond refinancing in fiscal year 2004.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financia! statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements presant two different

3



views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the
basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's
understanding of the financial condition of the City.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary » Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statemants.
They provide both short and long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual
parts of the City's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements.
There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary
comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in
detail scme of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to
show detaiis about the City's non-major governmental and proprietary funds and the internal service funds. The
gavernmental and internal service funds are added together in one column on the basic financial statements.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements
provide short and long-term information about the City's financial status as a whole.



The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are
the difference between the City’s total assets and total lizhbilities, Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the
City's financial condition,

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) business-type
activities. The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as general administration,
nubtic safety, environmental protection, transpertation, economic and physical development, and recreation and
community facilities. Property and other taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities.
The business-type activities are those that the City charges customers to provide. These inciude the electric,
water and wastewater, airport and transit services offered by the City or its Public Works Commission.

The government-wide financial statements are on Pages 14 and 15 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain contral over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, ilike all other governmental entities in North Caroiina, uses fund
accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as
the General Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds -~ Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Moast of the City's basic services are accounted for in
governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and
what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial
resources focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term
view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's
programs. The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Staternent of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a
iegally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and
the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide and how to pay for them. it also authorizes the
City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement
grovided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether
or not the City succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language,
and ciassifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. The statement
shows four columns; 1) the original budget as adopted by the City Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the
City Councii; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4)
the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — The City has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-iype activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater, mass transit, and airport operations. These
funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally ameng the functions of the City. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its flest
leasing program, fleet maintenance, and risk management activities. Because these operations benefit
predominately governmental rather than business-type activities, the internai service funds have been included
within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds ~ Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City halds in trust for others.
The City has two pension trust funds and two private-purpose trust funds,



Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes ta the
financial statements are on pages 27 — 63 of this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying netes, this report includes
certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obiigation to provide
pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 84 of
this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
Net Assets. The City’s combined net assets increased $34.4 million, as restated, or 4.3% from fiscal year 2004,
as restated, to 2005. Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial
condition. The information provided below provides a more detailed view of the City's net assets.
The City’s Net Assets
Figure 2

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S NET ASSETS

Governmental Business.type
Activitien Activitien Total
2004 20086 2004 2005 2004 2005
Current and other assets 5 82,188,258 § 98,677,113 126,158,850 % 129,119,300 § 208,387,208 3 228,796,413
Capitat assets 307.992,156 317.804.597 580,165,321 £03 826,418 B88,157,477 921.631.016
Total assets 390,180,414 417,481,710 706,164,271 732,945 719 1,096,544 685 1,180.427,428
Long-term liabilities outstanding 62,975,347 74,302,804 196,157,991 192,884,609 259,133,338 267,187,413
Other liabilities 11,987.425 14,669,592 34,198,779 39,527,088 46,186,204 54,196,858
Totai liabilities 74,962.772 88,872,388 230.358.770 232,411.675 305,315,542 321,384,071
Net assets:
Invesiad in capital assets, net of
reiatad debt 252,737,261 263,057,769 384,136,802 425,048,564 638,874,063 689,106,333
Restncted 2,368,817 2,446,529 18,951,896 1,330,169 22,321,713 3,776,698
Unrestricted 60.110,564 63,005.016 71,818.803 73,155,311 132.029.367 136,160,327
Total net assets g 315,217,642 % 312§ .509,114 476,007,501 S 300.534,044 5 791,225 143 35 829,043,258




The assets of the City exceeded liabiities by $829.0 miltion as of June 30, 2005. Nat assets is raported in three
categories: Investad in caoital assets, net of related debt of $689.1 miliion, Restricted net asseats of $3.8 millicn
and Unrestricied net assets $136.2 million.

The invested in capitai assets, net of related debt category is defined as the City's investment in City owned
capitai assets {e.g. infrastructure, land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and cther equipment, and electric,
water, and wastewater systems), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued o acguire those items.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available far
future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related
debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet the government's
ongeing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2005, $136.2 million, or 16.4% of the total net assets
reported of $829.0 miliion, is unrestricted.

~I



Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Cther taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs
Other
Total revenues

TXpenses:
Administration
Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Recreation and cemmunity faciities
Interest and fees
Eleciric activities
Water and wastewater activities
Transit
Airport
Total expenses

Increase in net assets before transfers

Transfers

ncrease in net assets
Het assets, July 1 {as previously stated)
“rior pericd adjustment

Hietassets - July 1 (restated)

et assets, June 30

The City’s Changes in Net Assets

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Figure 3

Gevernmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

20 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
S 5888149 5 6352622 § 180226458 $ 196356176 5 196.114.807 S 202.708.798
7,171,923 13,087,772 1,903,066 1,800,622 9,074,989 14,968,394
2,695,396 3,567,891 10,417,903 17,687,389 13,113,299 21,255,280
38,495,985 39,344,522 . - 38,495,085 39,344,522
31,127,455 34,023,971 - - 31,127,455 34,023,971
569.087 571,232 - . 569,087 571,232
892,911 2.660.787 2,432,690 2,298,675 3,325,601 4,959,462
86,840,906 99.588,797 204,980,117  218.242,862 291,821,023 317.831,659
10,560.827 11,641,665 - . 10,560,827 11,641,665
43,662,505 47,285,832 - - 43,682,505 47,285,832
8,871,462 7,514,882 - - 8,871,462 7.514,882
13,846,642 14,018,733 - - 13,846,642 14,018,733
4,416,477 5,827,968 - - 4,416,477 5.827.998
£.134,504 9,305,228 - - 6,134,504 9,305,228
2,542,194 2,541,380 - - 2,542,194 2,541,380
- - 132,677.111 131,305,788 132,677,111 131,305,788
. - 44,147 344 45,275,518 44,147,344 45,275,518
- - 5,021,030 4,910,142 5,021,030 4,910,142
- - 3,450,196 3.806,671 3,450.196 3,806,671
90,054,611 98,135,718 185,295,681 185,298,119 275,350,282 283,433,837
(3.213,705) 1,453,079 19,684,436 32,944,743 16,470,731 34,397,822
8,171.258 8,418,200 (8,171.258) (8.418,200) - -
4,957 553 9,871,279 11,513,178 24,526,543 16,470,731 34,397,822
310,260,088 215217542 464,494,323 476,007,501 774,754,412 791,225,143
- 3,420,393 - - - 3,420,393
310,260,088 318,638,035 464,494,373  476.007.501 774,754,412 794 545 536
$ 35217642 $ 328,509.314 5 476,007,501 $ 500534044 S 791225143 $ 879.042.353

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by 39.87 million. Key

elements of this increase are as follows:

» local sales tax revenues increasad $1.8 million

+« [nvestment earnings increased $0.9 million

» Current year property taxes increased 31.1 million

« County recreation taxes of $3.2 million and county recreation program income of $0.3 million

8



s Fire district taxes increasad $1.3 million

» [ederai grant revenues for the HOME program increased $0.8 million

« Federal and State revenues for transportation projects increased 50.5 million
» Permit and fees increased 30.4 million

¢ Linear Park contributicns increased 30.2 million

» Doenated fire protection and parks and recreation assets valued at $0.5 million

» Federal grant revenues for Cape Fear/Yadkin Valley Depot Transportation Museum increased S0.7
million

+ Revenues from the service territery agreement with Lumbee River Electric Membership Corporation $0.6
million

» These increases were offset by the following:

o $2.6 millicn increase in expenditures for County Parks and Recreation

o $3.6 million increase in expenditures for Pubtic Safety primarily due to providing fire protection
services in the LaFayette and Lake Rim Fire Districts and personnet costs incurred to maintain
the City’s ability to provide policing services once the annexation legal cases were resolved

$1.1 million increase in Economic and Physical Development expenditures for Community
Development Block Grant and HOME program activities

[

o> $0.9 million decrease in Environmental Protection for roll-out carts purchased and other operating
costs incurred in fiscal year 2004 in preparation to serve the Phase V annexation area

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $24.5 million, or 71.3% of
the total increase. Net assets increased $23.7 million to $471.1 million in fiscal year 2005 up from $447.4 miilion
in fiscal year 2004 in the Electric, Water and Wastewater activities, By far, the largest porion of these net assets,
$400.6 million or 85.0 percent, reflects the investment in capital assets less any related debt still outstanding that
was issued to acquire those assets. The use of the proceeds of bonds issued in fiscal year 2004, capital
contributions, and operating funds, taken together, provided a $17.5 million increase in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt.

Other liabilities increased due 1o the recognition of $6.3 miilion due to the NC Department of Transportation (DOT)
for various water and wastewater relocation projects completed this year.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonsirate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is {o provide infermation on near-term inflows,
outfiows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a usefut measure of a government's net resources
available far spending at the end of the fiscai year.



The generai fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the fiscal year 2008, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $31.4 milfion, while total fund balance reached $44.0 million. As a measure of
the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare bath unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund baiance represents 31.9 percent of total General Fund expenditures
and transfers, while total fund balance represents 44,7 percent of that same amount.

At June 30, 2008, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance of $69.8 million, a 26.4
percent increase from the previous year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

On June 28, 2004, the City Council approved a $111.9 million General Fund budget for fiscal year 2008, which
represented a $27.4 million or 32.4% increase over the original budget for fiscal year 2004. The primary reason
for the budget increase was the inclusion of $16.6 million to serve the “Phase V annexation” areas (described
below). In addition, the City assumed oversight of the recently merged City/County parks and recreation program
effective July 1, 2004, at an increased budgeted cost of $2.4 miilion, and also budgeted for an upgrade of the 800
MHz public safety radio system. The tax rate remained at 53 cents per $100 value and the City budgeted $6.8
million in instaliment financing praceeds fo fund the radio system upgrade, annexation equipment and faciiities,
and police vehicle replacement,

The Phase V annexation was planned for June 30, 2004, as an annexation of approximately 27 square miles with
a resident population of approximately 43,000. The annexation areas include the existing City of Fayetteville
limits to the Hoke County line, Lagrange Subdivision, McArthur Road, Oakmont Circie, Oates Drive, Andover
Road, Raynor Drive, five unincorporated areas along Ramsey Street and Piymouth Street. In late June, 2004,
several lawsuits were filed challenging the Phase V annexation. On July 12, 2004, the North Carolina Supreme
Court issued a stay of the City's annexation pending resolution of the litigation. The stay of the annexation
remained in effect for the duration of fiscal year 2005.

The City took the following actions to mitigate the negative budget impact of the delay of the Phase V annexation:
instituted & hiring freeze on certain positions, postponed the purchase of police replacement vehicles, postponed
employee pay increases for approximately two months, and contracted with Cumberiand County to provide fire
protection in the Lafayette Village and Lake Rim fire districts. The fire service assets of these districts were
acquired by the City prior to the North Carolina Supreme Court's issuance of the stay of the annexation.

The City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three
categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance
once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external
sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to cover
items encumbered or designated for a special purpose in the previous year's budget but remain unexpended at
the end of the previous year. Total amendments to the General Fund decreased revenues and expenditures by
34.5 million or 4.0%. The major amendments which contributed to the net decrease were a $6.9 million fund
balance appropriation to cover items encumbered or designated as of June 30, 2004, a $2.5 million fund balance
appropriation for capital projects authorized by City Council, and an amendment which reduced the appropriation
by $14.1 million primarily due to expenditure reductions associated with the stay of the Phase V annexation.

Actual revenues and other financing sources for the General Fund were less than the final amended budget
amount by 36.8 million. This is primarily due to a fund balance appropriation of $8.6 million, which is an other
financing source that is not reflected as actual current year revenue.

Actual expenditures and other financing uses were less than the final amended budget by $8.9 million. The
primary reasan for this variance is due to the uncertainty surrcunding the Phase V annexation. Management
placed a citywide hold on purchases and hiring to mitigate the negative impact resulting from not annexing the
Phase V area. Approximately $4.8 million in unexpended equipment and capital improvement funds were
designated at June 30, 2005 to be re-appropriated in fiscal year 20086.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2006, totals $921.6 million (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include infrastructure:
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buildings; improvements,; automctive equipment; cffice and other eguipment; and slectric, water, and wastewater
ugiiity systems.

Major capitai asset transactions during the fiscal year included the following:

o 38.4 million for the Rockfish WRF expansion and improvements

s 58.4 million for DOT projects to relocate water and wastewater systems

» 38.3 million of developer contributed water and wastewater utility infrastructure

= $4.5 million far installation water and wastewater utility infrastructure in newly annexed areas

o 32.9 million for compieted water and wastewater main rehabilitation

»  31.5 million for electric distribution systern transfermers

«  3$1.0 for purchase and installation of water meters

¢ $1.3 million in fire vehicies and equipment

« $0.2 millien in police vehicles and equipment

¢ 531.0 million for Favetteville State University fire station building

 50.6 million in land and building, purchased for various fire purposes

¢ 51.2 million train depot building

« 31.7 million for Westover Recreation Center building

¢« $1.4 million in parks and recreation land, and Festival Park and Cape Fear River Trail improvements

« 33.4 million for 800Mhz equipment upgrade

» 30.8 million in street maintenance vehicles and equipment

« 317 million in solid waste vehicles

s 50.8 million in land for the 300 block of Hay Street Project

The City’s Capital Assets
Figure 4
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(net of depreciation)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Land 5 35875191 § 13,865,944 § 49,541,135
nfrastructure 232,475,368 - 232,475,368
Electric utility system - 162,450,099 162,490,099
Wastewater system - 199,373,421 198,373,421
Water system . 123,123,626 123,123,626
Equipment and machinery - 9,048,519 9,048,519
Buildings and improvements 26,630,228 49,833,153 76,463,381
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 5,823,136 955,699 6,778,835
Computer pragrams - 5,899,317 5,899,317
Vehicles 5,860,171 3,301,508 9,161,677
Construction in progress 11,340,503 35,835,135 47,275,638
Total $ 317.804.597 5 5038264189 3 921831.018

Additional information on the City's capitat assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financiat Statements.
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Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2005, The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $231.1 million, of which
$44.5 million is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition, the City has a number of capital
leases and several installment notes outstanding. A summary of total iong-term debt is shown in Figure 5.

Bonded Debt, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable

Figure 5
Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005

Bonded debt S 45978341 § 55634500 $ 184160805 $ 174446344 S 230,139,146 $ 231,080 844
Obligations under capital

leases 13,341,744 13,551,475 - - 13,341,744 13,551,475
Instaliment note payable 185,000 125,000 11,867,713 18,303,144 12,062,713 18,428, 144

Total long-term debt S 58505085 $ 70310975 S 196028518 § 192749488 3 255533603 $ 263,060,463

The City's total debt increased by $7.5 million, or 2.9%, during the past fiscal year. The increase is primarily due
to draws on 2 new state revolving loan.

The City's most recent bond ratings, received in connection with the Series 2005 General Obligation Public
Improvement Bonds and the Series 20038 variable rate revenue refunding bonds, are shown below:

City (governmental activities):

Moody's Investor Services Aa3d
Standard & Poor's Af-
Public Works Commission (business-type activities):
Moody's Investor Services A1l
Standard & Poor's A+

The City's most recent bond issue in the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds (business-type activities) are
rated Aaa/VMIG1 (Moody's) and AAA/A-1+ (Standard & Poor's) based on municipal bond insurance policies.
These ratings were affirmed during a bond refinancing in fiscal year 2004.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal
debt margin for the City is approximately § 498.7 million. The City has no bonds authorized but unissued at June
30, 2005,

Additional information regarding the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 44 ~52 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

Governmental Activities: The most important factor impacting the budget for fiscal year 2006 was the planned
Phase V annexation of approximately 27 square miles with a resident population of approximately 43,000. A stay
of the annexation issued by the North Carolina Supreme Court on July 12, 2004, remained in place until the North

Carolina Supreme Court declined to hear the appeals on August 19, 2005. The original fiscal year 2006 budget
approved by City Council on May 23, 2005, assumed that the Phase V annexation would not be effective in fiscal
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year 2006; however the budge! inciuded sufficient funding to maintain existing service 'evels for the City’s current
resicdents while ensuring readiness to serve the annexation area within 30 days of a favorabie court decision.

The City Council originally approved a 528.8 miillion general fund budget for fiscal year 2006, which represented a
$13.1 miilicn or 11.7% decrease from the original budget for fiscal year 2005. The tax rate remains the same at
53 cents per $100 vaiue. The primary reasons for the budget decrease were the axclusion of $11 million in
expenditures due to the annexation stay, a $8.2 milion appropriation in the fiscal year 2005 for one-time
expenditures for the 800 MHz radio system upgrade and the acquisition of fire district assets, and 31.4 million in
payroll savings projected due to employee turnover. These reductions were partially offset by increases of $2
million for employee pay increases based on 4 percent of pay range “midpoints”, and $1.3 million for operating
and equioment expenses for three new facilities (Fire Station 14, Festival Park and the Transportation Museum}
and the new computerized traffic signal system, $850,000 in expanded utility and vehicle operaticn expenses and
$566.000 for additional debt service and iocan repayment to the Vehicle Warranty Fund.

The City Council has approved budget increases of $11.8 million or 11.9% bringing the General Fund budget for
fiscal year 2006 to $110.6 million. The budget expansion is primarily due to servicing the Phase V annexation
area effective September 30, 2005. Over §6.8 million was appropriated to extend services to the annexation area
and $1.9 million was appropriated to restore funding reductions initiated to mitigate the financial impact of the
annexation stay. The increases also include approximately $300,000 each for equipment purchases and park
improvements previously encumbered or designated from the fiscal year 2005 budget, and to cover increased fuel
cosis, $765,000 for solid waste and communications initiatives approved by City Council, and $422,000 to fund
additional fire fighters to serve the current city.

For fiscal year 2008, the annexaiicn is expected to result in a net loss of revenues of approximately $600,000, as
a resuit of the delayed billing of 2005 ad valorem taxes on real and personal property and the lfoss of revenues
from interlocal agreements with Cumberland County for fire and recreation services; however, the City expects to
obtain $3.5 millien in instaliment financing proceeds to fund vehicle and equipment acquisition. [n subsequent
years, the Phase V annexation is expected to increase Fayetteville's property tax base by $1.7 billion, increasing
the estimated current year property tax revenue by $8.6 million and other revenues by $6.3 mitlion.

Business — type Activities: The City considered many factors when setting the Fiscal Year 2006 budget, user fees
and charges. Purchased power and generation expenses represent the largest expenditure in these funds, at
$96.8 million. The power supply contract with Progress Energy took effect on July 1, 2003, generating savings on
the bulk purchase of power, however, the voiatility of the fuel market has mitigated total savings at this time. The
impact of the high cost of fuel for power generation is projected to be mitigated by a $7.0 million fuel adjustment
charge collected from custemers. The FY2006 budget does not reflect an increase in electric base rates. The
cost of service and rates for electric customers will be reviewed during FY2006. Additional funds needed in the
FY2006 water and wastewater budget have been provided through a combination of increased water and
wastewater rates effective September 1, 2005 and an appropriation of retained earnings.

Transfers to the General Fund are expected to be $9.8 million in fiscal year 2008 due to the 5% electric sales
transfer policy, street lighting and a transfer {o pay the General Fund's share of existing utility related
infrastructure debt service.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund fiscal year 20086 budgets supperts a number of projects to improve
areas such as street lighting upgrades and special requests, downtown utility system upgrades, downtown
stregfscape improvements, new street lighting in annexed areas, utility relecation for many roadway widening
projects, and supporting and improving service to existing industry. The Fleet Maintenance Internal Service Fund
gccounts for revenues and expenditures of consolidated fleet maintenance functions previously performed
separately by the City and Public Werks Commission.  In addition, a 2% empioyee performance pay zllowance
plus a CP! increase of 3% is included in the Electric, Water and Wastewater fiscal year 2006 budgets.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for these with an interest in this area.
Quastions concarning zny of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be
directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayetteville, 433 Hay Strest, Fayetteville, NC 28301,
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financial
position of all governmental and business activities and the major and
nonmajor funds. They also serve as an introduction to the more detaiied
schedules that follow in subsequent sections.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2005

Business Total
Governmental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Assets
Cash and investments $ 60,355,366 32,534,429 92,889,795
Taxes receivable 3,415,703 - 3,415,703
Accounts receivabie 4,656,479 33,557,655 38,214,134
internal balances 372,511 (372,511) -
Assessment receivable 483 606 - 483,606
Due from other governments 6,952,468 3,687 6,956,156
Inventories 425 8286 11,007,383 11,433,209
Prepaid expenses 266,935 252,124 519,059
Noncurrent portion of note receivable 6,131,964 - 6,131,964
Restricted asset - cash and investments 16,616,285 46,830,913 63,447,168
Restricted asset - accounts receivable - 886,078 886,078
Restricted assat - collateral pledged - 243,302 243,302
Other assets - 4,176,240 4,176,240
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 47,015,694 49,801,080 96,816,774
Other capital assets,
net of depreciation 270,788,903 554 025,339 824,814,242
Total assets 417 481,710 732,945,719 1,150,427.429
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,486,188 32,283,621 45 769,809
Restricted liabifities - accounts payable - 5,168,208 5,168,208
Unearned revenues 1,122,079 39,910 1,161,989
Unearned deposits 61,325 2,035,327 2,096,652
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 10,869,659 12,836,029 23,805,688
Due in more than one year 63,333,145 180,048,580 243,381,725
Total liabilities 88,972,396 232,411,675 321,384,071
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related 263,057,769 426,048 564 689,108,333
Restricted for:
Capital proiects - 512,536 512,536
Debt service - 817,633 817,633
Cther purpeses 2,446.529 - 2,446,529
Unrestricted 63.005.018 73.155.311 136.160.327
Total net assets $ 328,508,314 S 500.534,044 $ 829042358

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this siatement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2005

Qther Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 40994201 §& 11,501478 § 52495679
Taxes receivable 3,088,741 102,238 3,191,879
Accounts receivable 10,141,018 7,427,980 17,568,998
interfund receivable 372,511 1,329,502 1,702,013
Assessments receivable 478,454 5,152 483,606
Inventories 149,279 - 148,279
Restricted asset - cash and investments - 16,616,255 16.616.255
Total assets $ 55225204 $ 36982605 & 92207,809
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 6,173,705 $ 2,909,541 $ 9,083,246
Interfund payables - 1,329,502 1,328,502
Uneamned deposits 61,325 - 61,325
Deferred revenues 5,026,126 5,915,336 11,841,462
Taotal liabilities 11,261,156 11,154,379 22, 415,535
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 9,500,835 2,623,026 12,123,861
For encumbrances 1,713,453 8,184,011 9,897 484
For inventories 149,279 - 149,279
For downtown 430,746 - 430,746
For wireless 911 - 20,487 20,487
Far county recreation 773,259 - 773,259
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years 3,671,062 - 3,671,062
For special purpose 3,528,340 220,000 3,749,340
For debt service 4,069,134 - 4,069,134
Undesignated 20,126,940 - 20,126,940
Unreserved, reported in honmajor:
Designated for subsequent years
Special revenue - 852,207 852,207
Capital projects - 12,668,139 12,668,139
Undesignated
Special revenue - 1.260.356 1.260.356
Total fund balances 43,964 048 25.828,226 £9.792.274
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 55225204 % 36,982605 § 92.207.809

The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Recaonciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of nat assets are different because:

Ending fund balance - governmentaf funds § 69792274

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 317,561,137

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 10,822,736

Costs of bond issuance are current-period expenditures in the funds, but will be deferred
in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the outstanding debt. 505,529

Prepaid expenses are current-period expenditures in the funds, but are assets not
availabie to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, are capitalized. 445,073

Accrued tax penalties receivable are not available to pay for current-pericd expenditures

and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds. 223,722

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Warranty fleet
expenses, fleet maintenance expenses and insurance expenses to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the intemnai service funds are included in governmentai activities. 4.911,329

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is not a current expenditure and therefore

not recarded in the funds. {631,730}

Long-term liabiiities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (75,121,756}
Net assets of governmental activities $ 328.508.314

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues

Ad valorem taxes

QOther taxes

intergovernmental

Other functional

Miscellaneous

Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expendifures
Current:
Administration
Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Recreation and community facilities
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees
Issue costs
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Refunding Bonds
Capital leases
Transfers in
Transfers out
Payment to refund bond escrow agent

Premium on bonds
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

QOther Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
$ 38,622,100 - $ 39622100
30,882,137 3,156,143 34,038,280
9,684,982 5,066,899 14,751,881
5,003,604 - 5,003,604
1,348,255 2,555,019 3,803,274
1,292,002 266,605 1,558,697
87,833,170 11,044 666 98,877,836
11,840,445 54 11,840,499
49,581,422 1,628,435 51,209,857
7,465,262 2,424,089 8,889,351
6,487,083 1,506,124 7,993,207
689,833 8,834,602 6,524 435
8,726,534 3,449,047 12,176,481
5,927,967 1,069,473 6,997,440
1,767,430 494 673 2,262,103
- 368,693 368,693
92,485,976 19,776,090 112,262,066
(4,652,806) {8,731,424) (13,384,230}
- 21,261,589 21,261,589
3,104,407 - 3,104,407
8,624,200 5,710,009 15,334,209
{5,918,009) - {5,816,009)
- (6,265,297) (6,265,297)
- 431,212 431,212
6,812,598 21,137,513 27,950,111
2,158,792 12,406,089 14,565,881
41,804,256 13,422 137 55,226,393
$  43.064 048 25828226 § 687082.274



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful fives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e.
sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financiai
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of govemmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in
the treatment of leng-term debt and related accounts.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmentai funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of intemal service funds is reported with
governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial staiements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statemnent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Variance
With Final
Qriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actuat {Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 46519044 $ 39373126 § 39622100 248,974
Other taxes 33,269,053 30,440,667 30,882,137 441,470
Intergovernmental 8,548,486 9,726,483 9,684,982 {41,501)
Other functiona 3,531,513 4,460,428 5,003,604 543,178
Miscellaneous 1,243,283 1,134,445 1,348,255 213,810
Interast earned on investments 529,000 806,500 1.292,092 485 582
Total revenues 93,738,379 85,941 647 7.833.170 1.891.523
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Administration 15,135,808 12,930,232 11,840,445 1,089,787
Public safety 55,109,066 52,284,837 48 581,422 2,703,415
Environmental protection 7,438,347 8,155,703 7,485,262 6580.441
Transportation 8,030,299 7,154,186 5,487,083 667,103
Economic and physical development 842,726 1,100,492 689,833 410,659
Recreation and community facilities 9,854,932 §,902,537 8,726,534 1,178,003
Debt service:
Principal 8,614,207 7,554,585 5,927,967 1,626,618
Interest and fees 2,243,272 1,921,005 1.767.430 183 875
Total expenditures 107,268.658 101,003.577 82485976 8.517.601
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (13,530.279) (15,061,930} (4.852.806) 10,409,124
OTHER FINANCGING SOURCES (USES)
Capital leases 6,835,678 3,100,000 3,104,407 4,407
Transfers in 9,501,161 9,661,561 9,624,200 (37,361}
Transfers out {4,583,125) (6,314,119} (5,916,009) 398,110
Appropriated fund balance 1,696,565 8614488 - {8.614.488)
Total other financing sources (uses) 13.530.27% 15,061,830 6,812,598 (8,249,332)
Net change in fund balances 3 - 8 - 2159792 & 24506 782
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 41,804,256
FUND BALANCE - ENDING ’ 5 43964048

The nows to the financial statements are an intagral part of this statement.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Staternent of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2005

Enterprise Funds

Water and QOther internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments § 19,B44B55 3 9420710 S 3268854 S 32534429 § 7.B55689
Accounts receivable 18,676,311 13,834,817 1,050,214 33,561,342 171,912
Interfund receivable {267,391} 267,391 - - -
Inventories 9,925,113 1,060,713 21.557 11,007,383 276,546
Prepaid expenses 123,412 128712 - 252,124 165.833
Totat unrestricted current assets 48 302,300 24,712,343 4 340 535 77,355278 8,473 980
Restricted current assets
Restricted cash and investments 18,860,842 26,457,535 512,536 46,830,813 -
Accounts receivabie 10.548 875,429 - 886,678 -
Coltateral piedged in lieu of deposits 243 302 - - 243302 -
Total restricted current assets 20,114,683 27,333,064 512 538 47,960,293 -
Total current assets 68,415,993 52.045 467 4853171 125,315,571 8473980
Noncurrent assets
Other assets 1,430,727 2,857,513 88,000 4,176,240 -
Capital assats 213,661,439 364,719,286 25 445 703 603,826 419 243 460
Totai noncurrent assets 215082 157 387, 376,799 25,533,703 508,002 559 243 480
Total assets 283.509.150 418,422 206 30,386,874 733,318.23¢ 8,717,440
Llabilities and net assets
Current fiabilities o be paid from
unrestricted assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,278,800 16,634,841 369,871 32,283.621 3,771,212
Current portica of long term debt 6,987,085 5,713,813 - 12,700,008 2,303
Interfund payables - - 372,511 372511 .
Accrued vacation - - 135,121 135121 22.133
Total current Habilities to be paid
from unrestricted assets 22 265 G604 22,348,754 877,503 45 452 151 3.795.548
Current liabiliies to be paid from
restricted assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3.883 570 1,284,638 - 5 168,208 -
Total current lizbilties o be paid
from restricted assets 3883570 1,284 638 - 5168208 -
Total cument liabilittes 26,148,474 23,633,392 877,583 50,660,368 3,795 648
Noncuirent liabilities
2,035,327

Uneamed deposits - 2,035,327 - -
38,910 38910 3.353

Deferred revenies - -
Long-term debt 43 900 947 136,138,633 - 180,048 580 7.112
Total nancurrent liabilities 43,008 947 138,173.960 39,910 182,123,817 10.465
Total liabilities 70,069,421 161,807,352 917 413 232,784,186 3,808,113

Net assels

Invested in capitai assets, net of related debt 164,636,492 235,966,369 25,445,703 426,048,564 234,045
Restricted net assets - - 512,536 512,536 -
Debt service 413,005 404,528 - 817,633 -
Unrestricted 43 400,232 21,.243.857 3,511,222 73,15831% 4.677 282
Total nat assets § 213448728 5 D57 514854 5 25460461 2§ 500534044 5 4911327

The noas 1o me fnancial statements are ah mlegral part of s statemant. 21



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Entarprise Funds

Water and Other Iinternai
Electric Wastewater Entarprise Setvice
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services § 146069329 § 47.044834 3 3120683 § 196234646 § -
Other revenue from operations - - 17,874 317,574 99,722
Intarfund cherges and emplayes contributions - - - - 13,420,182
Totsi aperating revenues 146 062.329 47.044 534 3,438,557 196,552,520 13.518.904
Operating expenses
General and sdministrative 9,117,951 9,526,870 - 18,644 521 -
Power supply and generation and siectric operations 105,502,250 - - 105,502,250 -
Water purification and distribution - 8,881,171 - 8.891.171 -
Sewer coitection and treatment - 8,477,953 - 8.477.993 -
Personnel - - 3,376,140 3.370.140 1,451,086
Maintenance and operations - - 2,525,034 2,625,034 11,726,528
Depreciation 13,510.921 11.802.521 2,174 602 27.488.044 368,260
Total operating expenses 128,131,122 38 688 555 B.168.776 174,899.453 13.213.875
Operating income {ioss) 17,838,207 8,346,075 4,731,219) 21,553.067 306.029
Nonoperating revenue {expense}
interest eamed an investments 998,865 951,680 67,489 2,018,035 236,028
Federai and State grants - . - 1.953,992 1,853,992 -
Passenger facility charges - - 438,428 438,428 -
Miscellaneaus revenue - - 91,706 91,796 -
Gein (loss) on disposal of capital assets (273,155) 66,536 - {2086,619) 1,403
Inierest expense {1.845,638) (5.317.637) (23,217} (7.186,480) {310y
Amortization (893,587) (832,976} {22,000} (1.848,573) -
Miscellaneous expense - - {271,023} {271,023) -
issue costs {162,278} {362, 886) - {555 164) -
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 2, 175.800% (5,625,283) 2.235 465 {5.565.618) 2371214
income (loas) before transfers
and contributions 15,762.407 2.720.785 {2485, 754) __15.087.449 543.150
Transfers in - - 1,206,000 1,206,000 -
Transfers out {B,564,156) (1.060.044) - (9,624.200) {1.004,000}
Capitai contributions 551,384 13 800.547 2,105,363 16,957,294 -
Change in net assets 8,149,635 15,561,299 815,609 24 526 543 (456,850}
Total net assets - beginning 205,300,084 242.053.555 28.653.852 476 007 501 5368177
Total net assets - ending 3 213.449.?32_ 3 257614854 8 204694681 5 5D0.534.044 3§ 4911327

The notes to the hnancai SIBEMants are an Integrat van of s statement peied



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Enterprise Funds

Watar and Other Intemal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Sarvice
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Operating acthvities
Casi received from customers $ 146217060 5 475894298 % 3,602,058 & 157413416 § 13,386,340
Other operating revenus - - 336,470 336,470 £8,722
Gash recsivad as defered revenues - - - B {7.378)
Cash paid to or on behalf of ampioyees for sarvices (9.978.240) {10,697,513) {3.264.491) [24,040.244) {1,508,872)
Cash paid for poods and services {19.249 683) {18,985,153) {2,617,704) {40,652,540) {11,656,013)
Cash paid for power supply and generation (85.180.415) - - (85,180,418} -
Net cash provided by {used In}
aperating aclivities 31,808.721 17.911.632 {2.043 667) 47,675,686 313,789
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in - - 1,206,000 1,206,000 -
Federal and state grants - - 1,953,292 1,953,992 -
Nonoperating revenles - - 530,224 530224 -
Transfers out (B,481,253) (1.142,947) - (9.624,200) (1.000,000)
Other - - (271.023) (271.023] -
Net cash provided {used) by noncapital
financing activities (8.481,253) {1.142.947) 3,419,183 {6.205,007) (1.000.C00)
Capital and ralated financing activities
Pruceads from sale of assets 28,438 B6,035 - 114,533 1,403
Proceeds fram debt issuance - 5,815,186 - 6,815,185 -
Contributad capital received 951,384 5,731,038 186,445 6,868.865 -
Capital contributions - Fegaral grant - - 1,918,918 1,918,918 -
Acquisition and canstruction of capital assets {12,625,341) (20,739,847) {2,263,152) {35,628.940) {7.650)
Principal paid an ¢ebt maturities (6.737.880) {4,806, 876) {26.410) {11,661,166) (2.236)
interast paid on debt maturities (2,007 .914) {5.710,523) (23,217) (7.741,654) {310)
Other capital asset transactions - - - - 28 421
Net cash provitled {used) by capital and
raiated financing activitias {20,391.853) {18.714,989) {207 416} {39.314,258) 19,628
Investing activities
Interast and dividends 998,866 951,680 67.489 2,018,035 236,028
Net change in investments (183,165} (2.157 973) - {2.341.138) -
Net cash provided (used) by invasting activiiies B815.701 {1.208,283) 67,489 (323.103) 236.028
Net increase (decroase) in cash and cash
equivalents/investmants 3,751,316 {3,152 597) 1.235.58¢ 1.834.318 (430,545}
Cash and cash aquivalantsfinvestments
Beginning of year 28.891.850 24,930 105 2.545 801 54 367 758 B.290,234
End of year 3 30643166 $ 21.777.508 % 3781400 8 56202074 5 7.855 689
Cash and cash equivalents 3 30,643,166 5 21,777,568 § 3.781400 § 562020784 % 7.859,689
Investments 9.062.531 14,100,737 - 23 163 268 -
Totzl cash and cash eguivalents/investments 3 J9.705.687 § 35878245 S 3.7B1.400 % J9365342 % 7.853 88¢
Unrestricted cash and eguivalents/investmenis 3 19,844 855 5 9420710 3 3,268,864 s 32,534,429 s 7.859.889
Restricted cash and equivaients/investments 19,860,842 26 457 535 512536 48,830 913 -
Total cash and cash squivalents/investrnents $ 3§ 7US 69T 5 35878245 § 3.781.400 5 79385242 § 7.859 584

The notes to the financigl statements are an integral part of this siatement. i



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year £nded June 30, 2006

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Totaf Funds
Reconciliation of operating income {loss}
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Operating income {ioss) $ 17.838,207 3 8,346078 §  (4,731,219) 21,553,067 § 06,028
Adjustments to reconciie operating incoms {loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation 13,510,821 11.802.521% 2,174,602 27,488,044 36,260
Allswance for uncoilectible accounts {32,110) 6,260 - (15,850} -
Chenge in assets and liabilitles
{Increase) decrease in accounts recelvabie 183,169 543,404 492079 1,218,652 {145,206}
(Increase) decrease in inveniory 311,524 (144,890) (11189} 155,435 17,528
{Increase) decreass in prepaid itermns - - - - 88.03¢9
{Increase) decrease in internal balances 262,901 (262,301} - B -
{Increase) decrease in othar current assets {48,208} {37,568 - {85,877} -
{Increase) decrease in ather assets {B78,767) (991,678) - {1,668,445) -
Increase {decrease) in accounis payable
and accrued liabilities 349,184 1,227,463 7.825 1,584,472 (23.684)
Increase {decresse) in accrued compernsated
absences - - 5,648 5.64% (57,786)
Increase {decrease)} in deferred revenues - - 18,598 18.558 {7.378)
Increase (decrease) in unearned deposits - {2 677 057} - {2 577.057) -
Total adjustments 13.870.514 9.565.553 2.687 552 25.123.619 7.770
Net cash provided by {used iIn) operating activities 3 31,808,721 £ 17.911.632 S {2.043.667) 47 676,688 3 313,789
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contribusted capital assais k] (82.503) S 14.554690 5 - 14 471,787 5 -

The noes to the fimanciai statements are an integral par of this statement
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City of Fayettevilie, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2005

Pension Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
Assets
Cash and investments § 5925482 3§ 1,280,847
Accaunts receivable 11.883 3.270
Total assets 5.637.365 1.254 117
Liabilities
Accounts payable 24,736 -
Total liabilities 24 736 -
Net assets
Held in Frust for:
Held in Trust 5012629 1,254,117
Total net assets $ 5912629 3 1.284.117

Tne notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent. 25



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005
Pension Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
Additions
Other revenue from gperations $ - 3 42,797
Contributions 356,876 122 679
Investment earnings 357,327 29,351
Total additions 714,203 184,327
Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums 408,901 329,344
Total deductions 408,901 329,344
Change in net assets 305,302 (134,517}
Total net assets - beginning 5,607,327 1,388,834
Totai net assets - ending 3 5912629 & 1.254.117

The notes to the financial statements are an

integrat part af this statement. 26



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are intended to communicate information necessary for a
fair presentation of financial position and results of operations that are
not readily apparent from, or cannot be included in, the financial
statements themselves. The notes supplement the financial statements,
are an integral part thereof, and are intended fo be read together with the
financial statements.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Motes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2005

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City”) was established in 1783. The City operates under a
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: public safety, environmental
protection, transportation, economic and physical development, recreation and community facilities, electric,
water and wastewater utility services and general administrative services. The City receives substantial
revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem taxes on the City of Fayettevilie's citizens represent a
significant portion of the generai government revenues.

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carclina have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's
accounting policies are described below.

A - Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financiai
statements present the City and its component units. GASB Statemenis number 14 and 39 defines
component uhits as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government
are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accouniable if it appoints a voling majority
of the organization's governing body and a) i is able to impose its will on that organization or b} there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens

upon, the primary government,

This statement provides two methods for reporting component units in the financial statements of the primary
government; discrete presentation and blending. Discrete presentation means that data will be presented in
one or more separate columns to the right of the primary government data columns. Blending means that
the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the primary government. if the
units provide services or benefits exclusively, or almost exclusively, to the primary government, or if the
component units and the primary government have "substantively identical boards,” the legally separate
component units should be incorporated by blending. If the units do not meet these criteria, their data shouid
be incorporated by discrete presentation.

Based on evaluating these characteristics, the foilowing is a brief review of the component units in the City's
reporting entity:

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation

The City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of issuing
honds to build City facilities and park improvements, as well as for the defeasance and refunding of 1989
certificates of participation. The City leases the police administration building, Festival Park and Westover
Recreation Center from the Corporation with rental revenues being used by the Corporation to retire the
bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation as the Corporation provides services exclusively
to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is presented in the accompanying financial statements as

a nonmajor special revenue fund.

City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc.

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of assisting in the
development of the Linear Park cowntown. Linear Park, Inc is shown in a blended presentation as it
provides services exclusively to the City. Its operating fund is presented in the accompanying financial
statements as a nonmajor capital project fund.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2005
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B - Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activites display
information abaut the primary government {the City) and its component units. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-fype activities of
the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged fo

external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been
reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the cperational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not ciassified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Fiduciary funds are not included in these

statements.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category -
governmental, propriefary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining govemmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, resuit from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the foliowing major governmental fund;

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.
The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The
primary expenditures are for public safety, parks and recreation, street maintenance, and solid waste.

The City reports the foilowing nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Response Fund accounts for Enhanced
and Wireless 811 revenues and related expenditures. The Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund
accounts for federal and state grants. The Storm Water Management Fund accounts for specified taxes and
maintenance of the storm water system. The Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund accounts for debt service on

certain municipal buildings and park improvements.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2005
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B - Basis of Presentation (continued)

Capital Project Funds. Capitai Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
or construction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for information
technology and other projects supporting the entire govemment. The Public Safety Fund accounts for
projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Recreational and Cultural Fund
accounts for parks and similar projects. The Transportation Fund accounts for projects to improve
transportation and related services throughout the City. The Bond Improvement Fund accounts for bond
proceeds and their use. The Economic and Physical Development Fund accounts for construction and
improvement of various public facilities. The Linear Park Fund accounts for projects associated with
development of the Linear Park Downtown. The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for Lumbee River Electric
Membership Corporation Territory Agreement revenues and assaciated activities.

The City reports the foillowing major enterprise funds:

Blectric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butler-Warner Generation
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas.

Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the water and wastewater facilities
for the customers within the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas.

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of the
municipal transit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset
acquisition/construction of the Fayetteville Regicnal Airport.

The City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund. Intemal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis. The
Warranty Fleet Fund is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with
internally leasing vehicles. The Fleet Maintenance Fund is used to account for the accumulation and
aliocation of costs associated with maintenance of the City's vehicles. The Insurance Fund is used to
account for the accumutation and allocation of costs associated with health, workers compensation, and

fiability claims.

Pension Trust Fund. These funds accumulate contributions in order to pay retirement benefits o eligible
participants. The Special Separation Allowance Fund accounts for the Law Enforcement Officers” Special
Separation Allowance, a single-employer, and public employee retirement system. The Supplemental PWC
Pension Fund accounts for the PWC Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan, a single-emplayer defined

benefit pension plan.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund. These funds are used fo account for rescurces legally held in trust for use by
others. The Police Benefit and Fireman's Benefit Funds account for resources held in {rust for these two
groups of individuals. All resources of the funds, inciuding any earnings on invested resources, may be used
to support the organizations’ activities. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be

preserved as capital.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2005
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time fiabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the refated cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City
gives (or receives) vaiue without directly receiving {or giving) equal vaiue in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property axes is recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The City's enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the funds' principal angoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City's utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the City's utility
funds include the costs of sales and services, general and administrative services and depreciation of capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and

expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurabie and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general iong-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The City considers ail revenues available if they are collected within 80 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual at June 30, since taxes receivabie are materially past due and are not considered to
be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
Notes to Financial Statements {continued)
June 30, 2005
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued)

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property
taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Cumberland
County is responsible for billing and coilecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles an behalf of all
municipaiities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of Fayetteville. For motor vehicies
registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month afier the
vehicies are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due.
Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in Cumberiand County from March 2004 through
February 2005 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. Uncollected taxes, which were billed during
this period, are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.
Those taxes for vehicles registered from March 1 through the fiscal year-end apply to the 2005-2006 fiscal
year and are not shown as receivables at June 30, 2005. For vehicles registered under the annual system,
taxes are due on May 1 of each year. For those vehicles registered and billed under the annual system,
uncollected taxes are reported as a receivable on the financial statements, if material, and are offset by
deferred revenues because the due date and the date upon which interest begins to accrue is prior to June
30. The taxes for vehicles registered annually that have already been collected as of year-end are also
reflected as deferred revenues at June 30, 2005 because they are intended to finance the City's operations

during the 2006 fiscal year.

All GASB Statements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (*FASB") Statements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with the GASB are applied in both the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues, which are uneamed at year-end, are recorded

as unearned revenues,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted
resources first then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

D — Budgetary Data

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for
the general, selected special revenue, and enterprise funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year
end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial Assistance special
revenue fund and capital project funds. Enterprise capital project funds are consolidated with the operating
funds for reparting purposes. The City's internal service funds are intra-governmental service funds, which
operate under financial pians that were adopted by the governing board at the time the Clty's budget
ordinance was approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the medified
accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level
for the general, selected special revenue, and proprietary funds and at the project level for selected special
revenue and capitai project funds. Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the department or project
level, as appropriate, of any fund must be approved by the City Council. During the year, several
amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the
fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annuai

ordinance can be adopted.
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E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
State law (G.S. 159-31). The City may designate, as an official depesitory, any bank or savings assaciation
whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time deposit accounts such
as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law (G.S. 159-30(c)) authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully
guaranteed bath as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina;
bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or pubiic authority (including the North Carolina
Educational Assistance Authority); obligations of certain no guaranteed federal agencies; certain high guality
issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Caroiina Capital Management Trust

(NCCMT).

The City's investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securiies of the NCCMT
Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are vaiued at fair vaiue, which is the
NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair vaiue. Money market
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at
amortized cost. Nonparticipating interest earning investment contracts are reported at cost.

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide for
periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported at fair

value as determined by quoted market prices,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider demand
deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less fo be cash and cash

equivalents. :
Ad Valorem Taxes Receivabie

in accordance with State law, the City levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July
1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not
accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are based on the assessed vaiues as of January 1, 2004,

Allowance for Uncoliectible Receivables

The City operates enterprise funds that provide credit in the normal course of business to customers
primarily located in Fayetteville, North Carolina. The City performs on-going credit evaluations of its
customers and maintains allowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate
collection losses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City's
estimations and historically have not been significant. Other receivables that historically experience
uncoliectibie accounts are aiso shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated
by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.
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E - Assets, Liahilities, and #und Equity (continued)
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivabiles {continued)

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following allowances for
doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2005:

Fund
General Fund:

Taxas receivable 3 740,574

Accounts receivable 1,045,760

Assessments receivable 163,467
Special Revenue Fund:

Taxes receivable 14,316

Accounts receivable 1,923,580
Transit Operating

Accounts receivable 2.001
Airport Operating

Accounts receivable 1,602
Electric Fund:

Accounts receivable 229,193
Water and Wastewater Fund:

Accounts receivable 61,851

Total S 4182344

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided
or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “Interfund receivable” or “Interfund
payabie” on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as “internal balances” on the statement of
net assets in the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories

laventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market. The costs of governmental fund-type
inventories, which consist of materials and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed
rather than when they are purchased. The costs of enterprise fund-type inventories, which consist of
generation fuel, materials and spare parts, are expensed when used rather than when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2005, are recorded as
prepaid items.

3]
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued)

Restricted Assets and Liabilities

In the capital project and enterprise funds the City has classified as restricied the assets representing
deposits, reserves, capital project appropriations and unexpended bond proceeds because their use is
completely restricted to the purpose for which the bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds
were set aside. Liabilities due to be repaid from restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities.

interest rate swaps

The City enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify interest rates on outstanding debt. Other than
the net interest expenditures resulting from these agreements, no amounts are recorded in the financial

statements.

Capital Assets

The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 ($2,500 in the
Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Purchased or
constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to
July 1, 2001 and storm water network assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004 are reported at estimated
historical cost using deflated current cost. Although GASB 34 allows retroactive reporting of the storm water
network infrastructure to be delayed until June 30, 2007, the City has reported it this year effective July 1,
2004. Utility (electric, water, and wastewater) capital assets purchased or constructed since 1958 are
recorded at cost. Contributed utility assets are recorded at estimated value at the date of acquisition. Utility
assets acquired prior to 1958 are camied on an estimated cost basis. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets,
as applicable. Gains and losses on dispositions of capital assets are credited or charged to operations.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimatied

Useful Lives
Asset Class {Years)
infrastructure 15 - 50
Buildings 40
Utility plant systems 20-45
Improvements 5-15
Vehicles 5-20
Furniture and equipment 5-10
Computer equipment 3

Interest expense that relates to the cost of acquiring or constructing capital assets in enterprise funds is
capitalized. Interest expense incurred in connection with construction of capital assets is reduced by interest
earned on the investment of funds borrowad for construction in accordance with FASE 62 "Capitalization of
interest Cost in Situations Invalving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants.”
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Other Assets

Facility investment fees credit is given on a deilar per dollar basis for off-site water/wastewater approach
mains necessary to serve City approved projects. The facility investment fees credit, if not utilized in the
initial development, will be available to the developer for use in other City approved projects for a period not
to exceed § years from the original contract date, unless otherwise stated in contract or through extension

approved by PWC.
Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to seven (7} weeks earned vacation leave
with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the City's government-wide and proprietary funds, an
expense and a liability for compensated absences, including compensatory time and holiday pay, and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The City's sick leave policy provides for unfimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not
vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of
length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City has no obligation for the accumulated sick
leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made. However, the City's sick leave
policy for Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows 25% of accumulated sick leave to be
paid at the time of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount of this sick leave to ultimately be paid is
included in the financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the appiicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized aver the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reporied net of the
applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized

over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond pramiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts an debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
fram the actual debt proceeds received, are reporied as deht service expenditures.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on
resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that ares not
appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance reprssent
tentative management pians that are subject to change.
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Net Assets/Fund Balances (continued)

State law (G.S. 158-13(b) (16)) restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget to an
amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year

preceding the budget year.
The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Reserved

Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and reserves
for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law (G.S. 159-8{a)). This amount is
usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been offset by deferred

revenues.

Reserved for encumbrances - portion of fund balance availabie to pay for commitments related to purchase
orders or contracts, which remain, unperformed at year-end.

Reserved for inventories - porticm of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it represents
the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available resources,

Reserved for downtown - portion of fund balance availabie for appropriation for projects in the Central
Business District.

Reserved for wireless 911 - portion of fund balance available to pay for the acquisition and operation of
wireless 911 services.

Reserved for county recreation — portion of fund balance available to pay for the recreational activities of
Cumberland County.

Unreserved

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - partion of the total fund balance available for appropriation
that has been designated for the adopted 2005 - 2006 hudget ordinance.

Designated for special purpose - portion of fund balance identified for specific uses in the general fund and
special revenue funds,

Designated for debt service - portion of fund balance designated to meet future principal and interest
payments on outstanding debt.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.

F - Reclassification

For comparability, certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform
to the current year presentation.
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G - Prior Period Adjustment

During the year, the City capitalized infrastructure assets related to the Stormwater inventory as allowed by
GASB Statement No. 34. These assets were capitalized as of July 1, 2004. The resuit of this prior period
adjustment was o increase in the City's net assets for governmental activities and its infrastructure assets by

$3,420,393.
H - Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results

coutd differ from those estimates.
| - Upcoming Pronouncements

GASE Statement No. 42 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital
Assets and for Insurance Recoveries,” will be effective for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2004. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporiing standards for
impairment of capital assets. A capital asset is considered impaired when its service utility has
declined significantly and unexpectedly. This Statement also clarifies and establishes accounting
requirements for insurance recoveries. The City does not expect this pronouncement to have a
significant impact on the financial statements. '

GASB Statement No. 45 “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-
employment Benefits Other Than Pensions” is effective in three phases based on a
government's total annual revenuss in the first fiscal year ending after June 15, 1899. This
Statement is effective for periods beginning afier December 15, 2008, for phase 1 governments
(those with total annual revenues of $100 million or more); after December 15, 2007, for phase 2
governments (those with total annual revenues of $10 million or more but less than $100 million};
and after December 15, 2008, for phase 3 governments {those with total annual revenues of less
-than $10 million). Earfier implementation is encouraged. In addition to pensions, many state and
local governmental employers provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB) as part of the total
compensation offered to attract and retain the services of qualified employees. OPEB includes post-
employment healthcare, as well as other forms of post-employment benefits (for example, life
insurance) when provided separately from a pension plan. This Statement establishes standards for
the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities
(assets), note disclosures, and. if applicable, required supplementary information (RSI) in the
financial reports of state and local governmental empioyers. The City has not yet determined the
effect that this pronouncement will have on their financial statements.
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A - Depaosits

All of the City's depasits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
Dedicated Method, ali deposits that exceed the Federal Depository Insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities heid by the City's agents in the City's name. Under the Pooling Method, which
is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's
agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the
City, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's agents in their names. The amount of the
pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the
actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the
State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer
does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the
exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the Pooling Method, the potentiai exists for
undercollaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer
of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public

deposits under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2005, the City’s deposits had a carrying amount of $23,731,637 and a bank balance of
$24,525 425. Of the bank balance, Federal Deposit insurance covered $379,071, and the remaining
balance was covered by collateral under the Pooling Method. The City had $13,325 in the pelty cash and

change funds.

B - investments

The funds of the City of Fayetteville are invested in compliance with the provisions of North Carolina General
Statutes 159-30 and 159-31. The City's Investment Policy is a board-approved policy.

At June 30, 2005, the City Investment balances were as follows:

Less than 6
Reported Value Fair Value Months 6-12 Months 1-& Years

U.5. Government Securities & 4296 5 4296 §$ - 8 5 4,295
1.8, Government Agencies 54,631,786 54 605,566 6,561,620 5,103,256 42,940,690
Commercial Paper 27,890,805 28,030,185 28,030,185 - -
N.C. Education Assistance Authority 16,300,000 16,300,000 16,300,000 -
N.C. Capital Management Trust 35,652.424 35,652,424 35,471,564 180,860
Total Primary Govemment 134,579,311 134,582,471 86,363,369 5,284,116 42,544,586
U.5. Government Agencies - Fiduciary Funds 1,074,420 1,074,420 1,074,420 -
Equity Mutual Funds-Fidugiary Funds 4,114,589 4,114,598 4,114,599
Reparting Entity Total 3 139,768,330 § 139781480 S D1552388 5 5284116 3§ 42044986

At June 3C, 2005, the City of Fayetteville had $35471,564 invested with the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust's Cash Portfolio. For extended duration of 0. years (329 days) the City had $180.869
investad in the Term Portfolio. Third-party custodians who take delivery of the investment securities on behalf
of the City held investments of 54,114,599 for the Supplementai PWC Pension Trust Fund,
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B — Investments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates,
the City's investment palicy provides for structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet
cash requirements for the ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open
market prior to maturity. Also the City's investment policy requires purchases of securities to be laddered
with staggered maturity dates and fimits all securities other than Treasuries, Agencies, and North Carolina
state and local bonds to a final maturity of no more than three years. Treasuries, Agencies, and North
Carolina state and local bonds are limited to maturities not exceeding 10 years.

Credit Risk. State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). The City minimizes credit risk by limiting investments
to the types allowed by North Carolina General Statutes 159-30. The City diversifies the investment portfolio
to minimize the impact of potential losses from any one security ar from any one individual issuer. Also, the
City pre-qualifies the financial institutions brokers/dealers and requires them to meet specific financial and
registration conditions. As of June 30, 2005, the City's commercial paper was rated A1 by Moody’s Investors
Service and P1 by Standard & Poor's. The City's investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash
Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's s of June 30, 2005. The City's investments in
the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is not rated. The Term Portfolio is authorized to invest in
obligations of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high grade money market instruments as permitted
under North Carolina general statutes 159-30 as amended. The City's investments in US Agencies (Federal
Home Loan Bank, Fannie Mae, and Federal Farm Credit Banks) are rated AAA by Standard & Poor's and

Aaa by Moody'’s Investors Service.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The City requires that investment securities are in the name of the City of
Fayetteville and are held by a centralized independent third-party custadian. The City requires that the
independent third-party custodian issue a safekeeping receipt to the Chief Financial Officer listing the
specific instrument, rate, maturity, and other pertinent information as evidence.  All investment security
purchases and sales are on a delivery verses payment basis and are made through the independent third-

party custodian by written instruction.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any one
issuer. More than 5% of the City's investments are in NC Education Assistance Authority securities,
Wachovia Overnight Commercial Paper, Nord L/B Lux Commercial Paper, Federal Home Loan Banks and
Fannie Mae. These investments are 12.11%, 11.02%, 5.92%, 26.91% and 9.87%, respectively, of the City's
total investments. All government agency investments for the fiduciary funds are in Federal Home Loan

Mortgage securities.
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B — Investments (continued)

Reconciliation to cash and investments:

Totals per Footnote:

Total investments 139,768,330
Cash {demand deposits) 17,344 625
Cash (escrow) 5,642,292
Fireman's Relief CD 165,000
L.umbee River Contract CD 579,720
Petty cash 13,325
Total cash and investments 163,513,282
{s per Balance Shee
Cash and investments - unrestricted g2 889,795
Cash and investments - restricted 63,447,168
Pension trust cash and investments 5,825,482
Private-purpose trust cash and investmenis 1,250 847
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 163,513,292
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005, was as follows:

Primary Government
{As Praviously
Raported) {Rastated)
Balarce Prict Pariod Balance Baiznce
July 1, 2004 Adiustmenrt Juiy 1, 2004 Incresses Doacraases Adiustments Transfers June 30, 2005
Goveramantal activities:
Capital assets not baing deprecatad:
Land $ 34367330 3 - S 34357330 & 14488588 & (141B27y § H - § 35675191
Construclion 1n pregress 8.208.642 . g 208 542 5623572 {4491 7111 - 11.340.503
Total capital 238818 not being depreciated 43 575 372 - 42 575.972 8.073.260 14,533 55381 - - 47 015,694
Capital assets baing depreciated.
Infrastruciure 309,828,000 13,183,742 323.011,742 8,105,648 . - 331,117.580
Buiidings and improvemenis 42,932,357 - 42.532 257 717,545 {18.820) - . 43,631,382
Equipenant, furninere and fixiuras 14,634,350 - 14,634,390 4,480,838 {1,375,424) 223171 223.235 18,188,210
Vanhicles 24 316,280 - 24316 350 3.800.826 (G654, 466) 357.878 {95.7381 27.824.051
Total capital assets beng depraciated 381.711 087 13,183,742 404 394 835 17,205,557 12.048 8101 3B1.150 126 487 420.759.233
{ass acsisnulated depraciation for :
Infrastructura (79.886.201} (9.763.249) (89,642,550} {B.992,672) - - (S8 B642,222)
Buildings and improvemeris (15,681,818} - (15,681,819) (1.331,948) 12,614 - {17.001,154)
Eguigment, furndure and fidures {11.844,567) - (11,644,867 (1,885.555) 1,374,152 {206,705} - (12,283,074)
Vehicles (20 081 5261 . 120.081.9261 {2.117.218) 647,288 (285,737} {128 437} (21 563 BEC)
Total accumuiated gapreciation {127.284,813) {9,763,348) (437,058,262) $ {14.327.195) § 2034086 5 (482442) 3§ 126457} {149 70,330
Total capial assels being depraciated, net 264 416,184 34260303 267.838,577 270.788,802
Gavemmental aciivity capital assets, nel $ 207.592.156 § 311412 548 $ 317 804 587

See note 1G related to prior period adjustment.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary

government as follows:

Administration 3 347,340
Public safety 2,943,397
Environmental protection 981,166
Transportation 9,416,793
Econormic and physical development 6,164
Recreation and community facilities 586,075

Capital assets held by certain internal

service funds are charged to the various

governmental functions based on the

usage of the funds. 36.260
Total depreciation expense $ 14,327,195

41



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2005

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued)

Baiance Balance
July 1. 2004 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2005
Business-type activities:
Electric Fund
Capital assets not being dapreciated:
Land 3 4471216 §$ ag284 3 8700 3 - 5 4,500,800
Construction in progress 4.731,007 9.725407 (8.858 842) - 5597772
Total capital assets not being depreciated 9,202,223 9,763 681 (8,867,342} - 10,088,572
Capital assets being depreciated:
Etectric utility system 200,832,231 9,208.471 {1,736,420) - 307,305,282
Bulldings and improvements 38,038,381 131,633 - - 38,170.024
Equiprnent and machinery 12,489,045 919,424 {118,807) - 13,288,663
Computer programs 8,228,422 1,150,188 {70,168) 14,740 10,323,182
Vehicles 4,554,000 172,727 (166,544} - 4 560,183
Office equipment 1.817.811 51,351 (86.199) (925) 1,782.138
Total capital assets being depreciated 365,860,001 11,634 784 {2.179.138) 13.815 375,429 472
Less accumulated depreciation for
Electric utility system (136,023,545) {10,253,386) 1,471,748 - {144,815 183)
Buildings and impraverments (7,828,798} (1,282,357) - - {8,891,155)
Equipment and machinery (5,163,905) {738,770) 104,992 - (5.797,683)
Camputer programs {6,237,767) {1,049,529) 59,393 (11,547} (7,230,450}
Vehicles {3.831,758) {93,055} 166,544 - (3,758,308}
Office equipment {1,345 444) {103.824) B3,509 025 {1364 B34}
Total accumulated depraciation (1680,231,287) &  {13.510.021) % 1,886,185 8 (10.622) (i71,866,614)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 205.728.744 203 562 B58
Electric fund capital assets, net § 214830967 $ 213,661,430
Water and Wastewater Fund
Cagpital assets not being depreciated:
Land s 68956820 $ §9.848 % (4868} $ - 5 7,050,301
Canstruction in progress 16,624,583 35,222,933 (25.304.852) - 28.542.674
Totai capitai assets not being depreciated 23620213 35,282,582 (25,300,820 - 33,5392 975
Capital assets baing depreciated:
Wastewater sysiem 277,140,368 13,802,108 - - 290,942,474
Water system 182,708,681 11,308,402 - - 184,017,083
Buildings and improvements 5,383,647 19,475 - - 5413122
Equipment and machinery 7,034,303 395,729 {83,259} - 7,336,773
Computer programs 8,661,150 801,978 (43,239) {14,740 9,425,147
Vehicles 4,233,408 310,518 (165,732) - 4,378,104
Office equipment 510.149 51.360 {65,263} 925 897171
Totat capital assats being depreciated 486.101.704 26.689.568 {367 483} (13.815) 512 400.864
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Wastewater system (85,483,985) {6,085,058) - - (91,569,053}
Water system (66,773,248) {4.120,209) - - (70,893,457)
Buiidings and improvements (2,007,747) (176.044) - - (2,183,791)
Equiprnent and machinery {5,555,702) {315,675) §2.143 - (5,779,234}
Computer programs (5.688,731) (983.854) 32.516 11.547 {6,609.562)
Vahicies {3,495,546) {80,508) 165,732 - (3,420,320
Office equipment (858,747} {31.1385) §2.571 {925} (828.238)
Total accurmulated depreciation (169,844,718} 3§ 11.802.821) 8§ 352.962 3 10.622 (161,283,653
Total capital assets being depreciated, nat 316.258.988 331.126.311
Water and Wastewater fund capital assets, net $ 339.877.201 5 364 718,286
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2005
Note 3 - Capital Assets {continued)
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Increases Decreases Transfers Jure 30, 2005
Business-type activities (continued);
Nonmajor funds
Capital assets not being depreciated:
tand S  2.198,050 3 116,793 3 5 - 8 2314843
Construction in progress ) 2.003,767 1,790,822 - 3.794,689
Totai capital assets not being depreciated 4,201,817 1,207,715 - 6,109,532
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 40,177,231 8,372 - 40,186,603
Fumiture, fixiures and equipment 2,046,897 203,037 36,598 2,286,532
Vehicles 7,175,245 143,028 (163,095) 7.155,178
Total capital assets being depreciated 49,399,373 355,437 (126,497) 49.628.313
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvemeants {21,458,467) (1,403,183} - {22,361,650)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment {1.611,408) (205,663) - {1,817.072)
Vehicles (5.174,161) {565,756} 126,497 {5.613.420)
Total accumulated depreciation (28,244,037) & (2.174602) 8§ $ 126,497 (30,292.142)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 21,155,336 19,336,171
Nonmajor fund capital assets, net § 25,357,153 3 25445703
Business-type activities capital assets, net 5 580,165,321 $§ 503.826.419
Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities of the primary government as follows:
Electric $ 13,510,821
Water and Wastewater 11,802,521
Transit 803,782
Airport 1,370.820
Taoial depreciation expense $ 27.488.044
Note 4 — Accounts Payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:
Nonmajor
General Govemmental internal Service Subtotal Enterprise Fiductary
Accounts payable $ 2,800,615 $ §51480 5 3743507 & 7185602 § 33,331,887 § 24736
Contracts payable 385,389 1,743,988 - 2,109,357 - -
Retainage payable - 513,213 - 513,213 1,257,823 -
Saiaries and
henefits payable 3,007,721 860 27.705 3.0356.286 2,262,008 -
Total $ B.173.705 g 2.809.541 §  3771.212 12,854,458 3 37451828 5 24736
531,730

Adjustment for interest payvable

813485188
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

June 30, 2005

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations
A - General Obligation Indebtedness

The City has issued general obligation bonds (to include “Double Barrel” general obligation bonds for the
benefit of the Eiectric and Water and Wastewater funds) to provide funds for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities and infrastructure. General obiigation bonds are direct obiigations and pledge the
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the City. They are serviced by the general fund with the exception of the
“Double Barrel” General Obligation Bonds, which are serviced by the water and wastewater fund. Principal
and interest payments are appropriated when due. General obligation bonds outstanding for the year ended
June 30, 2005, are as follows:

Governmental and Business-type activities
$4,300,000 1987 Public Improvement Bonds
due in various annual instaliments through Aprii 1, 2009;
interest at various rates between 5.8% and 6.0%. $ 700,000

$2,770,000 19986 Street Improvement Bonds due in various
annual instaliments through December 1, 2015;
interest at various rates between 4.09% and 5%. 2,005,000

$13,800,000 1996 Public Improvement Bonds due in various
annual instaliments, through December 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 4.9% and 5%. 8,375,000

$2,750,000 1999 Public Improvement Bonds due in various
annual installmenis beginning March 1, 2001 through
March 1, 2017, interest at 4.30%. 1,850,000

$4,900,000 1999 Street Improvement Bonds due in various
installments beginning March 1, 2001 through March 1, 2017;
interest at 4.32%. 3,250,000

$3,610,000 2000 Public improvement Bonds due in
various annual instaliments beginning April 1, 2002
through Aprit 1, 2021; interest at various rates between
4.9% and 5.1%. 3,200,000

32,400,000 2000 Street Improvement Bonds due in
various installments beginning April 1, 2002 through

April 1, 2018; interest at various rates between 4.9%
and 5%. 2,200,000

$5,195,000 2003 “Double Barrel” General Obligation

Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 due in various annual

installments through May 1, 2009; interest at various

rates hetween 2.0% 2.5%. 3,640,000



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Noies to Financial Statements {continued)

June 30, 2005

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

A - General Obligation Indebtedness {continued)

$3,625,000 2002 Street Improvement Bonds due in
various instaliments beginning June 1, 2004 through
June 1, 2021 interest at various rates between 3.5%
and 4.5%. $ 3225000

$5,535,000 2002 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual installments through June 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 2% and 4%. 4,905,000

$3,805,000 2003 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual installments through June 1, 2010,
interest at various rates between 2% and 3%. 2,560,000

$8,450,000 2005 Public improvement Bonds due in
various semiannual installments through December 1, 2625;
interest at various rates between 3.40% and 5.25%. 8.450.000

£ 44450000

B - Revenue Bonds

The City has issued revenue bonds, which have been used to finance the defeasance of certificates of
participation and the construction of facilittes used in the City’s operations. Resources generated by the
facilities' operations are retiring the bonds. Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2005,
are as foliows:

Governmental activities:
$16,390,000 1996 Municipal Building Projects Bonds due in
various annuat installments through February 1, 2018, interest
at 5.83%. $ 4,235,000

$5,835,000 2005 Municipal Building Projects Refunding Bonds
due in various annual instaliments through February 1, 2018;
interest at various rates hetween 3.00% and 5.25%. 5,835,000

$3,520,000 2005 Municipal Building Projects Bonds for the construction of
Festival Park due in various annual instaliments through
February 1, 2012; interest at various rates between 3.00% and 5.00% 3,820,000

$2.685.000 2005 Municipal Building Projects Bonds for the construction of
Westover Recreation Center due in various annual instaliments

through February 1, 2019; interest at various rates between
3.00% and 5.25%. 2.585.000

Total governmental revenue bonds 16.675.000
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Notes to Financial Statements {continued)
June 30, 2005
Note 5 - Long-Term Ohbligations (continued)
B - Revenue Bonds (continued)

Business-type activities:
534,985,000 1995 Series A Revenue Electric/Water and
Sewer Bonds due in various annual instaliments
through March 1, 2008; interest at various
rates between 5.15% and 6.75%. $ 5,495,000

340,755,000 1997 Water and Sewer Bonds due in various
annual instailments through March 1, 2010; interest at
various rates between 4.40% and 5.25%. 4,785,000

$19,325,000 1999 Water and Sewer Bonds due in various
installments through March 1, 2010;
interest at various rates between 4.60% and 5.00%. 3,825,000

$19,175,000 2001 Revenue Refunding Electric/Water and

Wastewater Bonds due in various semiannual instaliments

through March 1, 2016; interest at various rates between

3.7% and 5.50%. 15,850,000

$78,280,000 2003 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in various annual
installments through March 1, 2024; fixed rate swap at 3.42%. 76,395,000

555,150,000 2003 Series A Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds due in various annual installments through
March 1, 2020; fixed rate swap at 3.74%. 54,050,000

$30,065,000 2003 Series B Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds
duein various annual installments through March 1, 2009; interest

resets weekly, 23,820,000
Total business-type revenue bonds 184,320,000
Total revenue bonds $ 200,995,000

-C - Interest Rate Swap

The City has two-interest rate swap agreements in effect at June 30, 2005 for the $78,280,000 Variable Rate
Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2003 (“Series 2003") and the $55,150,000 Variable Rate Revenue and
Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2003A (“Series 2003A"). The swap discussions below will be referenced
to the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds, respectively. The City also has an interest rate cap in effect for
its Series 2003B Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds (“Series 2003B").

As a means to lower its borrowing costs and increase its savings, when compared against fixed-rate
refunding bonds at the time of issuance in January 2003 and September 2003, the City entered into an
interest rate swap in connection with its Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds. The intention of the swap
agreement was to effectively change the City's variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of
3.42% and 3.74%. In addition, in order to protect itself from rising interest rates, the City entered into a 3
vear 8% interest rate cap agreement for the Series 2003B bonds.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

June 30, 2005
Note § - Long-Term Obiigations {continued)
C - Interest Rate Swap (continued)
The terms, fair vaiues, and credit ratings of the outstanding swaps and cap as of June 30, 2005 are as
follows. The notional amount of the swaps matches the principal amount of the associated debt and decline

with the principal amortization on the bonds. The notional amount of the cap began at $10 million and is
reduced by the principal amortization on the bonds until the final termination date of March 1, 2006.

Assaciated Notional  Effective Fixed  Variable Rate Fair Temination Counterparty
Bond Issue Amount Date Rate Paid Received (1) Values Date  Credit Rating (2)
Swaps

. 59% of LIBOR
Series 2003 $ 76,395,000 1/22/03 3.42% +345hbps  $ (3,182,415)March 2024 Aal/AA-/AA+
‘ 62.8 % of
Series 2003A 54,050,000 9/11/03 3.74% LIBOR + 31 bps (2,978,421)March 2020 Aal/AA-/AA+

Interest Rate Cap

Series 2003B 3,755,000 10/2/03 n/a March 2006 Aal/AA-/AA+
$ 134,200,000 S {6,160,836)

(1) LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate
(2) Counterparty’s guarantor

As of June 30, 2005 the negative fair values of the agreements would be offset by lower fixed rates available
in today's market versus the dates of execution of the actual swaps. The counterparty carries a guarantee by
an entity (“counterparty guarantor”) rated Aa1 by Moady's investors Service {(Moody’s), AA- by Standard and
Poor's (S&P), and AA+ by Fitch Ratings (Fitch). To mitigate the potential for credit risk, the fair value of the
swap must be collateralized based on a schedule of the counterparty guarantor credit ratings classifications
and exposure thresholds as provided in the agreement. Such collateral would be government securities

posted with a third party custodian.

The swaps expose the City to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and Bond Market
Association (BMA) converges, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The effect of this difference in
basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rates of 3.42% and 3.74% and the
synthetic rates as of June 30, 2005 of 3.51% and 3.75%. As of June 30, 2005, the rate on the City's Series
2003 and 2003 A bonds was 2.27% whereas the variable rate from the counterparty was 2.18% and 2.26%,
respectively.  For fiscal year 2005, the City experienced an actual synthetic rate of 3.54% and 3.81%,
respectively, which demonstrated a performance greater than the intended fixed rates.

The City or the counterparty may terminate the swap If the other party fails to perform under the terms of the
contract, An additional termination event occurs if the counterparty ratings fall below the A category by
Moody's, S&P, Fitch, and any other Rating Agency. The swap may be terminated by the City with 30 days
notice and the counterparty can ferminate the swap if the City falls beiow Baa3 by Moody's. BBB- by 8&°~,
and an equivalent investment grade from any other Rating Agency, provided however that any termination
must have insurer consant. Also, if at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the City
waould be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap's fair value.
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Notes to Financial Statements {continued)
June 30, 2005
Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

C - Interest Rate Swap {(continued)

Using rates as of June 30, 2005, debt service requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments
of the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the term of
the bonds, were as follows. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments wil

vary.

Fiscal year Variable-Rate Bond Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal Interast Swap, Net Total
2008 § 625,000 § 2,961,102 $ 1,744,662 3 5,330,764
2007 650,000 2,946,914 1,736,679 5,333,583
2008 665,000 2,932,159 1,728,387 5,325,548
2009 2,715,000 2,917,064 1,719,908 7,351,972
2010 6,250,000 2,855,433 1,686,023 10,791,456
2011-2015 49,535,000 11,404,026 6,704,507 67,643,533
2016-2020 52,505,000 5,239,614 3,011,971 60,756,585
2021-2024 17,500,000 1.209,116 660,146 19,369,262

$ 130445000 § 32465428 3 18,992,283 § 181,902,711

D - Notes Payable

Notes payable financed by the governmental funds is serviced by the federal and state financial assistance
fund. Notes payable financed by the Electric’Water and Wastewater Funds are accounted for in the

respective funds.

The City has incurred debt to finance certain community development and capital project activities. The City
has also entered into revolving loan agreements for $7,595,127 and $17,442,000 with the State of North
Carolina. The loans were used for a Wastewater Project. The City has also entered into a loan agreement
with South River Electric Membership Corporation (SREMC) utilizing funds made available to SREMC by
USDA-Rural Development for a water capital project. These notes payable are junior, inferior and
subordinate in all respects to the Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds of the City of Fayetteville as
io lien on and source and security for payment from the revenues and in all other respects.

Notes payable in the accompanying financial statements are comprised of the following:

Governmental activities
Note payable due in various quarterly instaliments
through September 2008; interest at various rates between
5.87% and 6.45%. $ 125,000

Business-type activities
$7.595,127 State revolving loan due in various annual
installments through May 1, 2021; interest at 2.6% paid
semiannually on May 1 and Novemnber 1. 6,076,102
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June 30, 2005
Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)
D - Notes Payabie {continued)
$17.442,000 State revolving loan due in 20 annual

instaliments beginning May 1, 20086; interest at 2.66%
with 1% payment due May 1, 2006 and semiannually

thereafter; construction draws not yet compiete. $ 11,831,042

$396,000 SREMC Loan due in 10 annual instaliments beginning

April 5, 2008; no interest 398,000
Total $_18.428.144

E -Lease Agreements

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, vehicles and fixtures.
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been
recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.

Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following:

Governmental activities
Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly
installments of approximately $50,000 in 2005

including interest at 4.55% $ 4,120,853
Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly

instaiiments of approximately $200,000 in 2005

including interest at rates ranging from 3.40% to 5.87%. 7,438,805
Capital lease obligations payable in various moenthiy

Instaliments of approximately $50,000 to begin in fiscal

year 2006 including interest at 3.05% 3,346,770

14,907 428
Less: amount representing interast (1,355,053}
Present value of the minimum lease payments 3 13551475

The following is an analysis of leased property under capital leases as of June 30, 2005

Classes of Property Cost Depreciation Value
Equipment $ 9235946 § 3,197,975 3 6,037,971
Vehicles 4,702,216 1,835,626 2,766,580
Buildings and improvement 6.087.521 1.412.223 4,575,298

Total $ 20,025.683 3§ 5545824 % 13,479.859
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2605
Note § - Long-Term Obligations {continued)

F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in the City's fong-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2005;

Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Increases Decreases June 30, 2005 Current Portion
Governmental activities:
Bonded debt $ 46,470,000 $ 15,060,000 $ 4,045,000 $ 57,485,000 $ 5,245,000
Capitalized leases 13,341,744 3,104,409 2,8848678 13,551,475 3,173,143
Notes payable 185.000 - 60,000 125,000 60,000
Arbitrage payable 44 414 253,168 150,334 147,246 -
Compensated absences 3,425,848 2,000,445 1,581,710 3,844,583 2,491,518
63,467,006 $ 20418,020 3 8,731,722 75,153,304 10,969,659
Less: loss on defeasance
{net of amortization) (491,659) (850,500) -
Total governmental activities 3 62975347 $ 74,302,804 5 10,965,659

Governmental compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general fund.

Balance Balance

Juiy 1, 2004 Increases Decreases June 30, 2005 Current Portion
Business-type activities:
General obligation debt 5 4,585,000 5 - $ 845,000 $ 3,640,000 3 935,000
Revenue bonds 194,630,000 - 10,310,000 184,320,000 10,755,000
MNotes payabie 11,867,713 6,815,187 379,756 18,303,144 1,010,908
Compensated abserces 129,473 112,753 107,105 135,121 135,121
211,212,186 § 6,927,940 $ 11,741,861 206,398,265 12,836,029
Less: loss on defeasance

{net of amortization) (15,054,195) {13.513,656) -

Total business-type activities $ 196,157,991
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2005
Note 5 — Long-Term Obligations {continued)
G - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding
{exciuding compensated absences and arbitrage payable).

Governmental activities:

Year Bonds Payable Lease Revenue Bonds Note Payahle
Ended Principal interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 3,510,000 $ 1,714,919 5 1,735000 $ 819,119 3 €0.,000 3 6.124
2007 3,545,000 1,570,589 1,805,006 705,453 60,000 2,283
2008 3,560,000 1,430,131 1,850,000 628,143 5,000 162
2009 3,575,000 1,286,869 1,558,000 548,368 - -
2010 3,585,000 1,142,781 1,310,000 491,250 - -
2014-2015 14,205,000 3,688,643 5,280,000 1,594,346 - -
2016-2018 5,505,000 1,050,875 3,13¢,000 376,856 - -
2020-2625 3,325,000 423,438 - - - -
40,810,000 12,308,245 16,675,000 5,163,535 125,000 8,549
Less: loss on defeasance
(net of amortization) {850,500} - - - - -
$ 39,959,500 $ 12308245 § 16675000 % 5,163,535 3 125,000 3 8.549
Construction and
Year improvement Leases Capitalized Leases Total Debt Due
Ended Principal interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2006 $ 376,501 5 149,895 § 2,796,842 $ 257660 § BA478.143 § 2947717
2007 376,501 132,764 2,570,429 188,346 B,356.930 2,599.415
2008 376,501 115,833 2,386,087 121,837 8,177,598 2,296.006
2008 376,501 68,502 1,795,227 46,264 7.301,728 1,880,003
2010 376,501 81,371 614,569 9,406 5,886,070 1,724,808
2011-2415 1,506,006 154,177 - - 21,001,006 5,437,166
2018-2019 - - - - 8,635,000 1,427,731
2020-2025 - - - - 3.325,000 423,438
3,388,511 732,342 10,162,964 623,613 71,161,475 18,836,284

Less: loss on defeasance

{net of amortization}) - - - - (850,500) -
5 3.388.511 3 732,342 § 10,162.964 5 623613 § 70310975 $ 18,836,254




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Nctes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2005
Note 5 - Long-Terrn Obligations {continued)
G - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations {continued}

The following schedule includes the City's expected estimated schedule of maturity for the $7,595,127 State
Revoiving Loan noted above as well as the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding
(excluding compensated absences and arbitrage payabie).

Business-type activities:

Year Bonds Payable Notes Payable Total Debt Due
Ended Principal Interest Principal interest Principal Interest

2006 11,690,000 6,828,275 1,010,908 342,491 $ 127008908 5 7,170,766
2007 12,065,000 6,391,209 1,010,808 447,075 13,075,808 6,838,284
2008 12,550,000 5,956,005 1,010,908 421,466 13,560,808 6,377,471
2009 13,035,000 5,523,816 1,010,808 395,858 14,045,908 5,019,774
2010 10,075,000 5,110,206 1,010,808 370,249 11,085,808 5,480,455
2011-2015 56,850,000 19,415,184 5,054,543 1,467,109 61,904 543 20,882,293
2016-2020 54,185,000 8,187,217 4,856,543 826,885 59,051,543 8.014,102
2021-2025 17,500,000 1,821,663 3,337,518 245,904 20.837,518 2,067,567
187,960,000 59,233,675 18,303,144 4 517,037 206,263,144 63,750,712

Less: Loss on defeasance
(net of amortization) {13,513,656) - - {13,513,656) -
5 174446344 § 59233675 3 18,303,144 § 4517037 § 192,745,488 $ 63,750.712

H - Legal Debt Margin

The legal debt margin of the City at June 30, 2005, approximated $498,676,127.
| - Authorized But Un-issued Debt

At June 30, 2005, the City had no bonds authorized but un-issued.

J - Interest Expense
interest expense during the year totaled $8,528,652.

K - Resfrictive Covenants

The revenue bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service
requirements, use of the utility system, minimum revenue bond coverage's and require that a reserve fund
be established and maintained. The reserve fund requirements have been met by the City through the
purchase of surety bonds in the full amount of the bond requirement. The City is in compliance with all such
significant financial timitations and restrictions at June 30, 2005.
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Notes fo Financial Statemesnts (continued)
June 30, 2005
Note 6 - Defeasance of Debt
A — 2005 Municipal Building Projects Refunding Bonds

On January 5, 2005 the City issued $5,835,000 2005 Municipal Building Projects Refunding Bonds for the
purpose of advance refunding $5,830,000 of the 1996 Municipal Building Projects Bonds. The net proceeds
were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent lo provide for all future debt service payments. As a result, the obligations are
considered defeased and the liability for those obligations have been removed from the City's general ledger.

B - Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New
debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities that were
placed in the trust funds. The investments and related fixed earnings are sufficient to fully service the
defeased debt uniil the debt is cailled or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been
considered defeased and therefore removed from the City's liabilities. As of June 30, 2005, the amount of
prior year defeased debt outstanding and removed from the City's liabilities amounted to $46,580,000.

Gains and losses from debt refunding must be deferred and amortized over the lesser of the original
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. In addition, gains or losses related to debt refunding
are to be usad in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt refunding. The
carrying values of the 2001 Revenue Refunding Electric/Water and Sewer Bonds, the 2003 Variable Rate
Revenue Refunding Electric Water and Sewer Bonds, the Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 20034, the Variable Rate and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B and the General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, 1989 Certificates of Participation, General Obiigation Refunding
Bonds, Series 20038 and the General Obiligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, have been adjusted for the
loss from defeasance {net of amortization) of $13,945,601.

Note 7 — Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government-
wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned

Revenue Revenue
Prepaid licenses and fees not yet earned {General) $ 445236 3 445236
Prepaid retiree insurance premiums (Internal Service) 3,353 3,353
Unearned rent (Proprietary) 38,910 39,910
Unearned grant receipis {Special Revenue) 83,770 93,770
Unearned receipts (Capital Project) 579,720 579,720
Taxes receivable, net {General) 3,088,741 -
Taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue) 102,238 -
Accounts and notes receivable (General) 858,326 -
Accounts and notes receivable (Special Revenue) 6,131,964 -
Special assessments receivable, net (General) 632,822 -
Special assessments receivaple, net (Special Revenue) 7 645 -
Total $ 11,984,725 S 1.161.989
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2005

Note 8 - Risk Management

The City (excluding the utility fund) is self-insured (self-funded) with respect to insurance claims as follows:
heaith insurance (up to $125,000 per individual and approximately $9,988,000 for all employees for the
policy ending December 31, 20085), general liability (up to $350,000 per cccurrence}, workers' compensation
(3500,000 per occurrence), pubiic officials liability (up to $350,000 per occurrence), law enforcement liability
($350,000 per occurrence), and automobile liability {up to $350,000 per occurrence). Property insurance on
city buildings is insured to replacement value (less $100,000 self-funded retention). The health insurance
plan’s excess coverage allows expenditures by the City up to 125% of expected claims adjusted for industry
standard trend adjustments, and for expenditures by the City of up to $125,000 per individual. Losses from
asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the City's incident reporting system are accrued
based on estimates that incorporate the City's past experience, as well as other considerations including the
nature of each claim and relevant trend factors.

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. Claims have not exceeded caoverage in any
of the last three fiscal years.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers’ compensation, and
seif-insured with respect to health insurance claims {up to approximately $2,000,000). [n addition, these
funds are self-insured with respect to certain policy deductible amounts as follows: public officials liability (up
to $100,000 per occurrence), liability claims (up to $1,000,000 per occurrence)} and property ($250,000 per
occurrence). In addition, the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds maintain excess liability insurance
($5.000,000) to cover catastrophic losses and “first-dollar” auto lizbility coverage. These funds maintain an
investment account amounting to $3,500,000 to cover possible worker's compensation and other claims.
This investment is classified under restricted assets in the financial statements. No accrual for possible
losses attributable to incidents that may have occurred but that have not been identified under the incident
reporting system has been made because the amount cannot be reasonably estimated. Further, a liability
for outstanding claims at June 30, 2005, is not accrued, as the amount of outstanding claims is not material
to the financial statements. Professional insurance consultants have been retained to assist the Electric and

Water and Wastewater Funds with determining all accruals,

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage since the prior year, and settled claims have not

exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years.

At June 30, 2005, a liability for incurred but not reported claims of $4,354,680 is included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying financial statements. An analysis of claims activity for
the City and the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds is presented below.

2005 2004
Liabiiity at June 30, $ 4,472,499 $ 4,382,484
Current year claims and changes
in estimates 13,881,768 13,110,432
Actual claim payments (13,999 587) (13.020.417)
Liability at June 30, $_ 4354680 $ 4472499
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June 30, 2005

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Amgounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed ciaims, including amounts already collected,
may constitute a liability of the appiicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of

grant money.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these proceedings is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these matiers will not have a material

adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

The City is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. While it is not
possible to quantify with certainty the potential imipact of actions regarding environmental matters,
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management, compliance
with the present environmental protection laws will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position, results of operations or cash flows of the City.

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbitrage regulations, and the City has eiected to review its
potential arbitrage liability annuaily on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are payabie on
the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fiith year subsequent to that date. Although the actual
amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an adequate provision for arbitrage
payables has been provided for in the accompanying financial statements.

The City has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $138.8 million for capital additions and
construction of various electric, water and wastewater projects. At June 30, 2005, cumulative expenditures
to date fotaled approximately $97.5 million leaving an unexpended balance of $41.3 million for projects that
are expected to be completed at varicus dates through the year ended 2006.

In 2002, the City enterad into a new purchased power arrangement with Progress Energy Company (PEC).
Starting in July 2003, the City is committed to purchasing 279 MW and increasing to 301 MW in July 2008
until the 2nd of the contract in June 2012, The remaining capacity and energy will either be produced at the
Butler-Warner Generation Plant or bought on the open markat. The lowest available price will be used to
meet the City's needs. When the market price goes above the price at the Butler-Warner Generation Plant,
the City may permit the marketing of its capacity and energy for sale to the open market. During the year
ended Jure 30, 2005, the nat purchased power costs paid to PEC was $84,907,456. There was no power

sold on the open market in fiscal year 2005,
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2005

Note 8 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (continued)

The City leases a portion of the office space located in the Robert C. Williams Business Center at Lafayette
Plaza and the Administration Building on Old Wilmington Road to others. These lease agreements provide
for minimum rental and have terms of 5, 7 and 10 years and are due to expire at various dates from 2006 to
2011. Minimum lease provisions now in force will result in rental income for future years as follows:

Year ending June 30 Rent
2006 $ 454,446
2007 452,271
2008 397.898
2008 301,587
2010 63,585
Future years 147,233
Total $1.817.040

Note 10 - On-Behaif Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the City has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contribitions made by the State as revenue and an expenditure of $29,021 for the 126 employed firemen
who perform firefighting duties for the City's fire department. These employees elected to be members of the
Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple-employer public employee
retirement system established and administered by the State of North Carolina. The plan is funded by a
monthly confribution paid by each member, investment income, and a State appropriation.

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems
The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plans (the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special
Separation Allowance System), which covers the law enforcement officers of the City. In addition, the City

continues to participate in the statewide local governmental retirement system, a multiple-employer, cost-
sharing public employee pension plan that covers substantiaily all employees.
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June 3G, 2005

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
A - Local Governmental Empioyees’ Retirement System

Plan Description

The City contributes to the statewide Local Gavernmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost
sharing, and muitiple-employer defined benefit pension ptan administered by the State of North Carolina.
LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G. &
Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Caroiina General
Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to
the Office of the State Controller; 1410 Mait Service Center; Raleigh, North Carolina 27693-1410 or by caliing

(919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The City is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement
officers is 4.93% and 4.78%, respectively, of annual covered payrell. The rate for the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds is 10.03%. The contribution requirements of members and of the City are established and
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City's contributions to LGERS for all
employees, including law enforcement officers and Electric and Water and Wastewater funds, for the years
ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, were $4,570,266, $4.237,759 and $2,517,077, respectively. The
contributions made by the City equaled the reguired contributions for each year.

B - Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina .

The Supplemental Employees' Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville,
North Carolina (“SERP pian”} is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public
Works Commission Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees. This plan was established on April 1,
2003 to equalize benefits received under the LGERS plan fo those formerly participating in the Employees’

Retirement Plan (ERP).

The only employees eligible to participate in the SERP plan are those who met the requirements of the ERP
plan. Effective, April 1, 2003 no additional employees will enter this plan. Benefits vest after five years of
credited service. Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees reaching the defined retirement age
are entitied to an annuat retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1.8% of their finaf
average compensation times years of credited service. The SERP plan provides retirement benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries at the
discretion of the Public Weorks Commission. Al benefit payments by the SERP plan will be offset by the
benefits payable from the LGERS pian. The City of Fayetteville City Council has the authority to establish
and amend the retrement plan provisions. The SERP plan does not issue a separate report. Rather, the
financial report of the SERP plan is included as a pension trust fund.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2005

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

B - Suppiemental Empioyees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina {continued)

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Public Works Commission are established and
may be amended by the City of Fayetteville City Council. There will be no empioyee contributions after April
1, 2003. The Public Works Commission is reguired to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
rate for the year ended June 30, 2005 was 0% of annual covered payroll.

The annual required contribution caiculation for June 30, 2005 was determined as part of the July 1, 2005,
actuariai valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The actuariai assumptions included (a) 5%
investrnent rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 4% per year
to retirement age. Both (&) and (b) included an inflation component of 3%. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases, which are funded by the Commission's appropriations when granted.

The actuarial value of assets was determined by using the market value at June 30, 2005. There was no
annual required contribution for the current year under this plan; the trend information has been omitted from
these statements. This benefit plan is a contributory, defined benefit retirement plan, which covers all
employees who participated in the ERP pian at April 1, 2003.

C - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Plan Description

The City administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance’), a single-employer,
defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits {o the City's qualified sworn law enforcement
officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement
benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the
Generai Assembiy. Articte 12D of G. 8. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation Allowance is reporied in the City's
report as a pension trust fund. The Separation Allowance covers all full-time City law enforcement officers.

At December 31, 2004, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 19
Active plan members 342
Total =Bl
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June 30, 2005

Note 11- Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

C - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting: Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual basis
of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City has made a
formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the pian.

Method Used to Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits, and
the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States Agency securities

are valued at the last reported sales price.

Contributions

The City is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen
to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on actuarial
valuations. For the current year, the City contributed $356,878, or 2.64% of annual covered payroll. There
were no contributions made by employees. The City's abligation to contribute to this plan is established and
may be amended by the North Carclina General Assembly.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2003
actuarial vaiuation using the projected unit cost credit method. The actuarial assumptions inciuded (a)
7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of £.8% -
9.8% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.75%. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial vaiue of assets was market value. The unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percent of pay closed basis. The remaining amortization period

at December 31, 2004 was 26 years.
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year
were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 318276
interest on net pension obligation (21,388)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 16,5648
Annual pension cost 313,437
Contributions made 356,878
Increase {decrease) in net pension obligation {43,441)
Net pension obligation beginning of year (295.001)
Net pension obligation end of year 3 (238442)
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
C - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance (continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation (continued)

Three-Year Trend information

Annual Percentage
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2003 $ 281,551 110,49 $ (284,281)
2004 301,448 103.82 (295,001)
2005 331,437 113.86 (338,442)

D - Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan ({the “Plan”), a defined contribution
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-faw
employees who choose to make their own contributions. Articie 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions for the law enforcement officers to the North Carolina General

Assembly.
Funding Policy

Article 12& of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent
of each faw enforcement officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. The City does
not make any contributions for non-law employees. All employees may make voiuntary contributions to the
Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2005, were $1,466,412, which consisted of $689,837 from

the City and $776,475 from employees.
E - Defined Contribution Plan and Trust

The Electric and Water and Wastewater funds participate in a Defined Contribution Plan and Trust (Plan),
administered by the Advisory Committee appointed by the City. This Plan became effective July 1, 1999.
Plan provisions are established or amended by City of Fayetteville City Council resolution. The Electric and
Water and Wastewater funds' empioyees are not allowed to contribute to this Plan. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005 actual contributions by the City were $0. The City currently contributes 0% of gross pay of
each Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employee to the Defined Contribution Plan or Trust. This
funding rate is subject to City Council approval. At June 30, 2005, the Plan included 486 participants.
Participants vest at service inception and are entitled to 100% of vested contributions. The Plan is a profit
sharing ptan qualified under section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, During the year the assets were

transferred to the State 401(k) plan.

60



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

June 30, 2005

Note 11 - Empioyee Retirement Systems {continued)

F - Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund

Plan Description

The State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the City of Fayetteville, to the Firemen’s and Rescue
Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension pian with a
special funding situation administered by the State of North Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits
for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the Fund. Article 86 of
G.5. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410,

or by calling (919) 881-5454,

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a nonemployer contributor,
funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund. Contribution requirements
of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be amended by the North Carolina

General Assembly.
Note 12 — Post Employment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City has elected to provide health care benefits to retirees of the
City who participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (System) and
have at least ten years of creditabie service with the City. The City and retiree shares the cost of coverage
for these benefits. Also, refirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the City’s group rates, as
iong as the dependent had been covered at least 5 years prior to employee’s retirement. Currently, 85
retrees are eligible for post-retirement health benefits and are eligible untii each employee reaches the
eligible age for Medicare. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the City made payments for post-

retirement heaith benefit premiums of $1,370,858.

The City has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for Members of
the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a muitiple-employer State
administered, cost-sharing pian funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees
who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180
days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service
in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits.
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Note 12 — Post Employment Benefits {continued)

Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the empioyee’s 12 highest months salary in a
row during the 24 months prior to the employee’'s death, but the benefit may not exceed $25,000. All death
benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The City has no liabilify beyond the payment of
monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payrolls, based upon rates
established annually by the State. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and
not by the City, the City does not determine the number of eligibie participants. Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005, the City made contributions fo the State for death benefits of $58,891. The City's required
contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represented
.13 percent and .14 percent of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan
cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

Also, the City has elected to provide death benefits to retirees of the City who participate in the North
Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System and have at least ten years of creditable
service with the City. After the required 180 days following retirement, the City pays the full cost of coverage

for the retiree,

The City offers a death benefit equal to $100 for every year of service with the City, up to a maximum of
$3,0060. Currently, 324 retirees are eligible for post-retirement death benefiis. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005, the City made payments for post-retirement death benefits premiums of $29,496.

in addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the Electric and Water and Wastewater funds
{Public Works Commission) provide post employment benefit options for health care and dental insurance to
eligible retirees and their dependents up through the age of 65. A liability for this obligation is not accrued at
June 30, 2005, as the amount is not material to the financial statements. As of June 30, 2005, 46 retirees
met the eligibility requirements. Expenses for post employment healthcare benefits are recognized as
retirees report claims and include a provision for estimated claims incurred but not yet reported to the
Commission. For the year ended June 30, 2005, expenses of approximately $341,272 were recogmzed for
post employrment healthcare.

Note 13 ~ Interfund Balances and Activity
Balances Due to/ffrom Other Funds

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2005, consist of the following:

Due to the General Fund from the Airport Fund (loan for capital construction) $ 372,511

Due to the Transportation Fund from the Bond improvement Fund 1,064,204
Due to the Storm Water Management Speciat Revenue Fund from the

Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 265.298

3 1,702,013
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Note 13 - interfund Balances and Activity {continued)
Transfers to/from Other Funds

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2008, consist of the following:

General fund transfers in & 89,624,200
General fund transfers out {5,916,008)
Nonmaijor governmental funds transfers in 5,710,009
Nonmaijor governmental funds transfers out -
Major enterprise funds transfers out (9,624,200)
Nonmajor enterprise funds transfers in 1,206,000
Internal Service funds transfers out (1,000,000

3 -

Note 14 - Subsequent Events

Annexation. On April 21, 2003, City Council directed the City's staff to develop an annexation plan for
consideration for areas west to the Hoke County line, south to Fisher Road, north to Fort Bragg and other
areas, with a total population of approximately 43,000. City Council approved the annexation pian with an
effective date of June 30, 2004. In June 2004, three lawsuits were filed to postpone the effective date of the
annexation. On June 28, 2004, the Superior Court found in the City’s favor and declined to stay the effective
date of the annexation. The cases were appealed and heard at the North Carolina Court of Appeals on April
13, 2005. On June 7, 2005, a three-judge panel of the North Carolina Court of Appeals unanimously ruled in
the City’s favor that the cases were not timely filed. Subsequently, on August 18, 20085, the North Carolina
Supreme Court declined to hear the cases on discretionary review, thereby as required by state law, making

the annexation effective on September 30, 2008.

Festival Park Plaza Master Lease. On August 22, 2005, City Council adopted a resolution authorizing the
City to enter info a 20-year master lease agreement, subject to LGC approval, with Festival Park Plaza
Office LLC. On September 6, 2005, the LGC approved the City's master lease application. Under the terms
of the master lease, the City would be obligated to make certain lease payments if the building is not fully
leased to subtenants throughout the term of the agreement. A “rent up deficit” reserve of $175,000 is
included in the project budget. These funds would be used first before the City would be required to make
any lease payments. The master lease has not been executed at this date.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Law Enforcemeant Officars’ Special Separation Allowance
Raquired Supplementary information

Scheduie of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuariai Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covarad
Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Dats {a) {b} {b~a) (a/b) () {{b-a)ic)
12131197 $ 893619 3 1,241,152 $ 347.533 72.00% $ 8,419,011 4.13%
12/31/98 878,608 1,337,500 458,892 65.69% 9,011,331 5.09%
12/31/99 - 958,824 1,435,311 476,487 £6.80% 9,968,890 4.78%
12131006 1,228,812 2,728,524 1,499,712 45.04% 10,581,205 14.17%
127311 1,382,479 3,074,210 1,691,731 44 97% 11,197,858 15.11%
12131102 1,491,666 3,356,167 1,864,501 44.45% 11,941,930 15.61%
1273103 1,628,946 3,516,635 1,887,689 46.32% 12,062 456 15.65%
12/31/04 1,657,940 3,902,435 2,244,495 42.48% 13,501,537 16.62%

* For the Decamber 31, 2000, valuation date, several actuarial assumptions have been revised. These revisions were due to an experience
investigation prepared as of December 31, 1999, for the North Carolina Local Government Retirement System. Projected salary increases
were increased from a range of 4.4%-8.5% to a range of 5.9%-9.8%. The remaining amortization period was also increased from 20 to 30
years. These changes In assumptions caused an increase in the cost of the Separation Allowance for Law Enforcement Officers.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

l.aw Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Required Supiementary Information

Schedule of Empioyer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed
1996 $ 87,240 212.25%
1897 106,748 125.18%
1898 107,318 115.48%
1999 111,500 128.32%
2000 127,608 118.26%
2001 145,228 114.21%
2002 253,788 : 104.76%
2003 286,336 108.65%
2004 311,445 102.16%
2005 318,276 100.00%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary scheduies was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date December 31, 2004
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Retnaining amortization period 26 years
Asset valuation method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate retern® 7.25%
Projected salary increases” 5.9%-9.8%
* includes inflation at 3.75%

Cost-oi-living adjustments N/A



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Suppiemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Vaiue of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered

Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroil

Date {a) {b) {b-a) {a/h) (c) {{b-a)c)
7101403 $ 3,990,343 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/04 3,952,504 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A

7/01/05 4,105,589

Note that this schedule is provided for informational purposes only. The Commission uses the aggregate
actuarial cost method under which such a schedule is not required. Additionally, this is the second year

of this plan.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed

There was no pension obligation as of July 1, 2003. Since then, the cost and contributions have been
zero so there is stili no net pension abiigation.

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date July 1, 2005
Actuariai cost method Aggregate
Amortization method N/A

N/A

Amortization period
Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Market vaiue

investment rate of return® 5%
Projected salary increases” 4.0%
* Includes inflation at 3.0%

None

Cost-of-living adjustments



SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view of the "Basic
Financial Statements" as presented in the preceding subsection.

Combining Statements are presented where there is more than one fund
of a given type. Individual fund statements are presented if only one
fund exists in a given fund type.



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

* General Fund
* Nonmajor Governmental Funds
> Special Revenue Funds

b Capital Project Funds

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income
determination.



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account
for the receipt and expenditure of resources that are traditionally
associated with local governments and that are not required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Resources are provided primarily through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues and transfers, and are expended for services deemed not
susceptible to a user charge financing method.

The Fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Comparative Balance Sheets
General Fund

June 30, 2005 and 2004

ASSETS 2005 2004
Cash and investments $ 40,994,201 38,194,634
Taxes receivable 3,089,741 3,376,391
Accounts receivable 10,141.018 9,636,025
interfund receivable 372,511 398,921
Assessments receivable 478,454 457 626
Inventories 148,279 145.027
Total assets 5 55 225,204 52,208,624
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabillties
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 6,173,705 5,194 277
Unearned deposits 61,325 85,511
Deferred revenues 5,026,126 5,114,580
Total liabiiities 11,264,156 10,404,368
Fund balances
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 9,500,835 9,181,667
For encumbrances 1,713,453 3,676,094
For inventories 149,279 145,027
For downtown 430,748 206,339
For county recreation 773,259 -
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years 3,671,062 1,696,565
For special purpose 3,629,340 5,713,518
For debt service 4 069,134 1,926,997
Undesignated 20,126.940 19,158,049
Total fund balances 43 964,048 41,804.256
Total kiabilities and fund balances $ 55,225,204 52,208,624
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expendltures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Genarai Fund

Yaar Endad June 30, 2008
with Comparative Actual Stataments for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budgat {Negative) Actual Actual
Revonues
Ad valorem taxes
Current year 5 37,771,986 g 180,529 $ 37,952,525 3 38,877.574
Prior year 1,307.630 46,419 1,354,048 1,260.690
Penaities 263,500 22 026 315,526 203,598
Total ad vaiorem taxes 39,373,126 248,974 39.622.100 38.431.862
Other taxas
Local option sales tax 22,200,000 343,521 22,543,521 20.588,293
Utility franchise tax 5,215,960 28,247 5,245 207 5,121,788
Vehicle licanse tax 469,475 13 469,488 444 521
Privitege ficense 712,232 19,487 731,718 684,506
Cablevision franchise tax 1,525,000 22,289 1,547,289 2,016,045
Vehicie gross raceipt 318,000 26.813 344913 305,860
Total other taxes 30 440,667 441 470 30,882,137 29,272,013
Intergovernmental
Federal 19,100 72.015 91,115 36,480
State 4,544 120 21,268 4,565,388 4,282 825
Local 5,163,263 {134.784) 5,028 479 478,388
Total intergovernmental 4,726, 483 {41.501) 0.684,982 4,797 683
Other functional
Permits and fees 1,737,518 183,045 1,820,563 1,535,700
Property leases 319,631 12,712 332,343 318,340
£ngineering/ptanning services 782,153 158,233 940,386 725,080
Public safety services 585,326 100470 685,796 556,831
Environmental services 45,500 1,456 45,956 26,139
Recreation and cultural services 800,400 - 71,516 871,916 - 562,405
Parking revenues 72,100 11,481 83,581 75614
Other fees and services 117,798 4,265 122,083 125782
Total other functionat 4 460,426 543.178 5.003,604 3.925.901
Miscellansous
Refunds and sundry 150,089 180,988 341,087 104,157
Indirect cost allocation B42,056 (21,114) 820,982 722,038
Special use assessment 88,547 34,361 122.808 100,412
Sale of assets 53.703 8575 63,278 11.587
Totat miscellanaous 1,134,445 213,810 1,348,265 938.205
interest eamned on Investments B06.500 485,592 1,292,082 361.878
Total revenues 85.641.647 1,881,523 87.833.170 77.727.552
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CiTY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
With Comparative Actuai Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Varjance
Positive 2008 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures
Current
Administration
Lagislative
Personne $ 353,504 5 549 § 352,955 $ 333.870
Operating 258,306 35,112 223,154 322.036
511,810 35.661 576,148 655,906
Clty attorney
Personnel 327,662 7.288 320374 371,276
Operating 379.834 71,785 308,039 249,455
707,496 78,083 628413 620.731
Executive
Personnel 698,246 127 699,114 410,727
Operating 179.7¢91 47,571 132.220 89.130
879,037 47,698 831,339 490.857
Human resources development
Personnel 550,062 26.564 523,498 529,815
Operating 291,308 133,428 157,881 g7.418
841,371 159.992 681.379 627,233
Strategic initiatives
Personnel 299,024 1,051 297,973 175277
Operating 234,658 27,435 207,223 66,188
Inventary 130.6594 8,408 121.286 139,580
Cost redistribution (166.6513) 2.573 (169.186) (175,083}
497.763 40467 457.296 205,952
information technology :
Personnet 351,644 508 381,136 403.032
Operating 813,986 116,800 697,186 552,349
Assets 434 597 220667 213.930 439,220
1.630.227 337.975 1.282.252 1.384.601
Human relations
Personnel 218,597 513 218.084 215,317
QOperating 47,555 9,260 38.295 36.293
266.152 9,773 256.379 251.610
Finance
Personnel 927,093 1,002 925,081 918.213
Operating 883.765 111,722 772,043 704,314
Assets 5,500 - 5,500 -
1.816.358 112.724 1,703.634 : 1,622.527
General governmant
Personnel 8,441 - 8.441 43,154
Qperating 3,183,075 (87.622) 3.270.697 2957.518
Assets 134,363 134,363 - -
tnventory 1,099,452 19.724 1.079.728 733,400
Cost redistribution (1,153.081) 203 (1.153.284) (B14.289)
Payments to agencies 422 833 7.729 415,104 445,600
3,695,083 74,397 3,620.688 3.365.383
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Yeaar Ended June 30, 2005
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Variance .
Positive 2005 2004
Budget {Negative} Actual Actual
Expenditures {continued)
Current (continued)
Administration (continued}
Public bulldings
Personnel 5 636,335 5 2,889 $ 633,436 $ 658,637
Operating 966,834 137,407 829,527 812,558
Assets 64.288 43,318 20,872 -
1.867.557 183.622 1.483.935 1.271,195
Project management
Personnel 296,069 720 295,349 278,310
Operating 21,309 7.675 13.634 13.038
317.378 8,395 308.983 201,348
Total administration 12.830.232 1,086,787 11,840,445 10,806,343
Pubtlic safety
Police
Personne 25,258,463 387,152 24,891,311 22,364 636
Operating 4,087,549 674,309 3,413,150 4,043,540
Assets 4,185,132 505,282 3,589,850 1,890,372
Paymenis to agencies 3.000 - 3.000 3,000
Cost redistribution {24,820) {24.820) ~ {23,594)
33.509.324 1,612,013 31,897.311 28.077.955
Fire
Personnel 12,434,367 43,826 12,390,541 10,382,340
Operating 1.8858,778 383,446 1,502,333 1,579,841
Asseis 2,391,468 541,872 1,848617 757,744
Cost redistribution (75,000} - {75.000) {75.000)
16,636,635 068,144 15,667,491 12.655,025
inspections
Personnel 1,689,937 6,369 1,883,568 1.524.016
Operating 448,941 115,889 333,052 232,398
Assets - - - 18.418
2.138.878 122,258 2.016.620 1.774.832
Total public safety 52,284,837 2,703,415 49,581 422 42,507.812
Environmental protection
Solid waste
Personnel 2,540,449 7,128 2.533.321 2,287 448
Operating 2,607,853 368,257 2,238,586 3,176.954
Assels 2,007,229 244 787 1,762,442 325.710

7.156,531 621,172 6.534.359 5.780.112
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actuat - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
With Comparative Actual Statoments for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget (Nagative) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Current {continued)
Environmantal protection
{econtinued)
Cameteries
Personnel 3 178,104 5 1,395 5 177.709 $ 139,623
Qperating 18,758 4,297 14.461 15.031
197,862 5.682 182,176 154 .654
Urban forestry
Personnel 96,621 36 96,585 80,442
Operating 8,185 125 6.060 7.004
102,806 161 102,645 §7.446
Streect Sweeping
Personnel 157,268 11,584 145,674 186.298
Operating 88,156 51,822 36,334 337
Assets 454,080 - 454,080 -
699,504 53,418 636,088 186.633
Total environmental
protaction 8,155,703 690,441 7.465,262 6,218,845
Transportation
Streets
Personnel 2,107,714 19,093 2,088,621 1,899,762
Operating 3,374,040 350,749 3,023,291 2,875,614
Assets 816,507 214,194 402,313 633,789
Cuost redistribution (145.568) (15,236) (130330} (182,121
5,952,695 568.800 5,383.885 5,217.044
Enginesring
Personnel 846,419 12,666 833,753 886,538
Operating 164,993 80,561 84,434 247 477
Assets 8,153 - 8153 35.875
1,019.567 93,227 926,340 1,169,891
Parking
Operating 181,924 5076 176.848 177.763
151.924 5.076 176.848 177.763
Total transportation 7.154 186 667,103 5.487.083 6,564.698
Economic and physicat development
Central business district
Crperating 258.000 200.084 57916 50.978
Community deveiopment
Personnel 61,969 5 61,964 55.818
Operating 220,804 120,607 100.797 129,468
Assels 600 604 - -
283.373 120,612 162.761 185.288
Planning and development
Personnel 398.131 252 397.87¢8 391,083
Operating 106,724 37,388 69,336 120,117
Payments to agencies 54,264 52.323 1.944 5.961

559.119 39.963 489.158 517.081




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2006
With Comparative Actual Staternents for the Year Ended Juna 30, 2004

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budgat {Negative} Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued}
Cutrent (continued}
Economic and physical
devetopmant {continued)
Total aconomic and physical
development 3 1,100492 $ 410.659 S 689.833 753,328
Recreation and community facifitles
Parits & Recreation
Personnel 5,691,443 136,594 5,554,849 3,705,760
Cperating 3,478,804 695,827 2,732,977 1,837,114
Assets 782,490 338,862 443,628 588,561
Cost redistribution - 4.920 {4,920} -
9,902 537 1,176,003 B.726.534 5,231,435
Total recreation and
community facilities 9,902,537 1,176,003 8,726.534 6,231.435
Debt service ©.475.580 1,780,193 7.695.397 6,329,585
Total expenditures 101,003,577 8.517,601 92,485,976 79.412,013
Revenues over {under}
expenditures {15.061,930) 10.409.124 {4.652,808) (1.684.461)
Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriated fund batance 8614488 (8.614,488) - -
Transfers in 9,661,561 {37.361) 9,524,200 0,487 469
Transfers (out) (6,314,118} 398,110 {6.916,008) (5.657,081)
Payment to refund bond escrow agent - - - {3.788,439)
Capital leases, bonds and other debt 3,100.000 4,407 3.104407 11.666.668
Totai other financing
sources (uses) 15,061.530 {8.249.332) 6.812.588 11.708.617
Revenues and other financing
sources (uses) ovar (under}
expenditures 3 - $ 2,158,792 2,159,792 10,024,156
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 41.804.256 31,780.100
End of year - June 30 § 43.964.048 41.804.256
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2005

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 3500974 $ 7,991,504 $ 11,501,478
Taxes receivable 102,238 - 102,238
Accounts receivabie 6,986,008 441 971 7,427,980
Interfund receivable 265,298 1,064,204 1,329,502
Assessments receivable 5152 - 5,152
Restricted asset - cash and investments 93,770 16,522,485 16,616,255
Total assets § 10962441 $ 26020164 3 36,082,605
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 270762 $ 2,638779 § 2,909,541
Interfund payables 265,298 1,064,204 1,329,502
Deferred revenues 6,335,616 579.720 6,915,336
Total liabilities 6.871,676 4,282,703 11,154,379
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 1,116,851 1,506,175 2,623,026
For ericumbrances 620,864 7,563,147 8,184,011
For wireless 911 : 20,487 - 20,487
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years 852,207 12,668,139 13,520,346
For special purpose 220,000 - 220,000
Undesignated 1,260,356 - 1,260,356
Total fund balances 7 4,090,765 21.737,461 25,828.226

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 10962441 § 26,020,164 $ 36,982,605
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARGLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2005
Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Revenues
Other taxes $ 3,156,143 5 - 5 3,156,143
Intergovernmental 3,338,871 1,727,928 5,066,889
Miscellaneous 459,582 2,055,037 2,555,019
Interest earned on investments 95,085 171.520 266,605
Total revenues 7.090,181 3,954,485 11,044,666
Expenditures
Current:
Administration - 54 54
Public safety 1,628,435 - 1,628,435
Environimental protection 2,424 089S - 2,424,089
Transportation - 1,606,124 1,506,124
Economic and physical development 3,288,101 5,546,501 8,834,602
Recreation and community facilities - 3,445,847 3,449,947
Debt service:
Principal 1,069,473 - 1,069,473
interest and fees 467,811 26,862 494 673
Issue costs : 148,187 220,508 368,693
Total expenditures 8,026,006 10,749,994 19,776,090
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (1,935,915) (6,795,509) (8,731,424)
Other financing sources {(uses)
Refunding Bonds 5,835,000 15,426,589 21,261,589
Transfers in 1,803,675 3,808,334 5,710,009
Payment to refund bond escrow agent {6,265,287) - (6,265,297)
Premium on bands 431,212 - 431,212
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,904,590 19,232,923 21,137,513
Net change in fund balances (31,325) 12,437,414 12,406,089
Fund balance - beginning 4,122,090 9,300,047 13.422.137

Fund balance - ending §  4.080.765 _% 21.737.461 _§ 25828 226
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources or to finance specific activities as required by law of
administrative regulation.

The following comprise the City's Special Revenue Funds:
* Emergency Response Fund
+ Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund
* Storm Water Management Fund
* Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund

All Special Revenue Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2005

Federal
and State
Emergency Financial Storm Water Total Nonmajor
Response Assistance Management Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,080,288 - 1,426,215 s 3,500,074
Taxes receivable - - 102,238 102,238
Accounts receivable B7,452 6,882,992 15,565 6,986,009
Interfund receivable - - 265,298 265,298
Assessments receivable - 5,152 - 5,182
Restricted asset - cash and investments - 93,770 - 83,770
Total assets $ 2167711 §.081.914 § 1808316 3 10,962,441
Liabiiities and fund balances
{ iabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8 364 204,055 62,843 3 270,762
Interfund payables - 265,298 - 265,298
Deferred revenues - 6,233,379 102,237 6,335 618
Total liabilities 364 5,702.732 165,080 5,871,676
Fund batances:
Reserved
By State statute B7.452 748,535 280,864 1,116,851
For encumbrances - 336,276 284,588 620,864
For wireless 911 20,487 - - 20,487
Unreserved
Designated
Far subsequent years 343,936 - 508,271 852,207
For special purpose - - 220,000 220,000
Undesignated 1,715,472 (805,629) 350,513 1,260,356
Total fund balances 2,167,347 279,182 1,644,236 4,090,765
Total liabillties and fund balances $  2.167.711 5.981.914 1,800,316 ) 10,962,441




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 38, 2005

Fedaral
and State Storm Fayetteville
Emergency Financial Water Finance Total Nonmajor
Response Assistance Management GCorp $pecial Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Ravenues
Other taxas b 996,840 § - § 2158303 5 - % 3.156.143
intergovernmantai - 3,338,971 - - 3,338,871
Misceallaneous - 486,477 13,505 - . 489,982
Interest eamed o investments 37.183 - 57.382 560 95,085
Total revenues 1,034,003 3,825 448 2,230,170 560 7.080.181
Expenditures
Current:
Public safety 776,723 851,712 - - 1,628,435
Envircnmentat protection - - 2,424,089 - 2.424,08%
Economic and physical develapment - 3,284,508 - 3,583 3.288101
Debt service:
Principal 68,216 83,521 22,736 915,000 1,068,473
interest and fees 9,445 10,442 3,148 444,776 467,811
issue costs - - - 148,187 148.1B7
Total expenditures 854,384 4,210,183 2,448 973 1,511,556 9,026,096
Excess (deficlency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 179,618 (384.735) (219.80%) {1.510.986) {1.935.915)
Other financing sources {uses)
Refunding Bonds - - - 5,835,000 5,835,000
Payment to refund bond escraw agert - - - {6,265,297) {6,265.287)
Pramium on Bonds - - - 431.212 431,212
Transfers in 134.872 146,956 111,766 1.510.081 1,903,675
“T'otal other financing sources (uses) 134,872 146,956 111.766 1,510.956 1.804.590
Net change in fund baiances 314,49 {237,779 (108,037} - {31,325
Fund balance - beginning 1.852,856 516,961 1.752.273 - 4,122.080
Fund balance - ending g 2167347 § 270182 § 1644236 3 - % 4,080,765
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditares and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
£mergency Response Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004)

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
{ther taxes
Subscribers' tax § 803222 § (665) % go2,557 3 882425
Wireless 911 funds 185,664 8.618 184.283 158.745
Totaj other taxes 988,886 7,854 995,840 1,041,170
Miscellaneous - - - 10,000
Interest earned on investments
Wireless 811 - 623 §23 27
Enhanced 811 32.300 4,240 36,540 9.073
Total interest earned on investments 32.300 4,863 37163 g,100
Total revenues 1,021.186 12,817 1,034,003 1,060,270
Expenditures
Current
Pubtic safety
Wireless 811
Operating 180,320 22,954 157,366 148,122
Assets . 99,243 96,759 2484 68,891
279,563 119,713 158,850 217.013
Enhanced 811
Persornnel 267,973 267,973 - 431,445
Operating 732,674 382,533 350,141 362,251
Assets 234 880 2,484 232,396 103,337
Cost redistribution 59,156 24,820 34,336 74.924
1,284,683 677.810 816,873 972.027
Total public safety 1,574.246 797,523 776.723 1,189.040
Debt service
Wireless 911 26,807 - 26,807 -
Enhanced 811 50.954 - 50.854 -
Total debt service 77.661 - 77.661 -
Total expenditures 1.651.907 797.523 854,384 1,189,040
Revenues over (under) expenditures (630.721} 810.340 179.619 (128.770)
Other financing sources {uses)
Appropriated fund balance 630,721 (630,721 - -
Capital leases - - - 219,365
Transfers in - 134,872 134,872 -
Total other financing sources {uses) 530,721 (495,849} 134,872 219.365
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over {under) expenditures S - % 314491 314,491 090,585
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,852.856 1,762.261
g 2167347 5 1 .352.856

End of year - June 30



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Federal and Stats Financial Assistance Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
intergovernmental
Federal grants
State grants
County
Totai intergovernmental

Miscelianeous
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Total current

Debt service
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources {uses}
Transfers in
Transfers {out)
Total other financing sources
{uses)

Revenues and other financing

sources (uses) over (under)
expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Yoars Proietts Year Total

$ 8002628 $ 8399597 § 4414831 3§ 3,027,301 § 7012017
946,440 1,101,367 534,846 291,140 857,661
48171 25.313 12,349 20,530 33,494
9.897.239 9.626.277 4,962.076 3.338.971 7.803,172
510,150 1,268,255 1,213,541 486,477 542,191
10.407.389 10,795,532 6,175,617 3.825.448 8,445,363
2,912,556 2,442,547 1,030,820 851,712 2,263,439
7,591,247 8,143.363 5,335,644 3.284 508 6.092.227
10,503,803 10,585,910 6,366,464 4,136,220 B8,355.668
393,959 333,274 29.196 73.963 378,041
10,897,762 10,919,184 6,395,660 4,210,183 8,733,707
(48€.373) (123,652} (220,043) (384,735) {288,344}
490,373 713,712 293,142 146,956 567,526

- (73,088} (73,089} - -

480,373 540.613 220.043 146,956 567.526

- % 516,961 8 - (237,779 8 279.182

516,961
5 279,182
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project
Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Yeaars Projects Year Tatal
Expenditures by project:
Public safety
Federai Forfeiture § 404,591 % 830,426 & 801,580 $ 201,822 & 230,668
GHSP 4350 4,006 - - 4,008
Geographic information systems 145,840 141,452 - 5,142 148,594
Operation Ceasefire Mediablitz 30,000 8,345 - 21,655 30,000
Operation Ceasefire (GCC) 12,800 12.648 - - 12,648
1-95 Corridgor P2P Grant 74,660 74,660 - - 74,660
Gangs across the Garolinas 32,051 - - 31,887 31,857
Juvenile Restitution 362,270 225,566 110,229 117,772 233,109
Aggressive driving 88,720 - - 80,222 80,222
Law Enforcement Block Grant 570,786 483.266 - 21,389 504,655
Gaverner's Crime Commtission - 119,011 118,011 - -
Operation Ceasefire 250,000 43,973 - 67,640 111,613
COPS Homeland Security 282774 22,138 - 150,036 172,174
Cyber Crimes Grant BG,575 37,466 - 31,428 68,884
FEMA Firefighter Grant 439,600 439,580 - 10 439,600
FYD3 State Homeland Security 101,000 - - 101,000 101,000
Hazmat Homeland Security 21,738 - - 21.739 21,739
Total public safety 2.912.556 2,442 547 1,030,820 851,712 2.263.439
Economic and physical development
Community Development Block Grant 5,037,030 4,998 577 2,740,086 1,810,966 4,088,457
Arsenal Park Archaeological 43,459 43,362 - - 43,362
Assessment Payment 39.865 39,865 - - 39,865
HOME 2.470,893 3,061,559 2.505.558 1,473,542 1.938.543
Total economic and
physical development 7,581,247 8,143.363 5,335,644 3.284,508 6.092,227
Total expenditures by project $ 10503803 § 10585910 _§ 65366464 § 4136220 § 8355666
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Storm Water Management Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004)

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other taxes
Storm water tax $ 2127800 § 15240 $ 2,143,040 $ 2107872
Penalties 12.000 4,263 16,263 15,138
Total other taxes 2,139,800 18,503 2,150,303 2.123.011
Miscellaneous - 13,505 13.506 -
interest eamed on investments 30,000 27.362 57,362 7.939
Total revenues 2,168,800 60,370 2.230,170 2,130,950
Expenditures
Current
Environmentat protection
Personnel 884,540 31,019 853,521 089,839
Operating 1,869,018 605,048 1,263,970 1,555,526
Assets 221,520 85,822 135,698 33,851
Cost redistribution 170,900 - 170,800 167,000
Total environmental protection 3,145.978 721.886 2,424,089 2,746,316
Debt service 25884 - 25,884 -
Total expenditures 3,171,862 721,883 2449973 2.746.316
Revenues over (under) expenditures {1,002.062) {661,519) (219.803) (615,368)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in - 111,766 111,766 -
Transfers out - - - -
Appropriated fund balance 1,002,062 (1,002,062} - -
Totai other financing sources (uses) 1,002,062 (890.296) 111,766 -
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over {under) expenditures 3 - 3 (108,037} (108,037) {615,366)
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,752,273 2,367,639
End of year - June 30 $ 1544236 § 1752273
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Fayettevilie Finance Cotp Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004}

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Interest eamed on investments b - 3 560 3 560 132
Expenditures
Current
Economic and physical development
Qperating 158,214 155,621 3,583 3,320
Debt service 1,507,964 1 1,507,963 1,516,767
Total expenditures 1,667,178 155622 1,511,566 1,520,087
Revenues over {under) expenditures {1.667.178) (156,182} {1.510.986) {1.519.955)
Other financing sources (uses)
Refunding bonds 5,835,000 - 5,835,000 -
Payment to refunding escrow agent {6,265,297} - (6,265,297) -
Premiurn on bonds 431,212 - 431,212 -
Transfers in 1,666.263 156,182 1,510.081 1,518,955
Total financing sources (uses) 1,667,178 166,182 1,510.996 1,519,955

Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expenditures 5 - % - .

Fund balarnce
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30 5



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

(This page left intentionally blank)



CAP!TAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
Proprietary Funds.
The following comprise the City's Capital Project Funds:

* General Govemme;'lt Fund

* Public Safety Fund

* Recreational and Cultural Fund

* Transportation Fund

*Water and Sewer Fund

* Bond Improvement Fund

* Economic and Physical Development Fund

*Linear Park Fund

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis
of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Generat Government Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues

Expenditures
Current
Administration
Information technology
‘Total expendituras

Revenues over {under} expenditurss

Cther financing sources (uses)

Transfersin

Ravenues and other financing sources
{uses} over (under) expenditures

Fund balance

Baginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

85

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Yaar Total
- - 8 - 3 - 8 -
756,711 634,307 - 54 634.361
756,711 634,307 - 54 534.361
(756,711} {634,307} - (54} (834.361)
756,711 756,711 - - 756 711
- 122404 § - 54 % 122,350
122,404
H 122,350



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Pubiic Safaty Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Prior Closad Current
Authorization Yaars Projects Year Total
Revenues
Miscellaneous
Sale of assets 3 - 3 2072 8 2072 8 - 5 -
Interast earnad on investments - 47 B73 47 873 -
Total revanues - 48,945 49.945 - -
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
School Road Fire Station - 1,236,890 1,236.850 - -
Revenues over {under) expenditures - {1,186.845) {1,188.945 - -
Other financing sources {uses)
Proceeds from capital leases - 1,111,383 1,111,383 - -
Transfers in - 89.325 15,862 - 13,763
Total other financing sources {uses) 1.200,708 1,186,945 - 13,763
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over {under) expandituras S - 8 13763 3 - - % 13,763
Fund balance
Beginning af year - July 1 13,763
3 13,763

End of year - June 30

88



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Yoars Projects Year Totai
Ravenuss
Intergovernmental
Federsl grants/coaiributions s 1.270.287 842,080 - 3 428,207 1,270,287
State grants/contributions 1,080.000 550,060 - 58,102 608.102
Total Intergovernmental 2.360.287 1,392 080 - 487.308 1.878.380
Miscelansous
Other 70,000 70,000 - - 70,000
Donations 474805 114,605 - 135,100 248,705
Tatal miscellanecus 244 £05 184,805 - 135.100 310,708
Interest earnad on Investments 119.682 119,008 - B75 118.882
Total revenues 2724774 1,895,683 - £23.284 2318977
ExpendHiires
Current
Recraationai and community facilitles
Mazarick Park Greemway Trail 387,300 382,991 - - 332,91
Assenal Park - 155,401 155,41 - .
Cape Fear River Trai 2,168,287 1,532,367 - 626,067 2,156,434
Cape Fear River Park 350,000 - - 10,000 10,000
Park improvemenis 10,000 8,31 - - 947
Amtrak Station 600.000 - - 85,668 65,668
Martin Luther King Park 50,000 - - - -
Waestover Recreation Center 192,000 1,513 - 50,805 142,318
Bonnie Doone Park 230,000 - - - -
Fresdom Park 424,605 233,880 - 32,352 2566.242
Totai expenditures 4412192 2,405,533 155,401 784 882 3,035 024
Revenues over {unider} axpendltures {1.687.418) {709.840) {155.401) {181,608) (716,047
Cther financing sourcas (usas)
Transfers in 1,687,418 1,236,243 155,401 595,001 1.675.843
Capital leases, bonds, and other debt - 2,358 - - 2,358
Total other financing sources {uses) 1.687.418 1,238.58% 455,401 595,001 1,678,408
Revenuss and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures s - 528758 - 433,363 962,152
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 528,758
£nd of year - June 30 5. 962154,
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CITY OF FAYETYEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Pror Closad Gument
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
intergovermmentat
Stata grants 5 5000 S 180.260 8§ - % 145429 8§ 275,688
Misceilanequs
Owmner contribution - 35770 - 13,004 48,774
Other 68,346 88 551 - - 88,851
Total miscailanous 68346 124,321 - 13.004 137,325
Tatal revenues 426 346 284,581 - 128433 413,014
Expenditures
Current
Transportation
Traffic controt system 1,529,068 1,194,984 - 5,014 1,199,988
Sidewalks 506,463 66,945 - 165,279 232,228
Parking improvements 5,231,244 890,346 - 40,362 930,708
Transporiation improvements 5,142,876 3,444 313 1,362,178 1,236,804 3,318,939
Gatewsy beautifications 250,000 - - - -
Miscalianeous street improvements B0.300 - - 58,865 58.665
Total axpenditires B 839.652 5,596,592 1,362,178 1.508,124 5,740,538
Revenuas over {under} expenditures (8,413 308€) (5.312,01%) {1,362.17B} {1.377.691}) {5,327.524)
Other financing sources {Uses)
Transfers in 8,077,485 10,408,829 1,362,178 1,551,333 10,597,584
Transfers {out) {664,189} {664,189} - - {664.189}
Total other financing sources {uses) 8.413.306 4.744.840 1,362.175 1,551,333 9,933,795
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures 5 - 8 4432829 5 - 173,642 $ 4506271
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 4431629
S 4 K06 271

£nd of year - June 3%

88



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Water and Sewer Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Ravenues
Miscellansous
Service Temitory Agresment
Total miscellanous
Intarest aarmed on investmants
Total revenues

Ravenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (undsr) expanditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of yaar- June 30

88

Prior Closed Current
Yoars Projects Yeoar Total
% 574.861 5 574,851
574.959 574951
14,108 14,108
589.05% 580 053
589,069 $ S5HY9.058
[
s 589,059



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Bond improvement Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 34, 2005

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Miscellaneous
Cwner contribution - 8 - 3 10,000 8 10.000
Totat miscellansous - - 10.000 10.000
interest earned on investments 2.730.951 2543792 130,548 2.774.339
Total revenues 2.730.951 2,643,793 140,546 2,784,338
Expenditures
Current
Econemic and physical development
Bond administration 2,514,490 1,511,909 35,066 1,546,975
Debt service 868.767 656,853 190,728 847 682
Streets 24,428,611 18,774 270 1,590,542 20,364,812
Water and sewer 860,161 972,184 (11,993) 080,161
Sidewalks 3,186,182 2411178 - 2,411,178
Drainage 7,487 731 5.687 271 35,922 6,724.183
39,445 942 31,013,735 1.841,268 32,855 001
Publlc safety
FSU Fire Station 3,556,000 - 1,204,592 1,204 592
Recreational and community facilities
Debt service 155,887 - 187,743 167,743
Westover Recreational Center 2,814,521 - 1,720,833 1,720,833
Festivat Park 3.896.173 - 537,832 637,832
§.476.591 - 2.526 408 2.526.408
Total expenditures 49.972.533 31,013,735 5,572,266 36,586,001
Revenues over {under) expenditures 47 241.582) {28 368 942) 15.431,720) 133.801.662)
Cther financing sources (uses}
Transfers in 710,000 500,000 210,000 710,000
Capital leases, bonds, and other debt 46.531,582 31,104,991 +5.426.5689 46.531.580
Total other financing sources (uses} 47,241,582 31.604.991 15.636.589 47.241.580
Ravenues and other financing sources
{uses) aver (under} expenditures - 8 3.235.049 10,204,868 §  13.435.918
Fund balance
3.235.049

Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

90

S 13438 918



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARGLINA

Schedule of Ravenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Economic and Physical Development Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Prior Closed Currant
Authorization Yaars Projects Year Total
Revenues
Intargovernmentai
Federal grants 5 350,000 183,121 5 9,788 5 192 804
State grants 2 625702 768.930 1,035.402 1,804.332
Total intergovernmental 2.975702 952,051 1.045,180 1,997 241
Misceilansous
Private donations 3.834.018 1713.6875 1.015.157 2.728.812
Total miscellansous 3,834 18 1,713,675 1015137 2.728 812
intarast samed on investments - 1.740 17,585 19.325
Total revanuss §.800.720 2 B67 488 2.077.412 4.745.378
Expenditures
Current
Economic and physical development
HBrownfields PRot Project 350,000 183,122 9,785 162,907
USO/Amphitheater Demo/Festival Park 3,951,950 1,741,188 486,562 2297778
Cape Fear & Yadkin Valley Depot 3,282,128 981,162 1,284,254 2,255 416
300 Block of Hay Streat 1,400.000 - 788,837 788.837
Total expenditures B 084.078 2885470 2,580,268 5,465,738
Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,174.358) (218.004) (502.358) {720,380}
QOther financing scurces {uses)
Transfers in 2.174.358 1052324 1,400,000 2,432,324
Totai other financing sources {uses) 2.174.358 1,032,324 1,400,000 2,432,324
Revenuss and other financing
sources {uses) over (undar}
expenditures 3 - 814320 £07,644 5 1,711,964
Fund balancs

Bagining of year - July 1

End of year - Jung 30

=]

814,320

S 1808,



Scheduie of Revenues, Expanditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Linear Park

From Incaption And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Ravernues
Intergovernmentai
County grants/contribuons
Total Intergovernmernial

Miscsliansous
Other
‘Tatai miscatlaneous

Interast sarned on investments
Total ravenues
Expenditures
Gurrent
Ratreational and community tacilities
Linear Park
Total expanditures
Ravenues aver (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Jransfers in

Totai other financing sources {uses}

Ravenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - Juty 1

End of year - June 3¢

&2

Project Prior Closed Cutrent
Autharization Years Projecis Year Total

80.000 5 - S 80,000 s 20,000
80.000 - BO,GOD 80,000
1,289,285 188.10G 306.845 504.945
1,269,285 198.100 306.845 504,545
715 533 8.408 8,929
1,350.000 198.633 385,251 533.584
1,400,000 45,810 306.360 352.000
1,400,000 48,610 305.380 352.000
{50.000) 154,023 88,881 241,884
50,000 100 £0.000 50.10¢
50.000 100 50,060 50100
- 5 153,123 138.881 3 291.984

153.123

3 291.984



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

*  Enterprise Funds
*  Internal Service Funds

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net
income, financial position and cash flows. The accounting principles
used here are generally accepted in the United States of America and
are applicable to similar businesses in the private sector.



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed or
operated in a manner similar to private businesses or for operations that
the City has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, management control, accountability,

public policy, or other purposes.
The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds:
*  Electric Fund
*  Water and Wastewater Fund
*  Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
> Transit Fund
* Airport Fund

All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Baiance Sheet

Electric Fund
June 30, 2005
2003A
Uptown Rate Electric
Elactric Ravitalization  Stabilization Revenue Bond
fund Special Fund _Special Fund Fund Total
Axsels
Gurrent unrestricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,330,758 5 - - - H - $ 14,330,759
rvestmeants 5,514,088 - - - 5,514,096
Receivables 18,905 504 - - - 18,905,504
Intemal balances 985,703 {648,258} - {608,835) {267,381
Less allowance for doubtfut accounts (229,183) - - - {229.183)
Inventories 9,925,113 - - - 8,825,113
Qther current asseta 123412 - - - 123.412
Totat currant unrastricted sssats 45,558,384 {846,258) - (609,835} 48,302,300
Currant restrictad assats
Cash and cash squivalents 5,487,323 1,062,088 7.867,445 1.885,540 16,312,407
Investments 3,548,425 - - - 3,548,435
Coliateral pledged in fieu of depasits 242,302 - - - 243,302
Receivables 10,548 - . - 10,549
Totai current restricted assets 9,200 608 1,062,099 7.B67 445 1,B8S 540 20,114 693
Tatal current assets 58 B58.403 415,840 7.867 445 1,475,705 58.416.953
Noncurrent assets
QOther assets 1,430,727 - - - 1,430,727
Capital assets:
Land 4,500,800 - - - 4,500,600
Construction in process 2,055 546 326,733 - 3,215,493 5,507,772
Elaciric utiity system 162,480,088 - - - 162,490,008
Bulldings 29,278,869 - - - 29,278,860
Equipment and machinery 7,480,580 . - - 7,480,880
Compuler programs 3,083,732 - - - 3,083,732
Vehicias 801,874 - - - 801.874
Office equipment 4497.304 - - - 417,304
Capltal assets, net 210,119,204 326,733 - 3215483 213.661,430
Total noncurrent assets 211,549,931 126.733 - 3,215,483 215.092, 157
Total assats § 270,407 934 § 742573 $ 7.867.445 5 4.481.198 § 783.508.150
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilitias to be paid from uhrestricted
current assets
Current portion of long-term debt $ 6,887,085 $ - 3 - $ . § B9ET0I
Aczounts payabte and accrued expansas 15246773 - = 32,036 15,278,809
Total current Habllities to be paid from unrestricted current assets 22,233,868 - - 32.036 22,265 604
Gurrent Habfilties to be paid from
rastricted current assets
Accounts payable and acsrued expenses 3,883,570 - - - 3.883.570
Totaf current liabllities o be pald from
restricted current nssets 3.883.570 - - - 3.883,570
‘Total current liabilities 26,117,438 . - 32.036 26,149,474
Noacurrent liabilities
Long-term debt 43.509.947 - - - 42,900,947
Total noncurrent Habiiities 43,908 947 - - - 43,800 947
Total liabilities 70,027,385 - - 32.036 70.850.421
Net assets
Capital assets nat of related debt 161,094,266 326,733 - 3,215,493 164.636,482
Restrictad for -
Capital Projects (1,243,668} - - 1,243 669 -
Cebt senace 413.005 - - - 413,005
Urrestricted net assets 40.116.947 415.840 7.BE7.445 - 48,400,232
Total net assets 200,380.549 742.573 7.867 445 4,456.182 213.449.729
Total liabliities and net assets 5 270.407.934 £ 742.5713 % 7887443 § 4491188 $ 283.509 150
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Electric Fund
Year ended June 30, 2005

2003A
Uptown Rate Electric
Electric Revitalization  Stabilization Revenue Bond
Fund Special Fund Special Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 146060320 & - 8 - 5 - & 146063329
Total operating revenues 146,069,328 - - - 146.068.329
Operating expenses
Pawer supply and generation 95,399,587 - - - 95,399,587
Electric operation 10,102,663 - - - 10,102,663
Ganeral and administrative 8,117,951 - - - 8,117,851
Depreciation 13,510,821 - - - 13,510,821
Total operating expenses 128,131,122 - - - 128.131,122
Operating income ({oss) 17.938,207 - - - 17,938,207
Nonoperating revenue {expense)
Interest sarned on investments B65,596 - 133.270 - 998,886
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets {273,155) - - - (273,155)
Interest expense {1.845,636) - - - {1,845,636})
Amortization (893,597) - - - (893,597}
Issue costs {162,278} - - - {162.278)
Total nonaperating revenue (expense} {2,308.070) - 133,270 - (2,175.800}
Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions 15,629,137 - 133,270 - 15,762,407
“Transfers in 1,380,192 - 1,250,000 - 2,630,182
Transfers out {1.250,000) (299,551) .- (1,163,544) (2,713,095)
Transfers out - City of Fayettevilie (8,481,253) - - - (8,481,253}
Capital contributions . 951,384 - - - 951.384
Change in net assets 8,229,460 (298.551) 1,383,270 {1.163,544) 8,149,636
Total net assets - beginning 192,151.089 1.042.124 5.484.175 5,622,706 205,300,094
Total net assets - ending 3 2002380548 5 742573 ¢ 7867445 § 4459162 _§ 213,448,729
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actuai (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund

Year ended June 30, 2005
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2004)

2005
Variance
Positive 2004
Budgst {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Operating fevenues
Efectric operations
Sale of electricity $ 138,397,400 $ 1,15261 § 138,550,011 $ 136,405,305
City services 7,157,800 (5,346,141) 1,811,659 1,662,592
Non-utifity charges 1,020,400 326.232 1.346,632 884,427
Sarvice charges 1,150,000 171,184 1,321,184 1,248,694
Misceliarneous 1.618,650 424,213 2,039,863 1.780.902
Tatal operating revenues 148.344.250 {3.274.921) 146,068,329 141.981.920
Non-ogerating revenues
(ain (joss) on asset disposal - (273,155} {273,155) (1.082,556)
Intarest earned on investments £00.000 265,596 865,696 547.832
Total non-operating revenues 600.000 (7.559) 582.441 (544.724)
Contributions
Contributions 1.100.000 {148.616) 951,384 116.186
Total contributions 1,100,000 (148.616) 951,384 116,186

Total revenues 3 151,044,250 $ (3,431,086} $147.613,154 $ 141,553,382
Expenditures
Operating expenditures
Electric operatians
Power supply and generation $ 06,812,850 $ 1,413,263 $ §5,399,587 $ 94,.4357TT1
Administration 427,490 155.063 267,427 380.311
Apparatus repair shop 455945 92,638 363,307 388,524
Eisctric meter shop £89,850 161.601 528,249 523,040
Construction and maintenance 5.588,905 586,364 6,002,541 7,583 651
Substation construction 1,413,750 349,944 1,083,806 1,128,088
Engineering 1,877,730 85 1,877,645 1,699,074
Cverhead cieanng - 312 (312) {18,748}
Total electric operations 108,261,520 2,758,270 105,502.250 106.118.723
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non GAAP) -
Elactric Fund

Year ended June 30, 2005
{with comparative actua! amounts for the year ended June 30, 2004)

2005
Variance
Positive 2004
Budget {Negative} Actual Actual
Expenditures {continued)
General and administrative

Executive $ 590,295 $ £3,702 H 530,593 $ §49,425
tnternal audit B7,855 16,835 68,320 87,127
Public information 492,830 {11,457} 504,287 401,845
Financial admiristration 122,880 3,158 118,722 108,061
Admimstrative - administration 86,355 53 86,302 93,918
Humarn resources 388,795 18,884 370,811 360,343
Accounting 426,345 53,662 372,683 362,443
Accounts raceivable 588,530 18,296 570,234 536,415
Payroll 61,880 4,364 57,526 58,700
Customer sarvice administration 1,797,325 100,950 1,696,375 1,835,030
Meter reading 284,925 V292 291,633 279,501
Utility fiefd services 423,705 {2.123) 425,828 442,431
Business planning 251,580 9,147 242 433 230,903
Business development 382,815 28 362,886 263,529
Risk management 334,225 6,645 327,580 306,283
Capital projects 162.455 1,683 160,772 161,079
Rates 47,605 75 97,529 78.283
Budget 88.245 5.8 83,227 74,443
Purchasing 182,190 42,1473 150,049 158,535
Warahouse 433 120 {323,337} 756,457 501,472
Business planning, develapment & logistics 205,840 23 205,817 154,375
Fleet maintenance 1,121,905 83,383 1,038,522 885,695
Faciliies maintenance 155,800 4,890 150,810 151,632
Metering management 167,065 18,248 147,817 179,225
Telecommunications systems 530,190 90,832 439,258 302,244
Infarmation systems g57.725 154 857,574 B49,440
Pension expanse 25,000 18,578 6,422 8,271
Medical insurance 2.191,800 {46,026) 2,237,626 2,071,650
Other {54,610) 333,706 (368,318) (542,418)
Owerhead clearing (2,569,705} 403,921 {2.973 628} (2.678.3381

Total general and administrative 10.039.875 921.924 9.117.951 8,241,402

Tatal operating expenditures 116,301,395 3.681.194 114.620,201 114,360,125

Nan-operating expenditures

Interest expense 1,871,000 25,364 1,845,636 1,945,508
Issue cosis 463.000 722 162.278 154.337

“rotal non-operating expenditures 2,034,000 26,086 2.007.914 2 149.845
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues and Ex

Year ended June 30, 2005

penditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund

(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2004)
2005
Yariance
Positive 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Transfers out
Transfers to City of Fayetteville % 5,469,900 s  (11.399) $ B,481,253 $ 8412809
Transfers to Electric Rate Stabilzation Fund 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 2,000.000
Total tranafers out 9.719.900 (11,353} 9,731,253 10.412.809
Budgatary appropriations
Inverntary increase - 244,149 (244,149) 322,756
vehicle and equipment - (596,072) 556,072 158,633
Bond principal paymants 6,737,800 20 6,737.880 3,318,545
Capital outlay 8,757,150 779,563 8,977,587 8,007,731
Appropriated net assets 4.493.9¢5 4.403.905 - -
Total budgetary appropriations 20.958.955 4.621.565 16.067.290 12.807.665
Total expenditures 5151.044.250 5 8.617,492 $142,426.758 £130.730,444
Raconciilation of change in net assots
Tota] revenuss $ (3,431,086) $147,613,154 % 141,553,382
Total expenditures 8.617.492 142,426 758 138,730,444
Subtotal $ 5.186.396 5,186,386 1,822,936
Reconciling itams:
Budgetary appropriations 16,067,320 {2,807,665
Depreciation (13,510.821) (13,023,350)
Amartization {893,597) (783,728)
Transfer of assets (to} / from the 2003A Electric Revenue Bond Fund 1,163,544 {5,622,708)
Transfer of assets (to) / from the Uptown Revitalization Capital Project Fund 216.648 1,117,786
Total reconciling ltems 3.043.064 {5.504.333),
$ B.229.460 8 (3.681.395)

Change in net assets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, MORTH CAROLINA

* gchedule of Changes in the Status of U
From Inception and for the ‘Year E

ptown Revitalization Fund

Revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures
Museum land acquisition
Baotanical gardens
Consulting fees
Musewm construction
Transportation system
{ and danaticn
Riverfront development
Hydrology study
Electric system improvements
Water/Sewer improvements

Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfer from Eleciric Fund
Totat cther financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capitai outlay

“Teansfer of assets to tha Electsic Fung

Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater

Change in net assets

98

nded June 30, 2005
Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total

$ .3 - $ - -
- 2,346,547 - 2,346,547
- 55,705 - 55,705
- 132,304 - 132,304
- 7,153,454 “ 7,153,454
- 160,000 - 160,000
- 175,000 - 175,000
- 78,776 - 79,778
- 5,704 - 6,704
- 2.877.577 358,883 3,236,470
- 470.508 267,31 738,200
14.500,000 13,457,876 526,284 14,084.160
{14,500.000) (13.457 8786) (626.284) {14,084 160}
14,500,000 14,500,060 - +4,500.000
44,500,000 14,500,000 - 14.500.000
§ .5 1042124 (676,284) _§ 415.840

526,284

(216,848}

82.803)

$ (299551



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Electric Rate Stabllization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Total
Project Prior Gurrent
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Imerest earned on investments % 695,000 $ 584,450 $ 133,270 $ 697,720
Rate stabilization transfer 4,169,725 4 169,725 - 4,169,728
Total revenues 4,864,725 4734175 133,270 4. BE7 445
Expenditures - - - -
Total expenditures - - . -
Revenues under expenditures 4,664,725 4734175 433,270 4,867 445
Cther financing sources
Transfer rom Electric Fund 7,000,000 6,750,000 1,260,000 8,000,000
Transter ta Electric Fund {5.000,000) {5.000.000} - (5.000,000)
Approptiated net assets {6,864 725) - - -
Totai other financing sources (4,864 725) 1.750.000 1,250,000 3.000.000
Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures $ - $ 6484 175 1,383,270 § 7.867.445

Reconciling items:
Toial reconciling items -
Change in net assets $ 1.383,270
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedute of Changes in the Status of 2003A Electric Revenue Bond Capital Project Fund
From inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Yaar Totai
Interest earmed 5 45,000 3 38.739 3 50,671 ] 95,410
Total revenues 45.000 38,738 50.671 95,410
Expenditures
Construction - 266,207 2,325,974 2.582,181
Engineering - 208,230 254,643 462,873
Other - 765.628 £95 525 1,264,153
Total expenditures 5 675.000 1,240 065 3,176,142 4,416,207
Revenues under expenditures {5.630.000) (1,201,326} (3.115.471) (4.316.787)
Other financing sources {uses}
2003A Revenue Band proceeds 5,630,000 5,622,706 - 5522706
Transfer to Etectric Fund - - 62,2400 (52.240)
Total other financing sources
(uses) 5.630,000 5.622.706 (62,240} 5,560.466
Revenues and other flnancing
sources over expenditures 3 .5 4421380 (3.177.711) 5 __1.243.669
Reconclling items:
Capital outlay 3,115,471
Transfer of assets to the Elactric fund (1.101,304)
Change in net assets s g1.353.544!
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CITY OF EAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Baiance Sheet

Water and Wastawater Fund
June 30, 2005
2003A, Water
Annaxation Annexation Annexation 2002 State Water and Resources
Watar and Capitat Capitai Capital Revolving Loan  Wastewater Rate
Wastewater  Project Fund Reserve Project Fund  Capital Project Ravenus Bond  Stabilization
Fund Phase VA Fund Phase VB Fund Fund Fund Tatal
Assats
Current unrestricted assets
Cash and cash equivaients §$ 7057528 $ - 3 - 8 - 3 - § - % - § 1.057.528
Investnents 2,363,184 - - - - - - 2,363,184
Receivanies 12,829,672 - - 47,630 960,430 48,836 - 13,896,668
Internal balances 171,634 (47,046} - 433,122 (357,727} 67,408 - 267,291
Less ailowance for douptful accounts {61,851) - - - - - - {81,851
Invensteries 1,060,713 - - - - - - 1,060,713
Other current 885815 128,712 - . - - - - 128,712
Tota! current unrestrictad asssts 23,580,590 (7 048) - 480,752 802 703 116,344 - 24712343
Current restricted asgets
Cash and cash aquivalants 7.455,528 42,786 572,548 3,797,334 - 2,350,745 £00.041 14,719,982
investmanis 14,737.563 - - - - - - 11,747,553
Recewvables 119,687 4,260 - 751,582 - - - B75.529
Total current restricted assats 19.313.768 47 045 572,548 4548916 “ 2,350,745 500,041 27333064
Total current assats 42 B3 358 - 572,548 5020668 802,703 2 467,088 £00.041 52.045 407
Noncurrent assets
QOther asse!s 2 657,513 = - - — - - 2657513
Capital assets;
Land 7.050,301 B - - - - - 7,050,301
Construction in prOCess 9,367,801 - - 4,048 464 12,330,420 784,889 - 26,542 674
‘Water sysiem 123,123,624 - - - - - - 123,123,624
Sawer system 199,373,431 - - - - - - 199,373,431
Buiidings 3,229,330 - - - - - - 3,228,330
Equipment and machinery 1,557,539 - - - - - - 1,557,539
Camputer programs 2815585 . - - - - - 2815585
Vehicles 57,872 - - - - . . 057,872
Dffica equipment 58,930 - - - - - - 68,930
Capital assets, nat 347 544 512 - - 4040 464 12,330,420 794 889 . 364,718,265
Total noncurrent assets 350,202 026 - - 4 (149 464 12, 330 420 794 88% - 367 376,795
Total zusets 393075384 5 . % S72548 & 9079132 % 12933423 § 3061978 5 500041 _§418.422 208
Liabitities and net axsets
Current pertion of long-amm debt $ 51222681 % - § - 3 - § 591,552 8§ - % - § 573813
Accourts payable and accrued axp 13,999,112 - - 1,296,087 1,102,081 237 681 - 16,834,541
Total current liabillties to be pald
from unrestricted currant assets 18 121,373 - - 4,296 DBT 1,663 633 237 661 - 22,248 754
current linbilities to be paid from
restricted current asseis
Accounts payabie end accrued axpenses 1,284 638 - - - - - - 1,264 638
Total current lisbillties to be paid
from restricted current assats 1,284.638 - - - : - - 1.284 538
Total current flabilitias 20,408 011 - - 1,296,087 1,683 633 237.661 - 23 533,362
Long-lerm dedt 124,899,943 - - - 11,239,480 - - 136,138.633
Uneamed depcaits 2.035.327 - - - - : - 2035327
Total noneurrent llabliitiss 126,934,470 - - 2 . 13,739.480 - - _ 138173960
Total liabllities 147,340.481 - - 1,296.087 12,933,123 237.681 - 161,807,352
MNet assats
Capital assets net of ralated dent 230,622.538 - - 4,049, 464 438,378 794,880 - 235,566,369
Restricied for -
Caprat Projects {5.963.008) - - 3,733,584 - 2,229,428 B -
Dabt servica 404,628 - - - - - oo 404.628
Usrastictad net assets 20,670 645 - 572548 - 1499378} - 506 041 21,243.857
Total net assets 245,734,903 - 572546 7783045 - 3,024,317 500.041 257 f14. 854
Total liabilities and net assets 5393075384 5 . § 572548 § 0070132 8§ Qi:gl_.’!_}n &1 378§ SO0.041 S$419.422 206
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Combining Statement of Revenues,

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Expenses and Changes in Fund Not Assats

Water and Wastewsatar Fund
Yaar ended June 30, 2005
Water
A ation  Anr Annexaton 2002 State 2002A Resources
Watsr and Capital Gapital Capital Revolving LoanRevenus Bond Rats
Wampwater  Project Fund Ruserve Project Fund Capital Project Capital Project Stabilizaticn
Fund Phase VA Fund Phasa VB Fund Eund Fund Toetal
Operating revenues
Charges far services 5 47044534 | § - 5 - 8 - % - .3 -3 - 5 A7 044534
Total operating revenues 47.044 534 - - - - - 47,044 634
QOperating expanses
Water operajona 8.4881,171 - B - - - - B.891 171
Sanitary sewer operations BA477.893 - - - - - 8477893
Ganeral and adminisgative 9.524,870 . - - - 9,526 870
Depreciation 11,802,521 - - - - : - 11,802 521
Total operating expenses 38 698.555 - - - - - 38,608,553
Qperating income (joss) 8,348,079 - - . - - §,345.078
Nonoperating revenus (expensea)
Interest aamed on investments 240,117 - 11,522 - - 41 951,68C
Gain (foss) on disposal of assets 56,536 . - B - - 86,536
Interast expense (5,317,637 - - - - (5.317.637)
Amertization {932.978) - - - - - {932,976}
Issua costs {262.886) - - - - - (382,886)
Tolal nonapersting revenue (expe 15.536.848) - 11,522 - - - A1 (5.825.283)
jncome (loss) before transfors
and contributions 2.709.233 - 11,622 - - 41 2720786
Transfers in 5,434,378 - B 338,268 - - 500,000 6,272,647
Transfers out {500,000) (334,009) - (3,037,311} - (2,318,424 - (B,188,744)
Transfers out - City of Faysttevile (1,142,947) - - - - - - {1,142,847}
Capital contributions 13,800,547 - - - - - - 132,800,547
Change in nat assets 20,401,211 {334,009) 11,522 (2,899,042} - (2.318.4H) 500,041 15,561,299
Total net assets - beginning 225.333.692 334.008 561,026 10,482,087 - 5342741 - 242 083 555
Tatal net assats - ending § 245734903 § 7783045 8 . & apa317 8500041 § 267.61 4.854

. § B72b48
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAF) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2005
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2004)

2008
Variance
Positive 2004
Budget {Negative) Actuai Actual
Revanues
Qperating revenues
Water operations
Water sales $ 20,508,190 $ (1,014.401) $ 15,493,769 % 18,353,229
Connection fees £60,000 265,606 925,606 783,323
City services 72.410 {44113 £7,998 67,559
Totzl water operations 21,240,600 (753,206} 20.487,384 19,244 111
Sanitary sewer operations
Sewer charges 23,883,700 157,980 24,141,680 23,604,965
Connection fees 400,000 521,588 921,588 827,122
City services 39,000 (612) 38,388 38.860
Total sanitary sewer operations 24,422, 700 &78, 956 25.401,656 24 470.947
Other operating revenues
Non-utility charges 835,800 463,668 1,289,468 1,403,014
Service charges 215,000 54,050 279,050 271,612
Miscetaneous 237,250 (360,184) {122,934) {107.558)
Total other operating revenues 1,288,050 167,534 1,455 584 1,567,068
Tota] operating revenues 46,951,350 93,284 47.044.634 45,282,126
Non-operating ravenues
Gain (loss) on asset disposal - 66,536 68,536 85,038
Interest eamed on investments 900,000 40,117 940,117 BE6. 166
Total non-operating revenues 900,000 106.653 1,008,653 981,205
Contributions
Contributions 7.342.000 {1.275.912) 5,068 088 B8.029,173
Total contributions 7.342.000 (1,275,912} 5,066,088 8028173
Transfers in
Transters from Annexation Phase |ll - - - 2.4573,723
Transfers from 1897 Supplemental - - - 2.649.055
Total tranfers in - - - 4,822 778
Budgetary appropriations
Deparment of Transpertation financing 7.065.100 (762.824) 6,302,276 -
Total budgetary appropriations 7.065.100 (762.824) 5,302.276 -
Total revenues 5 52,258.450 § (1,838,709) 3 60,419,651 $ 59.115,282
Expenditures
Operating expendituras
Water operations
Administration and engineering $  §24.205 5 68,320 §$ 855885 $ 742,069
Watar meter shap 756,650 262,620 494,030 776,166
Construction and maintenance 3,143,080 438,171 2,704,908 3,179,162
P. O. Hoffar water treatment plant 2,980,744 47,919 2,932,825 2.5581.282
Glenviile Lake water treatment plant 1,456,083 98,864 1,357,219 1,185,365
Water resources environmental system protaction 130,885 546 130,338 122666
Labaratory 213.220 18,118 195,102 185,369
Environmentai 84,850 3,147 81,703 86,386
Watersheds 158,250 20,091 139,158 161.401
Total water opsrations 3.848.967 §57.786 8.891.171 5,999 876
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2005
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2004)

2005
Variance
Positive 2004
Budget __{Neqative) Actuai Actual
Expenditures {(continued)
Operating expenditures (continued)
Santtary sewer operations
Administration and engineering $ 824208 $ 68,323 5 B55.882 $ 742075
Sewer construction and maintenance 3,738,664 641,083 3,097,581 3,307,663
Cross Creek WW trestment plant 2,034,484 78,025 1,853,459 1,855,657
Rackfish Creek WW treatment piant 2,107,754 89,405 2,018,349 1,603,972
Rasiduals management 151,220 7.640 143.580 178,465
Water rescurces environmenital system protection 130,885 548 130,337 122,666
Laboratory 213,220 18,117 195,103 195,369
Environmental B84.850 3,148 81,702 85,388
Total sanitary sewer operations 9,385,282 907.28¢ 3.477.393 8,182,255
General and administrative

Exacutive 275,285 97,842 177,443 211,433
Internat audit 87865 18,394 58,271 65,218
Pubfic information 472,120 {18,343} 491,063 414127
Financial administration 116,670 3B 116,634 107,085
Administrative administraticn 80,265 578 79,686 80,060
Humnan resources 380,685 33,924 346,761 352,720
Accounting 426,355 53.737 372,618 362,083
Accounts raceivable 588,520 26,686 561,824 525,795
Payroll 61,880 4,356 §7.524 58,213
Customer service administration 1,377,325 100,216 4,277,108 1,562,474
Mater reading 208,915 14,834 283,881 274,804
Litility fietd service 425,105 73 425,032 356,533
Business development 329,125 60,049 268,176 212,690
Busingss planning 258,290 14,667 244723 237,568
Risk managameant 343,225 {3,760) 346,985 338,280
Capital projects 162,465 4,272 158,193 155,030
Rates 93,215 3,466 89,748 79,251
Budget 88,245 5,240 B3,005 - 73870
Purchasing 192,200 43,420 148,780 157.024
Warehouse 268,140 48,570 217,570 74.895
Business planning, development & logistics 171,340 {31,268) 202,808 152.663
Fleet maintenanca 1,332,908 80,050 1,252,855 1,000.193
150,500 485 150,015 150,007

Facilities maintenance
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2005
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2004}

2005
Yariance
Positive 2004
Budget (Negative} Actual Actual
Expendifures (continued)
Operating expanditures (continuad)
General and administrative {continued)
Metoring management $ 167,085 3 19,312 $ 147,753 $ 161,383
Teiecommunications systems 530,180 125,765 404,425 265,585
information sysiems 942,735 {13,294) 856,029 844,994
Pension expenses 25,600 18,578 6,422 8,264
Medical insurance 2,272,200 {22,954) 2,295,154 2,121.067
Other 1,623,000 461,556 1,161,444 1,433,880
Qverhead clearing (3,816,005) (951,043} (2.864.962) (2.588.903)
Total general and administrative 9,724,325 167 455 9.526.870 9,248.266
Total operating expanditures 28 958,574 2,062 540 26,896,034 26,440,297
Non-operating expenditures
Interest expense 5,202.000 (115,837) 5,317,637 5,491,645
I1ssue costs 308.100 5214 392.886 1,267,507
Total non-operating expenditures 5.600,100 (110,423) 5710.523 6,758,152
Transfers out
Transfer to City of Fayetteville 1,143,000 53 1,142,547 1,074,660
Transfer to Water Resources Rate Stabilization Fund 500,000 - 500,000 -
Total transfers out 1,643.000 53 1.642.947 1,074,660
Budgetaty appropriations
Inventory increase - (212,217) 212,217 {200,483)
Vehicle and equipment - [588,195) 588,195 (92,568)
Bond principal payments 4,897,000 379,880 4,517,120 15,321,455
State loan payments - (379,756) 379,758 379,758
NC DOT project payments 2,260,000 2,260,000 - -
Capital outlay 18,074,350 1,294 557 16,779,793 5,583,854
Appropriation of net assets 825.426 825 426 - -
Total budgetary appropriations 26,066,776 3.579.685 22 477.081 21.892.016
Total expenditures $ 62,258,450 $ 55321.865 § 56.726.585 $ 56.266,225
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE. NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2005
{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2004)

2005
Variance
Positive 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Reconciliation of change in net assets
Total revenues $ (1,838,799) % 50.419,651 3 58,115,282
Total expenditures 5,531,865 56.726,583 56,266,225
Subtaotal $ 3.693.066 3,683,088 2,840,057
Reconciling items:

Budgetary appropriations 16,174,805 21,992,016
Depreciaticn {11,802,521) (11,341,587)
Amonrtization (932,878) (998,754}
Beveloper and FIF credits 9,204.027 -
Assessments {1,369,568) -
Transfer of assets {to} / from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase VA {4.260) 1,978,684
Transter of assets (to) / from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase VB 3,037.211 {64,304)
Transfer of assets (to) / from Annexatien Capital Project Fund Phase lii - (249)
Transfer of assets (to) / from Uptown Revitalization Fund 82,903 348,112
“fransfer {to) / from 2003A Bond Capital Project Fund 2,318.424 {16,342.741)
16,708,145 (4.388.945)

Totai reconciling items

Change in net agsets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase IVA
Erom Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues 5 - 8 - 5 - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures - Phase iV-A
Canstruction - 5,556,185 - 5,556,185
Engineering - 1,034,602 - 1,034,802
Rights of way - 92,585 - 92,585
Lass City of Fayatteville participation - (1,286,108) (4,260) (1,290,368)
Other - 168,727 - 168,727
Total expenditures - Phase [V-A 5,561,731 5,565,991 {4,260} 5.861.731
Total expenditures 5,561,731 5.565.991 (4.260) 5.561.731
Revenues under expenditures (5.561,731) {5,565,891) 4.260 {5.561.731}
Other financing soutces
Transfer to Annexation Phase V-8B CP Fund (338,269) - (338,269} (338,268)
Transfer from Annexation Reserve Fund 3,500,000 3,500,000 - 3,500,000
Transfer from Annexation Phase lil
Capitai Project Fund 2,400.000 2.400.000 - 2,400,000
Total other financing sources 5561731 5,900.000 (338.269) 5 661,731
Raevenues and other financing sources
over axpenditures 3 - 3% 334,000 (334,009 8 -
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay {4,260y
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund 4260
Change in net assets 3 (334.009)
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CiTY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedute of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Reserve Fund
¥rom inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Interest eamed on investments
Total revenues

Ravenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
Transter from Water and Wastewater
fund
Transfer to Annexation Phase [V
Capital Project Fund
Appropriated net assets

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Total reconciling items
Change in net assets

Tatal
Project Prior Current

Authorization Yoars Year Tatal
3 56,127 $ 61.026 3 11,522 3 72.548
56,127 §1.026 11,522 72,548
56,127 61,026 11,522 72548
4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
(3,500,000} (3,500,000} - (3.500,000)
(556,127} - - -
(56.127) 540,000 - 500,000
3 - 3 561,026 11,522 § 572548

e
3 11.522
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase IVB

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Inferest earned on investments ] - 8 - 3 243585 3 243.585
Total revenues - - 243,585 243,585
Expenditures
Construction - 2,463,045 4,858,628 7.321,673
Engineering - 1,388,720 342218 1,730,938
Rights of way - 147,43 10,526 158,017
Less City of Faystteville participation - (1,027,889) (885,127) (1,917,116)
Otiner - 335.929 218.831 554.780
Total expenditures 12.000.000 3.307,186 4.541.076 7.848.272
Revenues under expenditures {12.000.000) {3.307.186) {4,267.491) {7.604.687)
COther financing sources
Bond proceeds 12,040,000 11,000,000 - 11,000,000
Transfer from Annexation Phase VA Fund - - 338.269 338.269
Total other financing sources 12,000,000 11,000.000 338.269 11,338,268
Revenues and other financing sources
over expendhures s - % 7.692 804 (3,950222) % 3,733,582

Reconciling Hems:
Capital outiay
Transfer of assets {o the Water and Wastewater fund

Change in nat assets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2002 State Revolving L.oan Capital Profect Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures
Construction
Engineering
Other/Contingency
Totai expendltures

Ravenues under expenditures

Cther financing sources (uses}
Stale revolving inan proceeds
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capital outlay
l.oan procaeds
Change in net assets

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
$ - - 5 - 8 -
- 4,678,835 6,039,917 10,718,852
- 924,839 336,485 1,261,324
- 315.827 34,317 350,244
17,442,000 5.919.701 6410719 12,330,420
(17442000} {5.818,701) (65,410,719} {12,320.4201
47,442.000 5,411,856 5.418.188 11,831,042
17,442,000 5,411.856 6.419.186 11.831.042
3 - (507.845) 8,467 _3% {459.378}
6,410,718
(6,419,186}
L4 -
m=ﬁ‘—‘===
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2003A Water and Wastewater Revenue Bond Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Total
Project Prior Current
_ Authorization Years Year Tatal
Revenue
Interest earned on investments S 135.000 116215 % {61.570), _$ 54 845
Total revenues 135,000 116.215 (61,570} 54 645
Expenditures
Construction - 1,589,92¢ 1,400,921 2,990,850
Engineering - 207,395 {41.840) 165,555
Other - 44,520 293.359 337.878
Total expenditures 6,003,118 1.841,844 1,652 440 3,454 284
Revenues under expenditures {5,868, 119} {1.725,629) (1,714.910) {3.439.639}
Other financing sourcas {uses)
2003 Revenue Bond proceeds 5,868,119 5,868,119 - 5,868,119
Transfer to Water and Wastewater fund - - (199.052) {199,052}
Total other financing sources 5.868.119 5.868.119 {198.052) 5,668.067
Revenues and other financing sources
4,142,490 (1,913,062) $ 2,229,428

over expenditures $ .

Reconciling lems:
Capital outlay
Transfer of assels to the WaterWastewater fund
Change in net assets

1,714,010
2,118,372
3 2,318,424



GITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Water Resources Rate Stabilization Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Totail
Project Prior Current
Authorization Yeaars Year Total
Revenues
Interest earned on investments 3 500 3 - 3 41 s 41
Total revenues 500 - 41 41
Other financing sources
Transfer fram Water/Sewer Fund 500,000 - 500,0C0 500,000
Appropriated net assets {500.500) - - “
Total other financing sources [500) - 500.000 500,000

Revenues and other financing

sources over expenditures 5 - - - 500,041 8 500.041

Reconciling items:
Total reconciling tems

Change in net assets $  500.041



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS



CIiTY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Baiance Sheet

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2005

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivabie
Inventories
Restricted cash and investments
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Other assets
Capital assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
interfund payables
Accrued vacation
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Deferred revenues
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
$ 785235 $ 24836829 % 3,268,864
278,230 771,984 1,050,214
18,079 3,478 21,557
- 512,536 512,536
1,081,544 3,771,627 4,853,171
- 88,000 88,000
3,240,615 22,205,088 25,445,703
3,240,615 22,293,088 25,633,703
$ 4,322,159 $ 26064715 $ 30,386,874
$ 157,187 3§ 212684 % 369,871
- 372,511 372,511
87,405 47,716 135,121
244 592 632,911 877.503
- 39,910 39,910
- 39,910 39,910
244,592 672,821 917.413
3,240,615 22,205,088 25,445,703
- 512,536 512,536
836.952 2,674,270 3,511,222
4 077,567 25,391,894 29.469.461
$ 4322159 § 26064715 $ 30,386874
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2005
Total Nonmajor
Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services 806,536 2,314,147 3,120,683
Other revenue from operations 29,548 288.326 317,874
Total operating revenues 836,084 2602473 3,438,557
Operating expenses
Personnel 2,410,747 959,393 3,370,140
Maintenance and operations 1,464,816 1,160,218 2,625,034
Depreciation 803,782 1,370,820 2,174,602
Total aperating expenses 4.679,345 3,490,431 8,169,776
Operating income {loss) (3,843,261) (887,958) (4,731,219)
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
interest earned on investments - 67,489 67,489
Federal and State grants 1,893,122 60,870 1,853,892
Passenger facility charges - 438,428 438,428
Miscellaneous revenue ' 7,500 84,296 81,796
interest expense - (23,217) (23,217
Amortization - (22.000) (22,000}
Public safety reimbursement - (271.023) (271.023)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 1,900,622 334,843 2,235,465
income (loss) hefore transfers
and contributions (1,942,639} (553.118) (2,485 754)
Transfers in 1,206,000 - 1,206,000
Transfers out - : - -
Capital contributions 186,445 1,818,918 2,105,363
Change in net assets (550,194) 1,365,803 815,609
Total net assets - beginning 4 627,761 24,026.091 28,653,852
Total net assets - ending 4077567 $ 25391894 $ 29.469.461
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Filows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Totai Nonmajor

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Other operating revenue
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services
Cash paid for goods and services
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Noncapital financlng activities
Transfers in
Federal and state grants
Nonoperating revenues
Other
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities
Contributed capital received
Capital contributions - Federal grant
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on debt maturities
Interest paid on debt maturities
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
retated financing activities

Investing activities

Interest and dividends
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalentsi/investments

Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year

End of year

Cash and cash equivaients
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments

Unrestricted cash and equivalents/investments
Restricted cash and equivalentsfinvestments
Total cash and cash equivalentsfinvestments
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Transit Alrport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
$ 1205364 $ 2,306,694 3 3,602,058
29,548 306,822 336,470
(2,402,623} {961,868) (3,364,491)
{1,482.852) {1.134.852) (2.617.704)
(2,650,563} 606,896 (2,043 ,667)
1,206,000 - 1,206,000
1,893,122 60,870 1,953,992
7,500 522,724 530,224
- (271,023) {271.023)
3,106,622 312,571 3419,193
186,445 - 186,445
- 1,918,818 1,918,818
(198,7886) {2,064,366) (2,263,152)
- (26,410) (26,410)
- (23.217) {23.217)
{12,341) {195,075) {207.416)
- 67,489 67.489
- 57,489 67.489
443 718 791,881 1,235,599
341,517 2,204,284 2545 801
5 785235 § 2996165 % 3,781,400
$ 785235 & 2096165 % 3.781,400
5 785235 $ 2.996165 S 3,781,400
$ 785235 § 2,4B3628 3 3,268,864
- 512,536 512.536
$ 785235 § 2996165 § 3,781,400




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Total Nonmajor
Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (foss)
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities

Operating income (l0ss) 3 (3843261} § (887,958} 3 (4,731,219)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to net cash provided by {used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation : 803,782 1,370,820 2,174,602
Change in assets and liabilities
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 409,532 82547 492,079
(Increase) decrease in inventary (10,704) (495) (11,199)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities (18,036) 25,861 7.825
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated
absences 8,124 (2,475) 5,649
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues - 18,596 18,596
Total adjustments 1,192,698 1,494 854 2 BB7.552

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities § (2.650.563) _$ 606896 § {2.043,867)

11§



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAFP)
Transit Fund

Year Endad June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004)

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 755434 8§ 51,102 $ 806,536 3 804,782
Other revenues from operations 32,200 {2.652) 29,548 37.876
Total operating revenues 787,634 48,450 836.084 842,658
Operating expenditures
Personnej 2,425,285 22,672 2,402,623 2,544 270
Maintenance and operations 1,522,795 193,207 1,329,588 1.287.312
Total operating expenditures 3,948,080 215,879 3,732,211 3,831,582
Operating loss (3,160.456) 264,329 {2.896,127) (2.088,924)
Nonoperating revenues {expenditures)
Federal and State grants 1,890,000 (118,903) 1,771,097 1,800,248
interest expense (281) 281 - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expendltures) 1,889,719 {118.622) 1,771.087 1,800,248
Ravenues under expenditures (1,270,737) 145,707 {1,125,030} {1,188,676)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 1,272,765 {159,125} 1,113,640 1,183,211
Debt service-principle payments (2,028) 2.028 - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,270,737 {157,067} 1.113.640 1,183,211
Revenues and other financing
sources {uses} over (under} expenditures g - .5 (11,2390 _§ {(11,390) _§ 4,535
Reconciliation of change in net assets:
Total revenues $ 3,720,821 $ 3,836,117
Totai expenditures 3,732,211 3,831.582
Subtotal ) (11,380} 4,535
Depreciation (803,782) (812,435)
Change in inventory 10,703 864
t.oss on disposat of assets - {32,511}
Decrease (increase} in accrued vacation (B.124) 25.298
Subtotal (801.203) (819,084}
$ {812.593} _3 {814 649}

Change in net assets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transit Capital Project Fund

Erom Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Prior Closed Current
Agthorization Years Projscts Year Total
Ravenues
Federal grants $ 3614575 S 1,341,344 § - % 167,307 % 1,508.651
State grants 388,272 146,804 - 19,138 166,042
County - 10.980 - - 10,880
Miscellaneous - 19,251 - - 19.251
Total revenues 4,013,847 1.518.479 - 186.445 1.704.824
Expenditures
FTA Capital 0229 350,000 350,000 - - 350,000
FTA Capital 0244 B13,625 773.505 - 40,120 813625
FTA Capitat 0271 1,238,560 551,961 - 169,016 720977
FTA Capital 0262 35,000 - - - -
FTA Capital 0313 1,239,430 1,215 - - 1,218
FTA Capital 0327 800.000 - - - -
Total expenditures 4.476.615 1,676.681 - 208,136 1,885,817
Revenues over (under) expenditures (462,768} (158.262) - {22 691} {180.893)
Other financing sources (uses)
‘transfers in 422,768 501,869 - 75,760 577.628
Appropriated fund balance 40.000 - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 462,768 501,869 76,760 577.629
Revenues and other financing
sources {uses} over {under}
expenditures 5 - 3 343,667 $ - 3 53,089 5 396.736
Raconciliation of medtfied accrual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over expenditures 8 53,068
Capital outiay 209,136
10.349)

Non-capitalizable items .
Change In net assets 3 251,886
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedute of Changes in the Status of

Transit |} Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenues
Federal grants
State grants
Miscelianeous
Total revemies

Expenditures
Current
Transportation
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Totai other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing
sources {uses) over {(under)
expenditures

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over axpenditures
Change in net asseis

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
§ 262600 S 214,514 - & 108,370 § 322,884
112,825 26,813 - 13,655 40,468
7.500 - - 7.500 7.500
475,425 241,327 - 129,525 363,352
528,250 268,143 - 135.582 403,725
528,250 268,143 - 135,682 403.725
{52.825) {26.816) - {6.057) (40,373)
45 325 45,326 - 16,600 61,826
45,325 45,326 - 16,600 61,926
5 (7.500) 8§ 18,510 - 8 10,543 _§ 21,553
5 10,543
3 10,543
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedute of Expenditures by Project
Transit | Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Expenditures by project:
Transpottation
FTA 90.2282 § 150000 § 150000 S - 03 - $ 180,000
FTA 90.2313 153,250 115,870 - 32,604 148,474
FTA 90.2327 150,000 2,273 - 102,857 105,130
NCDOT Trolley Fessibility Study 75,000 - - 121 121
‘Total transportation 528,250 268,143 - 135,582 403.725
Total expenditures by project § 528250 _§ 268143 _§ - .3 135582 &  403.725
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

schedule of Revenues and Expenditures « Budget and Actual {Non-GAAF)
Airport Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004}

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Charges for services § 2197011 % 117436 & 2,314,147 2,004,185
Other revenues from cperations 267,126 21,200 288,326 321430
Total operating revenues 2,484,137 138,336 2.602.473 2325615
Operating expenditures
Personnel 991,307 29,439 961,868 890,174
Mairtenance and operations 1,003,817 34,993 968,824 784,708
Capital outlay 166.713 36,668 130,044 831,679
Totai operating expenditures 2,161.837 101.101 2,060,736 2,508,561
Operating income {ioss}) 302,300 239,437 541,737 - {180.846)
Nonoperating revenues
interest eamed on investments 15,200 4,250 19,450 3,722
Passenger facility charge - (1,146} {1.148) -
Miscellaneous 74,679 9,617 84,266 31,143
Federal and State granis 60,870 - 60.870 72,667
Proceeds from sale of assets - - - -
Total nonoparating revenues 150,749 12,721 163470 107,532
Nonoperating expenditures
Interest expense 22802 (315) 23217 24,751
Public safety reimbursements 271,945 922 271023 237.004
Total nonoperating expenditures 204 847 607 294,240 261,755
Ravenues over (under) expendiures 158.202 252,765 410,867 {335,169)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers (out) (206,120} 28,270 (177.850) (282,852)
Dabt service - principle payment (26,411} - (26.411) {24,876)
Appropriated fund balance 74,328 (74,329} - -
Total other financing sources {uses) (158.202) (46.059) {204,261} {307,728y
Extraordinary fiems - - - 702.500
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {untier} expenditures 3 - 5 206708 S 206.706 59,603
Reconciliation of change In net assats
Tota! revenues 3 2,765,943 3,135,647
Total expenditures 2,550,237 3,076,044
Subtotal 206,706 59,603
Depreciation (1.370,820 {1.404,638)
Amortization (22.000) (22.000)
Change in accrued vacation 2475 13,807
Change in inventary 495 -
Capital oultay 130,044 831,679
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - {22,508)
Principal payment 26.411 24.876
Subtotal (1.233.395) (578.875)
3 {1.026.688) (519.272)

Change in net assets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Alrport Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2005

Project Prior Closed Cutrent
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Ravenues

Federal grants 3 7.066,896 3 9051,100 § 5539200 3 1873664 3% 5,385,564

State grants 552,833 484,761 268,800 45,254 250,215

Miscailaneous incame 119,429 793,824 284,742 433574 948,656

Investment income 25.000 38,638 - 48.039 A6,574
Total ravenues 7,764.258 10.378.320 6,113,742 2,406,531 5,671,109

Expenditures

Airport Road Landscaping 50,000 49,163 - - 49,183

Airport Road Construction 369,164 350,018 - - 360,018

Jet Bridge Modification 46,195 38,886 1 38,887

Preptan Runway Safety Areas 108,500 108,600 - - 108,500

Security system upgrade g2 B15 91,511 - - 91,511

Ramp and safety area desigr/ARFF proximity suits - 238,062 238,062 . - -

NLVR/fierminal rehab 2,502,737 2.204.322 36,672 254,186 2,418,836

Masterplan upcate & land 1,613,242 1,1B5.763 ) - 378,337 1,564,100

{oop Road 30,8600 2,522 - 27,004 25,528

Fuiure Projects 349,000 - - - -

Apron & safety area improvements - 5,872,526 5,872,526 - -

Miscellaneous parking let improvements 94,100 - - - -

Obstruction clearing 1,504,396 - - 1,466,681 1,466,681

Stormwatar improvements 361.114 - - 22,501 22,501

AlP-30 loap, puilding, beacon 1,687,712 - - - -
Total expenditures 8,708,075 10,151.373 6,150,260 2,148,710 6.149.823
Revenuas over (under) expenditures (844 817) 226,947 {36.518) 257,821 521.285

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 944 817 796.2585 36.518 177.850 937.587
Total other financing sources (uses) 944 817 796,255 36,518 177,850 937,587
Revenues and other financing sources )

{uses) over (under) expenditures 3 - 3 1,023202 % - % 435671 _§ 1,458.873
Reconctliation of modified accrual basis

to futl accrual basis:

Excess of ravenues over expenditures 5 435,671

Capital outlay 2,148,710

Naon-capitaiizable items [151,889)

Change in net assets S 2,392 492



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City,
on a cost reimbursement basis.

The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds:
* Warranty Fleet Fund
* Fleet Maintenance Fund

* Insurance Fund

All Internal Service Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2005

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Tota! noncument assets

Total assets

Liabitities and net assets
Current liabiiities
Accounts payabie and accrued expenses
Current portion of fong term debt
Accrued vacation
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Deferred revenues
tong-term debt
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets
invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Warranty Fleet
Fieet Maintenance insurance
Fund Fund Fund Total
3 593,133 279,340 § 6,987.216 7,859,689
10,629 111,868 49415 171,812
- 276,546 - 276,546
- - 165,833 165.833
603.762 667,754 7.202 464 8.473.980
1,594 188,707 53,159 243 480
1,584 188,707 53,159 243,480
3 605,356 856,481 §  7,255623 8,717,440
% 406 254089 § 3,516,707 3,771,212
- 2,303 - 2,303
- 6,537 15,596 22.133
406 262,938 3,632,303 3,795,648
- - 3,353 3,353
- 7,112 - 7112
- 7112 3,353 10,465
406 270,051 3,535.656 3,806,113
1,594 179,292 53,159 234,045
803.356 407,118 3,666,808 4 B77,282
504,950 586,410 3,718,967 4.911.327
$ 605,356 B56,461 3 72565623 8,717,440
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Warranty Fleet
Fleet Maintenance Insurance
Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Other revenue from operations 5 - $ 733 % 898,989 3 99,722
interfund charges and employee contributions 179,474 1,165,079 12.075.629 13.420.182
Total operating revenues 179,474 1,165.812 12,174,618 13.519.904
Operating expenses
Personnel - 1,089,730 361,356 1,451,086
Mazintenance and operations 68,883 136,478 11,821,170 11,726,529
Depreciation 1,196 20.784 14,280 36.260
Total operating expenses 70.07¢ 1,246.990 11,896.8086 13.213.875
Operating income {i0ss) +108,395 (81,178} 277,812 306,029
Nonoperating revenue {expense)
interest eamed on investments 42,397 3,671 189,860 236,028
Gain (loss} on disposal of capital assets 1,403 - - 1,403
Interast expense - (310 - (310}
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 43.800 3,381 189,960 237,121
Income {loss) before transfers
and contributions 183,185 {77.817) A67,772 543,150
Transfers out {1,000,000} - - {1.000,000)
Change in net assets (846,805) {77,817} 467,772 (456,850}
Total net assets - beginning 1,451,755 664,227 3,252,195 5,368.177

Total net assets - ending S 604950 § E86410 $ 3719967 $§ 4911327




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
internal Service Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Warranty Fleat
Fleat Maintenance Insurance
Fund Fund Fund Totai
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 173858 % 1,165,079 § 12,047,302 3 13.386,340
COther operating revenue - 733 98,989 99,722
Cash received as deferred revenues - - {7.378) {7.378)
Cash paid to or on behaff of empioyees for services - (1,138,241) (370,831) (1,508,872)
Cash paid for goods and services (72,151} {43.845) (11,540,017} {11.656.013)
Nat cash provided by {used in)
operating activities 101,808 (16,274) 228,265 313,799
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers out {1,000.000} - - {1.000,000)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities {1,000.000) - - (1,000,000}
Capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets - - (7,650 {7.650}
Net cash provided {used) by capital and
reiated financing activities 20,824 (2,546) (7.650) 19.628
investing activities
interest and dividends 42 397 3,671 189,960 236.028
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 42,397 3.671 189,960 236,028
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments {825,971) (15,149) 410.575 {430.545)
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Baginning of year 1.419.104 204,489 6.576.641 8,290,234
End of year 5 593,133 & 279,340 $ 6987.216 & 7,859,689
Reconcliiation of operating income {loss)
to net cash provided by
{used in} operating activities
Operating income {loss) 3 108,395 5 (81,178) 3 277812 5 306,029
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation 1,186 20,784 14,280 36,260
Change in assets and fiabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable {5,515) (111,364} {28,327) {145,208}
{Increase) decrease in prepaid items - - 88,039 48,039
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued fiabilities {3.268) 86,470 (106,886} (23,684)
increase {decreasa) in accrued compensated absence - (48,511} {9,275) {57,786)
Increase {decraase) in deferred revenues - - {7,378} {7.378)
Total adjustments {7,587} 54,904 {48,547 7778
Net cash provited by {used in) operating activities 3 101.808 8 (16.274) 3 228265 % 313,799
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAF)
Warranty Fleet Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004}

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
interfund charges and employee contributions $ 211,720 % (32,248) _§ 179,474 § 203.289
Total operating reventes 211,720 {32,248) 179.474 203,299
Operating expenditures
Maintenance and operations 75,226 6,343 68,883 70,580
Capital outlay 155,000 155.000 - -
Total operating expenditures 230,226 161,343 68,883 70,580
Operating income (loss) {18,506) 129,097 110,541 132,709
Nonoperating revenues (expenditures)
Interest earned on investments 25,000 17,387 42,397 9,273
Interest expense {790) . 790 - -
Total nonoperating revenues {expenditures) 24.210 18,187 42.397 9,273
Revenues over {under) expenditures 5,704 147,284 152,988 141,082
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from sale of assels - 1,403 1,403 -
Principal payments (5,704} 5,704 . -
Transfers (out) (1,000,600} - {1,000,000) -
Appropriated fund balance 1,000.000 (1,000.000) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) {5,704} {992,893) {998 597) -
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expenditures 3 - 8 {845609) § {845.609) $ 141,982

Reconciliation to net income {loss):

Total revenues $ 223274 & 212572

Total expenditures 1,068.883 70,590
Subtotal (845.609) 141.982
Depreciation {1.186) {8,578)

Change in net assets $ (8468050 § 133404
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP)
Fieet Maintenance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004)

Cperating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions
Other revenues from operations
Total operating revenues

Operating expenditures
Persannel
Maintenance and operations
Total operating expenditures

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures)
Interest earned
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenue (expenditures)

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Transfer out
Principal payments
Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expenditures

Reconciliation to net income {loss):
Total revenues
Totat expenditures
Subtotal

Depreciation

Principal payments

Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Subtotal

Change in net assets
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Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual

$ 1673058 § (507,980) § 1,165079 § 1,234,417
- 733 733 -
1,673,059 (507,247) 1,165,812 1,234,417
1,138,610 48 B8O 1,089,730 1,050,816
310,792 174,316 136,476 159,080
1,449 402 223,196 1,226,206 1,208,896
223,657 {284,051} (60,394) 24,521

- 3,671 3671 1,807

(459) 148 (310) -

{459) 3,820 3,361 1,807
223,198 {280,231) (57,033) 26,328
{219,885) 219,885 - -
{3,313) 1,076 {2.237) -
(223,198 220,961 {2.237) -

5 - 8 (59270) % (59.270) 3 26,328
$ 1169173 $ 1,236,224

1,228,443 1,209,896

{59,270) 26,328
{20,784) (24 576)

2,237 -

- B,114
- {3,665)
{18,547) (22,127}

3 (77.817) 3 4,201




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Insurance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2005
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2004)

Variance
Positive 2005 2004
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual

Operating revenues '
interfund charges and employes contributions  $ 13,057.416  § (981,787) § 12,075629 & 10,487,960

Other revenues from operations 33,252 65,737 98,989 243,058
Totai operating revenues 13,090,668 (916,050) 12,174,618 10,731.008
Operating expenditures
Personnel 379,160 8,528 370,632 340,144
Maintenance and operations 12,794,533 1,346,967 11,447,566 9,466,717
Capital outtay 11,125 - -
Total operating expenditures 13,184,818 1,355.495 11,818,198 9,806,861
Operating income (loss) {94,180) 450,570 356,420 924 147
Nonoperating revenues {expenditures)
interest eamed on investments 95,000 94,960 189,960 34,411
Interest expense (104) 104 - -
Total nonoperating revenues {expenditures) 94.856 95,064 189,960 34,411
Revenues over {under) expenditures $ 746 % 545634 $ 546380 % 958,558
Other financing sources (uses)
Principal payments {748) 748 - -
Total other financing sources (uses} (746) 746 - -

Revenues and other financing sources

(uses) over {under) expenditures 5 -3 546,380 5 546.380 & 958,558

Reconciliation to net income {loss):

Total revenues g 12,364,578 $  10,76541%8

Total expenditures 11,818.188 9,806,861
Subtotal 546,380 958,558
Depreciation (14,280) (4,398)
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 9,276 (4,293)
increase in insurance liability {73.604) 59977
Subtotal (78.608) 51,286

3 467772 5 1,009,844

Change in net assets

—
]
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

* pension Trust Funds
* Private-purpose Trust Funds

The focus of Fiduciary Fund measurement differs among the various
types of funds that may be encompassed by this classification.



TRUST FUNDS

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee
capacity.

The following comprise the City's Trust Funds:
" Pension Trust Funds
*  Special Separation Allowance Trust Fund
- PWC Supplemental Pension Trust Fund
* Private-purpose Trust Funds
~  Police Benefit Trust Fund

bl Firemen's Relief Trust Fund



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds

June 30, 2005
Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Suppiemental
Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Asseats
Cash and investments $ 1810883 § 4.1 14599 § 5,625,482
Accounts receivable 11,883 - 11,883
Total assets 1,822,766 4,114,599 5,837,365
Liabllities
Accounts payable 24,736 - 24,736
Total liabilifies 24736 - 24,736
Net assets
Pension benefits 1,798,030 4 114,598 5912 629

Total net assets $ 1798030 _% 41145909 % 5912,628
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Funpd Total
Additions
Contributions 3 356,876 § - $ 356,876
investment eamings 47,712 309.615 357,327
Total additions 404,588 309,615 714,203
Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums 239,968 168,833 408,901
Total deductions 239,968 168,933 408,901
Change in net assets 164,620 140,682 305,302
Totai net assets - beginning 1.633.410 3,973,917 5,607,327

Total net assets - ending § 1798030 $ 4114599 % 5,012,629
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds
June 30, 2005

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and investments $ 3444 § 1,247,403 § 1,250,847
Accounts receivable 30 3.240 3,270
Total assets 3474 1.250.643 1,254,117
Liabilities
Accounts payable - - -
Total liabilities - - -
Net assets
Heid in Trust 3474 1,250.643 1,254,117

Total net assets $ 3474 $ 1250643 _§ 1254 117

13



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Additions
Other revenue from operations 3 - % 42797 % 42,797
Contributions 750 121,929 122,679
Investment earnings 119 29,232 29,351
Total additions 869 193,958 194,827
bDeductions
Benefit payments and premiums 1,315 328,028 329,344
Total deductions 1,315 328,029 329,344
Change in net assets . (448) {134,071) (134,517)
Tota! net assets - beginning 3,920 1,384,714 1,388,634

Total net assefs - ending 3 3474 § 1250643 § 1254117
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more detailed view of
the current tax levy and taxes receivable. These schedules are not
funds and do not measure resuits of operations.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Current Tax Levy

year Ended June 30, 2005

Property
Excluding
Total Rate Registerad Registered
Property Per Amount Motor Motor
Valuation $100 of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original Levy:
General Fund $ 7469565374 3 0530 $ 39588696 § 34,906,765 $ 4,681,931
Late Listing Penalties:
General Fund 21,852 21,892 -
Subtotal 39,610,588 34,928.657 4,681,931
Discoveries:
General Fund 32,055,515 0.530 169,894 158,371 11,623
L ate Listing Penalties:
General Fund 33,506 33,508 -
Subtotai 203,400 191.877 41,523
Releases:
General Fund {104,361,596) 0.530 {653,117) {35,187} {517,930)
Late Listing Penalties:
General Fund {8,669) {8,669) -
Subtotal {561,786} {43,856) {517.930)
Adjusted Tax Levy 39,252,202 35,076,678 4 175,524
Uncoliected Current Year Taxes at 6/30/05 1,372,253} (6597,212) {775,041)
City-wide Current Year's Taxes Collected 37879950 § 34479466 3 3,400,483

Clty-wide Current Levy Coliection Fercentage 96.50% 98.30% 81.44%
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA
Schedule of Taxes Receivable

June 30, 2005

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004 Additions & Credils June 30, 2005

2005 3 - % 39813888 3 38441736 % 1,372,253

2004 1,587,296 770 1,127,279 470,787

2003 536,827 {20 205,204 331,743

All Prior 1,614.816 134 316,708 1,298,242

3748939 § 39815013 % 40,090,927 3,473,025

Less: Allowance for Uncotlectible Taxes

General Fund (713.017) (738.829)

$ 3,035,922 3 2,734,196

General Fund Taxes Receivable 3,089,741
Less: CBTD Taxes Receivable {4,996)
Less: Vehicie License Fee Receivable (350.549)

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable $ 2,734,196

Rreconciliations of collections and credit
with revenues

Ad Valorem Taxes 3 39,622,100
Releases Current Year-Generai Fund 561,786
Releases of other than current year-General Fund 157,602
Barred by State Statute-General Fund 138,531
Less Penalties & Interest (315,526)
Less Taxes - CBTD {73.666)

$ 40,090,827
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OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on internal Control Over Financiai Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Gavernment Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control Qver
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable o
Each Major State Program and Internai Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with Applicable Sections of OMB
Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit implementation
Act

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedute of Prior Year Audit Findings
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WiTH
VERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

GQ

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the “City") as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated October 10, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits

contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolter General of the United States.

Intemal Control Over Financial Reparting
In planning and performing our audit, we cansidered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in order to

determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial staternents and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may ocour
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. “The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompiiance or other matters that are required to be reported under Gavernment Auditing

Standards.

We noted other matters involving the internal contral over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the City in a separate jetter dated October 10, 2005.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

C&Aw\ﬂg——é\—b\ X \\M‘ Lul-

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 10, 2005



CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSUETANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OME CIRCULAR
A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compiiance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the “City”) with the types of

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the
Local Government Commission, that are applicabie to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2005. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of jaws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Impiementation Act.
Those standards, OMB Circuiar A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on- a major federal
program accurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City compiied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2005.

internal Control Qver Compliance
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's intemnal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit

implementation Act.



The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2 ‘

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarity disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the interai control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, reguiations, contracts and grants
caused by emor or fraud that would be material in relation to a maijor federal program being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters invaiving the internal control over compiiance and its operation
that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

O, Nenn & ND, 1y

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 10, 2005



CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTE &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJCR STATE
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the “City") with the types of

compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Caralina, issued
by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year
ended June 30, 2005. The City’s major State programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resuits
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, reguiations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the responsibility
of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-
133 as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North_Caroling, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
gpinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Internat Control Qver Compliance
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the State

Single Audit Implementation Act.



The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Caroiina
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control aver compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal controi that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportabie condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the internai control components does not reduce to a relatively low
jevel the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major State program being audited may occur
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committes, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and shouid not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

W\Q*M A NAead (SR,

Fayetteville, North Caroiina
October 10, 2005



CITY OF EAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 3@, 2005

SECTION I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
intemal control over financial reporting:
. Material weakness(es) identified o
. Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted

Federal Awards
internal control over major federal programs:
- Material weakness(es) identified e
- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to federal
awards

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

X

No

None reported

No

No

None reported

No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133

identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster

Yes

14.218 Gommunity Development Block Grant
14.239 Home Investment Partnership Program
16.710 COPS Homeland Security Grant

Doliar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B Programs 3 300.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X _ Yes
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs {continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2005

State Awards

internal control over major State programs:
- Material weakness{es) identified Yes X No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses Yes X Nene reporied

Noncompliance material to State awards Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with the State Single Audit
Implementation Act Yes X . No

|dentification of major State programs:

Program Name
NC Clean Water Revolving Loan & Grant Program

Section Il. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section lil. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2005

None reportable.
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GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH
GmantoriPragram Title

sommunity Development Block Grant
Various Years' Entitlernents

4OME Investinent Partnership Program
Various Years' Entitements

1

L ocal Law Enforcemant Block Grants Program
Local Law Enforcement Block 2002
Local Law Enforcement Block 2003

Offica of Justica Programs
Bulletproaf Vest Partnership
FBI Overtime Reimbursaments
Alcohal, Tobacca, and Firearms Cvertime Reimbursements
Feceral Equitable Sharing Fund
Operation Ceasefira Grant
inaugural OT

Cops Homaland Security Grant

passad through Governors Crime Commission
Geographic informeation Syswems Project
Oparation Canssfire Media BRtx
Gangs Across the Carolinas
Cyber Crimes Against Children

Special Programs for the Aging
Passsd Through NG Department of Health & Human Services
Semior Cltizens Service Center

Alrport improvemait Program
RKehahitate Teminal Buliding, Phase 5

Land. Masterpian, Snow Piaws
Obstruction Removal & Loop Road Design

Passed through NG Dept of Transportation
Govemors Highway Safety Program
Strict and Fair Enforcement Frogram

Highway Planning and Constryction
Enhancement Agreement - Depot
{STEA21
Cape Fear River Trail

Cperating assistance grant
Capital assistance granis:
Capital
Capitat
Btanning
Pianning

Assistanca to Firefighters
Assistance to Frafighters

Srownfields Pilots Cooperative Agrssment
Region 4 - Direct Program

Economic Development Administration
Cedar Creek Industrial Park Sewer Extension Projact

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schaedule of Expanditures of Federal and Stats Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2005
State/
Federal Pass-through
CFDA Grantor's
Number Number
14.218 B-XX-MC-37-0005
14230 M-XX-MC-37-0203
18.502 2002-1.B-BX-2504
18.582 2003-LB-BX-2455
18.807
18.000
16.609 2003-GP-CX-0153
18,710 200I0MX G148
18.579 026-1-03-158-AD-234
18.579 026-1-03-001-AZ-D60
16.579 026-1-02-004-AD-168
18.579 426-1-04-15B-AD-BE0
83.044 N/A
20.106 FAA-3-37.0021-26
20.106 FAA-3-37-0021-23
20.106 FAA-3-37-D021-28
20,600 QN-O5-10-01-40
20.205 E4118
20.205 E-4530
20.507 NC 80.4357
20.507 NC 80.0244
20.507 NC 80.0271
20.507 NG 80.2327
20,507 NC 90.2313
B5.554 EMW-2002-FG-00847
B5.554 EMW-2003-FG-05873
66.811 #vaB4206-97-C
11,300 04-01-05130
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Fedaral (Direct)
& Pass-through)

State

Totat

Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures

$1,860.81C 3 . 5 1.889.810
1,063,873 - 1,063,873
15,434 - 15434
1,917 - 1.917
17 3561 - 17.351
18371 - 18,371
127 - 12,731
16.699 - 16,699
25,292 - 25,292
67,640 - 67,640
43314 - 43.314
184,047 - 184,047
112,827 - 112,527
3,858 - 3,858
21,855 - 21,655
23,804 - 23,884
23670 - 23,570
12978 72,975
12.684 - 12,984
114,180 - 114,160
340,504 - 340,504
1.419,000 - $.419.000
1.873,864 - 1.873,664
60,166 - 60,186
1,035,403 - 1,046,403
428.207 - 478 207
1.483 610 - 1,463.61C
914,271 - 914,271
32,084 - 32,08
135,213 - 135,212
82.285 - 82,28!
26.085 26.08!
1.189.948 - 1188 94
7 -
70,700 - 70,70
70.767 - 70.70
6.788 - 9.18
3.523 - 3.62




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Scheduls of Expenditurss of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Stata/
Fedarai Pags-through
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Gramor's
Grantor/Program Title Numbeer Number
\TE GRANTS:
viation Division
Rensbifitate Terminal Building, Phase I N/A 9,0544021
Land, Masterplan, Snow Plows N/A 36244.27.4.3
Stormwaler Improvements N/A 362442751
Snowplows and Manienance Vehicles N/A 26244.27.4.8
Stnrmwater Improvements Gesign NIA A5244.77 4.4
Terminal Roof Reptacement N/A 36244,27.42
Hydrauiic Rotary Mator N/A 3524427 4.1
Secunty Polics Officer Jackets N/A 36244.77.4.5
Festival of Fiights N/A 4300051182
slic Transporation Division
Maintenance Assistance N/A 9.6051898
Capital 1528 99051916
Capital NIA 9.5051688
Planning N/A 36223.75.7
Planning NIA, 36222.7.4.6
Powell Sill NA
Trolley Fesibity N/A 04-DG-012
Hope Mills Sldewalk NiA WBS 38321
Rail Division
Amtrek NA 03-57-008
Division of Water Quailty
NC Clean Water Revelving Loan & Grant Program 66,458 E-SRF-T-02-0124
vislon of Water Resources
Cape Fear River Basin Hydrologic Model Update
Clsan Water Management Trust Fund
Simple Property Acquisition gnd Easement Acquisition N/A 20028-762
wivision of Parks and Recreation
Railmad improvements at Hilsboro St and Cumberiand Rd 20.205 Z-4406A0
assed through from Cumberiand County Departmant of Social Services
Juvenile Court Restitution N/A 626015
B
Jvigion of Emergency Management
Hazmat {Tercrism} N/A DOJ-pZ-158
Hazmal (Terrorism) N/A HS-TE-03-4105
rarmat {RRT Grant) NIA RRT 3 2004
N/A

NC Unautharized Substance Tax

TOTAL ASSISTANCE

(OTES 0. THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS:

1. The accompanying schedule of axpenditures of Federal
nasis of accounting, The information in this schedute is prasen

[herafore, SOME BMOUNRS presented In this sehedule may differ from amounts preserted in,

2. The wotat ocat maich reguirements ior the Fede
of the transit system was $1.113,839.82

3. The total local contributions for the Stiate Powaeii Dill assistance amounied to $86,126.78 { this represents assessments

and Stata awards inciudes the Federal and State gramt activity of the City of Fay
ted in accordance with the reguirements of OMB Circular A-133. *
of used in the preparation of the Desic financial statements.

ral and State Tranai operating assiswance grants was $681,135. The actual [o

Fecleral {Dirct)
& Pass-throwgh) State Tatal
_ Expenditures __ Expanditures Expanditures
- 6.086 8,086
. 8,917 18.917
- 20,250 20.250
- 36,880 26,860
- 8,860 8,860
- 39,896 39,896
- 14,148 14,149
- 1,922 1,822
- ©.p80 9.860
- 158,800 158 800
- 858,826 858,826
- 3272 3272
- 15.867 15,867
- 10.285 16,285
- 3,260 3.260
- BRS.S1L B89.510
- 30971846 3.971.948
- 108 109
- 89.364 HD.364
- 59.102 58,102
- 6,376,402 6,376,402
- 120,231 130,231
- 161,009 161.009
- 6.667 642 5,667 842
- 26.465 26.065
- 95,7106 94 706
- 1.979 1,979
- 21,739 21,729
- 49896 49.598
“ 73.714 73.714
- 40.553 40,553
$ 7.805.073 $ 12.070.511 £ 19.875.584

4. Tre smount of HOME Inveatment Partnerships provided o CHDO's is $326,220 as of June 30. 2005

tad

ke and is @r

received through O6/30/05].

d on the modified accrual

cal maich which the City of Fayetteville expended for the aperations
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PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the
Passenger Facility Charge Program and Internal Controf
Over Compliance in Accordance with the Passenger Facility
Charge Program Audit Guide

Schedute of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges



CHERRY
BEKAERTR.

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCO ANTS &
CONSLULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY
CHARGE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AUDIT GUIDE

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City") with the compliance

requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration (Guide), for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June
30, 2005. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its
passenger facility charge program is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the
Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those

requirements.

In our opinian, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicabie to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the passenger facility
charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internai control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide.

Our consideration of the intemal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which
the design or operation of ane ar more of the internal contrel components does not reduce to a refatively low
jevel the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to the passenger facility charge program being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internai control over compliance and
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.



The Henorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

This report is intended soiely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within
the organization, members of the City Council, the Federal Aviation Administration, and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone cther than
these specified parties.

QS\»_.\,‘Q\.AJQ N Ner, LuS

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 10, 2005



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2005
SECTION |. Summary of Auditor's Results
Financia m
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
- Material weakness(es) identified __Yes _X_ No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified |
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted Yes X No

Passenager Facility Charge Program
Internal control over passenger facility charge program:
- Material weakness(es) identified _—Yes _X_ No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to passenger
faciiity charge program Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for passenger facility charge program:
Ungqualified

Any audit findings disclosed Yes X No

Section ll. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section lll. Passenger Facility Charge Findings and Questioned Costs

Nene reported.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2005

None reported.
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Project

APPLICATION £ { # 06-01-5-00-FAY]
Local shane resnbxursament AIP-12,
Construction of 8 Fire Tranng
Faciity and Renabilitation of a 1500~
Gallon ARFF Vehicle

{pcal share redmbursement AIP.12,
instadl Securty Accass Corrol
Syslam

Local share reimbursemant AIP-13,
Lipdate Alrport Master Plan

Local shane reimbursamerd AIF-13,
Design Higrway 301 Connectort

Local share reimbursemert AIF-14,
Itmprove Terminal Building

Locat share reimbursament AIP-15,
Design New General Aviation Area

Local share reimbursement AIP-15,
Foreign Obiect Damaga Sweaper

Local shara reumbursemert ATP-15,
Design Taxwey "K°

tocal share reimbursament AIP-15,
Rehabilitate (Seneral Aviation Apron

Local share reimbursamen AIP-15,
Land tor Developme

Local share reimbursernent AIP-18,
Terminat Loading Bridges

Locat share reimbursament AIP-17,
New General Awation Corstruction

Local share reimoursament AIP-18,
Acguira Handicap Lt Device

L ocat share reimbursemernt AIP-18,
Raehabiitats Terminal Bading

Local share reimbursement AIP-18,

Adreraft Rescue & Firefighling
Vehicie

Local share reimpursament AIP-20,
Destign Nonicensed Vehice Rosd

Loca! shars resmbursamert AIP-20,
Dasigr of Taxtway "5 (Revisad}

Local share reimbursemert AIP-20,
installaticn of Water Main

Local share reimbrrsement AIP-21,
Airport Entranca Road

Lcal share rembursemant AIP-21,
Jetway Brndge Modificeions

Locat share rermoursement AIP-21,
Sacunty System Lipgrade

Loca) share reifrDursement AIP-21,
Preplan Runway Safety Arees

Nenh Ga, Rarms Constructicn

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures of
Passenger Faciiity Charges
Yoar Enced June 30, 2005
imposa Use Cumuintive Apnroved Amount PFC Reveriue FFC Ravenue Totai PFC
Effective Effactive Expanditures Expenditures of Use Bsad In Used Revenuas
__Dme _  Dats __ Achal for PFC's Approval _PriorYears _ CuryentYsar =~ Used

11/01/2000 11401/2000 $ 3830753 3 3,830,753 5 191,538 H 191,538 $ - $ 191,538
110172000 11012000 757,595 757,595 37,880 37,880 - 37,880
11012000 1012000 135,020 67,510 8751 6,751 - 8,751
110172000 11/0172000 184,655 164,655 8733 9733 - 8.733
110472000 1140172000 198,121 198,182 ¢910 9914 - 9.910
11042000 11/01/2000 134612 134,462 6731 6731 - 6,731
14492000 11O12000 31,224 31,24 1,474 1474 - 1,474
1181/2000 140472000 206285 206,786 11,450 10,314 - 10,014
114012000 TOTEZ000 15,632 15632 TE2 782 - 782
11012000 11012000 16,841 16,841 B42 842 - 842
11012000 /12000 20876 294875 1,484 1.484 - 1.4684
11A1/2000 11/01/2000 45001 48 476 2424 2424 - 2424
110172000 11012000 175,808 178,808 8,890 8.o%0 - 8,950
1501/2000 1141172000 2,362,380 2,342,376 114,860 114,860 - 114,860
142000 110172000 25,880 35880 1.784 1,784 - 1.784
140172000 11/01/2000 1,820 477 1.820478 83,367 83,367 - 83,367
140172000 117012000 319,789 39760 15,688 15,988 - 15,888
110172000 11012000 1618 30545 1.827 1,527 B 1,527
11/01/2000 $1/11/2000 132687 12.887 844 644 - 844
11/01/2000 12000 78,5556 78,299 305 318 - 3915
14172000 1170112000 300,018 350,000 17,500 17.500 - 17.500
130172000 11/01/2000 38.887 45,185 2310 1,844 - 1,544
11/012000 117172000 1,512 70818 3.541 s - 3541
140172000 41/01/2000 108,600 109,600 5,480 5430 . 5430
13/0172000 far 82002 1.554.453 1.404.170 70.208 70.209 - T209

148



Prajest
Secirty System Upgrace Frasa &

Dasign & Construct RSA, RArway 4
Acquirg Land
Rencvate Temminal, Phase |

RSA Congtruchon, Rurway 4, Phase
It

Land Acirsition

Rencvats Terminal, Phase i

RSA Constuction, Rurmay 12
Acquire Land

NLWVR Constructon

Jat Briciga Modification Construchon

Taxiway K Consruction
TOTAL IMPOSE AND USE
Acquire Lard

TOTAL IMPOSE ONLY

TOTAL APPLICATION ¢

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expanditures of
Pazsenger Facliity Charges

Yedr Ended June 30, 2005

150

imposse Use < tve App d Amourit FFC Ravenue FFC Ravenue Tatsd PFC
Etfective Erfectve Expendituies Expenditures of Uss Used In Used in Reventes
Date Date Actual tor PFC's Approval Prior Years Currert Year used
11/01/2008 fa STk um el 141,216 139,340 €.987 5.967 - 8.967
oENm 06A82002 asgarz2 49,000 47.450 42943 - 42943
110172000 08AME200Z - 138,11 13.611 - - -
11/01/2000  O&MA2002 1,921,145 2,475,430 93,433 BE05E 6.448 92 504
11/01/2000  DEM&v2002 858,872 945,000 40,006 40,600 - 40,000
1112000 06/18/2002 - 136111 1,444 - - -
11172000 08ME2002 - 2.415.430 37,500 - - -
140H/2000  OEMBR002 1,855.290 1,263,890 85,289 86,388 - 6,369
110172000 06/1872002 - 177.778 7,778 - - -
+ANR000 0BMBZ002 540,322 180,000 25385 25,395 - 25,365
110172000 08/18/2002 - 125,500 6,275 - - -
14000 DEMEZ602 483,002 225,000 22.500 22 500 - 22500
18,253,457 21,664,714 4,009,843 919,02 5,449 926,270
11172000 1,065,348 1,085,349 16.6M - - -
1,085,349 1,066,348 165T0, - . .
} 3 2ﬂ5318!m 5 gmm $ 1.028.513 3 919,821 % %M






